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Highlights 2006

MerphoSys Straigh-
tens Proprietary
Product Develop-
ment and Presents
Plans for Clinical
Development of New
{ead Substance
MOR103

JANUARY
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MorphoSys Reports
First Quarter 2006
Results with Record
Level of Profits

MorphoSys An-
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MorphoSys and
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FEBRUARY
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A Drvimien of Bemnobyy

Roche Announces
Plans for Clinical
Trial with MorphoSys-
Generated Alzheimer
Antibody

MarphoSys Acquires
Serotec Group to
Strengthen Globat
Research Antibody
Business

MorphaSys Reports
Completion of Equity
Issue

MorphoSys and
Japanese Pharma-
ceutical Group
Daiichi Sankyo Form
Broad Alliance to
Develop Novel Anti-
body Therapies

MorphoSys and
Roche Expand Thera-
peutic Antibody
Partnership

AFRIL

MorphoSys and
Schering-Plough
Sign R&D Agreement

JUNE
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Building a World-Class Bioteckh
Comapany
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COMPANY STRUCTURE

III[II:I]lII]SllS

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES RESEARCH ANTIBODIES

L] L

f 2006 | 2005 2004
TOTAL GROUP REVENUES ’ 53.0 335 22,0
Revenues Therapeutic Segment 34.7 29.1 21.2

* Revenues Research Segment 83| a3 o8
e esuLy B i | e v e o3
_____ Segmem_Rﬂg‘sult Therapeutic Antibodies 16.6 14.8 6.1*
Segment Result Research Antibodies G4 | (2.9) (2.4)*

—

* Concept of cost allocation was adapted for fiscal years 2005 ang 2006.




Business Mission

MorphoSys's strategy is aimed at leveraging its proprietary
technologies in two areas, namely therapeutic and research
antibodies.

The therapeutic antibody market remains one of the fastest-
growing segments of the pharmaceutical industry. In 2006,
total sales for the 20 antibody drugs currently on the market
amounted to approximately US $ 15 billion. MorphoSys is and
has been active in this dynamic, rapidly growing market for
over 15 years. Today, the majority of the top 20 pharmaceutical
companies worldwide work with MorphoSys’s technologies to
discover and develop new antibody drugs.

The research antibodies market overall has posted growth rates
of between 10-15% per year over the last several years. Scien-
tists around the world are currently spending some US $ 1 billion
annually on antibodies as research tools. MorphoSys is active
in this market through its business unit AbD - Antibodies Direct.
AbD is a teading antibody supplier in Europe and among the

top 20 research antibody companies worldwide. The market for
these tocls is currently undergoing a period of technological
and structural upheaval. MorphoSys views this development as
a strong incentive to build its market position as it presents an
excellent opportunity for future growth.
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Therapeutic Business

The Therapeutic Antibodies segment comprises MorphoSys’s
activities in the area of therapeutic antibodies, which includes
MorphoSys’s therapeutic antibody alliances with pharmaceutical
and biotech companies as well as its own antibody development
programs. MorphoSys continues to build value in this area through
an established system of license- and development-dependant
milestone payments and royalties on all resulting products.

KEY COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES:
Human antibodies have significant potential to improve the treat-
ment of a myriad of life-threatening diseases. Antibodies of fully
human origin are accepted as the next generation of this ¢class of
drugs due to their improved therapeutic potential and the reduced
risk of unwanted side effects. MorphoSys’s core technology pro-
vides unique features for drug development, including the maximum
level of flexibility and the option to engineer and optimize fully
human antibody drug candidates. Based on these advantages,
MorphoSys's technology increases the probability for both the
Company’s partnered and proprietary drug development programs
to reach the market successfully.

KEY STRATEGIES FOR FURTHER GROWTH IN THIS SEGMENT:

° Increase the number of active therapeutic projects

° Develop new partnerships and expand existing alliances

° Maximize pipeline value through investment in proprietary
drug devetopment




ABD SEROTEC DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

MorpheSys's AbD Serctec has established a distribution network with mere than 100 distributors, 1o serve customers in more than
70 countries, including all major economic regions.
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The Research Antibodies segment, called AbD - Antibodies
Direct, comprises all of MorphoSys’s activities in the area of non-
therapeutic antibody applications. It combines the services of
the former units Antibodies by Design and Biogenesis, and the
Serotec Group, which was acquired in 2006. By offering leading
scientists wortdwide easy access to its core HuCAL technology
for research antibody applications, MorphoSys promotes the
uptake of its technology in established areas of research. In addi-
tion, the AbD segment acts as a feeder for new diagnostic and
therapeutic commercial applications, providing MorphoSys with
access to new markets for the Company’s technologies.

KEY COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES:

MorphoSys’s core technology HuCAL provides a faster and more
flexible way to produce research antibodies because it does
not rely on animal-based antibody production. Additionally, the
technology can be highly automated, enabling MorphoSys to
realize economies of scale by producing antibodies more cheaply
and with higher margins than its competitors.

KEY STRATEGIES FOR FURTHER GROWTH IN THIS SEGMENT:
e Expand customer base and distribution network

o Launch new HuCAlL-based research products

o Explore new applications for HUCAL




— 002

Contents

N ,,

i s J

L

. o ————

04 08

MANAGEMENT BOARD

04 Management Board of MorphoSys AG
05 Letter to the Shareholders

44

THE COMPANY

o8
18
24
32

38

Market ang Strategy

Magazine: Antibody Production at MorphoSys
The MorphoSys Share

Interview with Paul ). Hastings,

CEO of OncoMed Pharmaceuticals

Corporate Governance Report

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT
44 Corporate Development 2006
47  Management of the Group
47 Macroeconomic Development
49 Financial Analysis
56 Financing
56 Subsidiaries/Corporate Acquisitions/Divestitures
38 Busmess Development
62 Research and Development/Alliance Management
65 Intellectual Property
66 Human Resources
68 Remuneration Report
73 Sustainability and Corporate Social Responsibility
74 Information Technelogy
75 Procurement and Production
76  Environmental Protection and Guality Management
77 Declarations Pursuant to § 315 Para. 4
of the German Commercial Code
79 Risk Report
B3 Opportunities
85 Performance-based Management and Control

86 Outlook and Forecast




003 ——

MANAGEMENT BOARD

THE COMPANY

GROUP MARAGEMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SUPERVISORY BOARD/APPENDIX

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (IFRS)

8¢
@1
92
%4

24
98
140

Financial Statements — Contents

Consolidated Statements of Operations {IFRS}
Consolidated Balance Sheets {IFRS)
Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Stockholders' Equity [IFRS)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (IFRS)
Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditer’s Report

SUPERVISORY BOARD

142 Supervisory Board Repert
146 Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG

APPENDIX

148 Glossary
150 Index

152 Imprint

142 152

LEGEND

* See Glossary

@ Additional Information: www.morphosys.com

*
Cross reference




—— 004

Management Board of MorphoSys AG

MR. DAVE LEMUS DR. SIMON £. MORONEY DR. MARLIES SPROLL
Senior Executive Vice President Chief Executive Officer Chief Scientilic Officer
Chief Financiat Officer




* MANAGEMENT BOARD THE COMPANY GROUP MANAGEWENT REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e 005 L]

l: Managemeni Board of MorohoSys AG
# Letter to the Shareholders

D&v S LLMQMJM,

After a very successful 2006, 1 am delighted to be able to present to you the 2006 Annual Repert. Our
focus this year has been on rigorous execution of our strategy of builling the Company’s two core husi-
nesses, namely therapeutic and research antibodies, and we can look back on excellent progress in both
areas. In our Therapeutic Antibodies segment, our goal was to substantially increase our market share in
20046. At the end of the year, we can show that we repeated the very successful 2005 performance, adding
three new commercial partnerships and three expansions of existing alliances to our rester. In terms
of our proprietary drugs, we have developed our two proprietary product candidates MOR103 and
MOR202 as planned. As for our research antibody business, the integration of the Serotec Group, acquired
in January 2006, was successfully completed.

The successful execution of our dual sirategy was clearly reflected in our financial results for the full year.
With toial sales for the MorphoSys Greup of € 53 million, we have achieved growth over 20035 of 58 %. At
the sume time, despite increased investment in our proprietary projects and in the further development
of our core technology, profits reached € 6 million, exceeding the result for 2005. From current business,
we generated a capital inflow of € 16.3 million, and this, bolstered by a successfully executed capital

increase in March, gave us cash reserves of arcund € 66 mitlion at year-end.

“Expunding into New Markets” - this was our motte for lust year's Annual Report. We pursued this goal
by developing new geographic markets, and by developing new fields of application for our technology.
Today, MorphoSys is a biotechnology company with a global presence and sites and representatives in the
most important markets for life sciences. A majority of the largest global pharmaceutical groups, together

with leading research institutes in the USA, Europe and Asia, use our technology and its products.

We have long been active in Europe and the United States. In Agia, o market which holds interesting
growth oppertunities for both of our business segments, we have made considerable recent progress. In
2006, we entered an agreement with the third-largest drug developer in the Far East, Daiichi Sankye,
the scope of which substantially exceeds our 2005 cooperatien with Shionogi. We regard this as a real
hreakthrough in the development of this market and can now state with not a little pride: MorphoSys has

arrived in Japan.

Two additional new partnerships, one with the pharmaceutical group Schering-Plough and another with
the biotechnclogy start-up OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, as well as three extensions of existing contracts,
illustrate that we have continued to develop our core parinered therapeutic antibody business very
strongly. We foresee an ongoing demand for MorphoSys’s technology in the future, as the market for
antibody drugs and technologies remains very active. Today, antibodies comprise the largest class of

hictherapeutic agents.
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Today, antibodies comprise
the largest class of biotherapeutic

t We foresee an ongeing demand for MorphoSys's technology in the future, as
agen S « the market for antibody drugs and technologies remains very active. Large

pharmaceutical companies are making increasingly aggressive moves into the
therapeutic sector. MorphoSys is well-positioned to meet these apportunities.

Or. Simon E. Moroney
Chigf Executive Officer

Large pharmaceutical companies are making increasingly aggressive maves inlo this sector. In the 2006
fiscal year, many pharmaceuticat groups drew attention to biotherapeutics in their annual reports and

in addressing their investors, and confirmed their desire to make further inroads into the segment, espe-
cially the development of antibody-based therapies.

Further proof of the sustained interest of pharmaceutical groups in antibedies is evident in the acquisi-
Llions of companies which either possessed antibody drug candidates or antibody technologies. The acqui-
sition of Abgenix by Amgen, Cambridge Antibody Technology (CAT) by AstraZeneca, Rinat by Pfizer and
NeuTec by Novartis are just some of the examples from the last 18 months, This wave of acquisitions
included two of our direct competitors, Abgenix and CAT. We thus find ourselves in an ideal position -

in a market where demand continues to grow and in which competition has become less.

A second facet of our therapeutic antibody business comprises cur proprietary drug candidates. In spring
2006, we introduced significant steps to improve the way we run this segment, and presented MOR103,

a drug we are developing for rheumatoid arthritis, as a new lead compound. The objective of aur reorga-
nization is to progress faster and with greater focus than has hitherto been the case, concentrating on the
devetopment of MOR103 up to the clinical confirmation of its efficacy in patients. We are on track to have
completed all the preparations for the start of a phase 1 study of MOR103 in the second half of 2007.
Developing proprietary products based on our proprietary technology offers us the most attractive means
of value creation, and [ can think of no scenario in which MoerphoSys would leave this potential unexploited.
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Managenent Board of MorphoSys AG
# Letter 1o the Sharehclders

Applying our proprietary technologies to the generation of new drugs is complemented by our second
business segment, AbD Serotec, in which we market the products of our technology for non-therapeutic
purposes. In the last year, we have strengthened this segment substantially with the purchase and inte-
gration of the British-American Serotec Group. Today, AbD Serotec is one of the leading providers of
research antibodies to researchers worldwide and is one of the 20 best-known brands.

After the successful integration of the unit, we are beginning io extraci the expected synergies, both
within the research segment itself and via the collaboration with our therapeutic business. These syner-
gies became apparent through a contract with an internationally renowned research institute, the US-
bused Burnham Institute for Medical Research. | am confident that discoveries made by researchers using
our HuCaL technology at the Burnham and other academic institutions, will lead 10 attractive preduct

opportunities for MorphoSys in the future.

Our share price has benefited from our successes in 2006 and had increased by 32% on the last day of
trading of the year. We thus exceeded the develepment of the technological index TecDAX on the Frank-

furt Steck Exchange, which increased by 25%.

MorphoSys starts 2007 with confidence and with high expectations. We aim to increase the number of
partnered therapeutic projects based on cur technelogy still further. These projects bring revenue in the
near term, but alse represent substantial future value for MorphoSys. An important step in support of
aur proprietary product development will he the submission of the application to begin clinical studies
for the MOR 103 project. In the Research Antibodies segment, we will build on the successful integration
of the Serctec Group and will continue to seek opportunities for growth via additional strategic transac-
tions. For the MorphoSys Group as a whole, we are striving for annual sales of € 60—65 million and an

operating profit of € 7-10 million.

Overall, 2006 was a year marked with many successes. As a result of cur achievements, MorphoSys is
well positioned to meet the challenges and oppertunities to come. For this, | would like to offer my special
thanks to all the employees within the MorphoSys Group for their commitment and their contributions to
the success of the Company. Finally, I would particularly like to thank you, our shareholders, for your con-
tinued interest and trust in cur Company. No doubt you will join me in wishing the Company well for a
successful 2007,

e

Dr. Simon E. Moroney

Chief Executive Officer
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Market and Strategy - Value Added from
Research to Clinical Development

During the fiscal years 2005 and 2006, MorphoSys successfully
expanded its business by opening new markets geographically
and by enabling broader use of its HuCAL technology. In the
Therapeutic Antibodies segment, in which MarphoSys is develop-
ing drug candidates for both its own pipeline and for its partners,
the company has achieved growth in all of the largest pharma-
ceutical markets: the USA, Europe and, increasingly, Asia. The
second operating segment, AbD Serotec, markets research anti-
bodies to meet the growing needs of universities, institutes and
companies worldwide.

DEMAND FOR ANTIBODY DRUGS REMAINS DRIVER FOR GROWTH
Therapeutic antihodies continue to be one of the fastest-growing segments of the pharmaceuti-
¢al industry. In 2006, the 20 approved antiboady drugs on the market achieved total sales of
approximately US$ 15 billion - representing a revenue increase of 25% over the prior year’s
growth. Six of these antibodies achieved blockbuster status, each with annual sales in excess
of US$ | billion. During 2006, two new antibody-based drugs, Lucentis® for the treatment of
' age-related macular degeneration (AMD*) and Vectibix™ for the treatment of metastatic colon
cancer, received FDA* approval. In addition, after being withdrawn in 2005 by Biogen Idec and
Flan due to side effects, the multiple sclerosis drug Tysabri®, was again approved for marketing
with amended safety instructions.




In 2000 six therapeutic anti-
bodies achieved blockbuster
status, each with annual sales
inexcess of USS 1 billion.

Acquisitions of antibody-based
biatech companies by big
pharma proof that the industry
is convinced by antibodies as
aclass of drugs.
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LIST OF THE BLOCKBUSTER PRODUCTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o OOQ -——

REVENUES 2006

DRUG MARKETED BY INDICATION IN USS BILLION
L - &

Remicade® Centocor /) &)/

Schering-Plough Inflammation o 30
Rituxan® Genentech/

Biogen Idec/Roche Oncology 222
Humlfal bO[t .....................................

Avastin® - Genentech/Roche

Herceptin® ... .Genentech/Roche 13,
Synagis* Medlmmune Virus infection L

Due to the siccess of therapeutic antibodies, the pharmaceutical industry is continuing to

intensify its activities with this class of drug. In 2006, numerous companies publicly announced
their intention to invest more heavily in biologicals, in some cases explicitly stating a focus on
antibody-based drugs. MerphoSys therefore anticipates a further increase in the already high

demand for antihody-based technotogies and products.

In addition to a growing commitment to internal antibody
2006, several pharmaceutical companies gained access to

drug research and development, in
antibody technologies or advanced

antibody-based drug candidates through acquisition. On the technology side, US-based phar-
maceutical company Merck, Inc., acquired GlycoFi and Abmaxis, and the British firm AstraZeneca
bought MorphoSys’s direct competitor, Cambridge Antibody Techrology. Examples of drug can-
didate acquisition include Novartis’s purchase of the biopharmaceutical company NeuTec, phar-
maceutical giani Pfizer's acquisition of Rinat, and Genentech’s takeover of Tanox, Inc. These
transactions alone represent direct investment in the antibody sector in excess of € 3 billion.

LIST OF ACQUISITIONS AND DEAL VOLUMES

DATE BUYER TARGET

DEAL VOLUME
IN € MILLION
-

07/2005 ... CRoche ) Glycart o T 150
.o,-g-/zo(:)s‘ Pf|zer ............. eren ............................... nmd,scmsed
.12./2(.)_05 . Amgen "“Abgenix --------------------------- 2 ,200 \
04/2006 Rinat

052006 " GyooFi, Abma

05/2006 CAT

07/2006

11/2006

12/2006 _ Domantis
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THE FUTURE BELONGS TO FULLY HUMAN ANTIBODIES

Until recently, therapeutic antibodies were produced in mice and partially, but not completety,
adapted for humans. Current state of the art has enabled the development of fully human anti-
hodies, which are accepted as the next generation and represent the majority of therapeutic anti-
bodies currently in development. The antibody Vectibix™, which was approved for marketing
in September 2006, is the second fully human antibody to be used as a therapeutic. Vectibix™
focuses on the same target* molecule and follows the same therapeuiic strategy as the chimeric,
or murine-based, cancer antihody Erbitux®, which reached the market in 2004. This approval
demonstrates that fully human antibodies can replace even successfully marketed antibody
drugs.

SHRINKING COMPETITION INCREASES MARKET OPPORTUNITIES

Over the last few years, MorphoSys has solidified its international leadership position in antibody
technologies and achieved one of its main objectives, namely to establish itself as the antibody
partner of choice for the pharmaceutical industry. Not anly has the HuCAL technalogy gained
increasing acceptance as best-in-class, demonstrated by the partnerships MorphoSys has signed
with the majority of the 20 largest pharmaceutical companies, but also worldwide there is only
a small number of companies capable of providing fully human therapeutic antibodies to the
pharmaceutical industry. Due to the acquisition of its two direct competitors, Cambridge Anti-
body Technology, or CAT, in March 2006, and Abgenix in December 2005, MorphoSys antici-
pates an increasingly improved market position in the future. Simply stated, the Company should
benefit directly from market growth and from the increasing demand for antibody technologies.
As an indicator of MorphoSys’s 2006 performance in this area, the Company signed three new
partnerships and significantly extended three existing contracts, the latter being as financially
attractive as the new partnerships.

BREAKTHROUGH IN THE JAPANESE MARKET

In May 2006, MorphoSys signed a cooperation agreement with the Japanese pharmaceutical
group Daiichi Sankye*, the second long-term alliance with an Asian drug developer after the
agreement with Shionogi from the previous year. This second deal thereby met one of the stated
goals for fiscal 2006 in the first half of the year and represented what the Company regards as a
breakthrough in the Japanese market. Japanese pharmaceutical company interest in innovative
technologies continues 1o be high and as a result, MorphoSys will be looking to further increase
its share in this market over the coming vears.
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LIST OF TOP 10 JAPANESE PHARMAGEUTICAL COMPANIES

TURNOVER R&D COSTS
In 2006 MorphoSys was able COMPANY IN BILLION Us$ IN BILLION Us$
. . . .. .
1o sign a second contract with 1. Takeda 85 1.3
aTop 10 JEPANESE PRATMA i i iy A e LR et ebns ELebeed st n st s .
company. 2. Astellas 8.0
3. DAIICHI SANKYD 7.3
4. Esai 4.3
5. Otsuka 3.3
6. Chugai 2.8
7. Mitsubishi Pharma 1.9
8. SHIONOGI 1.6
9. Tanabe 1.6

* MorphoSys’s agreement with the US pharmaceutical company Schering-Plough* marked its
twelfth partnership with one of the twenty largest pharmaceutical companies. The third new

* partner in 2006, US-hased start-up OncoMead Pharmaceuticals*, Inc., also provides a positive out-
look for the future. First, it indicates that there are significant business opportunities beyond
large pharmaceutical companies and second, it demonstrates that MorphoSys’s technology is
applicable for completely new therapeutic approaches.

Of the expanded contracts, the most significant is the extension of the existing alliance with

* Novartis*. This cooperation was already the largest partnership in MorphoSys's portfolio, not
least in terms of the number of antibody projects and research payments involved. From 2004
through 2006, this agreement represented the primary revenue driver in the Therapeutic Anti-
body business segment. In August 2006, MorphoSys announced the substantial expansion of
the partnership in three major areas: more researchers will be dedicated to Novartis projects,
resulting in higher research payments to MorphoSys; hoth companies will initiate more proj-
ects from which MorphoSys will benefit in the future through the established system of license

* payments, milestone payments and royalties*; and the contract has been extended until the end
of 2011, increasing forecasting security.
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MarphoSys has a strong track
record to extend and potentially
expand existing deals and forge
new altiances.

TRACK RECORD OF NEW CONTRACTS AND CONTRAGT EXTENSIONS WITH TOP 20 PHARMA

Roche

Centocor

Bayer Schering

Boehringer Ingelheim
*—

Pfizer
Novartis
Eli Lilly
Merck & Co.

Daiichi Sankyo

Lan > B
Schering-Plough
o e, -

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

MAXIMIZING THE VALUE OF THE PIPELINE

The current MorphoSys pipeline consists primarily of development projects with partners in
addition to two of the Company’s proprietary programs. MorphoSys seeks to maximize the
value of its antibody pipeline in two ways: first, through a contjnuous increase in the number of
therapeutic programs with partners and second, through targeted investment in the Company’s
preprietary projects.

One way to value the MaorphoSys pipeline is to estimate the sales potential of products in devel-
opment. In general, pharmaceutical companies do not initiate projects if the resulting products
do not have significant sales potential, ideally in excess of US $ 500 million per year. MorphoSys
will benefit from its partners’ producis via royalties which are a mid-single-digit percentage of
net sales,




MaorphoSys is active in all
indications whera antibedies
represent a successful class
of drugs taday.
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Another way of viewing the pipeline’s value is to consider the diseases these poteniial products
would address. By analyzing the distribution of partner projects over different therapeutic areas,
it hecomes clear that MorphoSys's pipeline is focused on the markets with the highest sales for
antibody therapies. For example, approximately 45 % of partnered projecis today target the treat-
ment of cancer, currently the largest market for therapeutic antibodies. A further 30% address
autoimmune* illnesses and inflammatory diseases, which also account for a large market segment
in terms of antibody therapies. In addition, MorphoSys and its partners are pursuing approaches
for the treatment of cardiovascular conditions, diseases of the central nervous system, inflam-
matory diseases and illnesses of the musculoskeletal apparatus.

Two of the partnered projects are currently in clinical development and the number of preclinical
drug candidates has risen from 7 to 14 during 2006. From this subset, several projects are ex-
pected to advance to clinical testing within the next two years. [n total, MorphoSys has over 43
therapeutic antibody projects after the addition of fourteen new projects in 2006, and therefore
has a broad basis for future performance-based success payments. These payments, also called
milestone payments, represent pure profit for MorphoSys. The Company therefore believes that it
has entered into a very exciting phase of its growth, characterized by an increase in performance-
hased success payments. This presents the opportunity for MorphoSys to invest in its proprietary
projects using its own free cash flow in order to further increase the 10tal value of the drug
pipeline.

INDICATIONS OF PARTNERED PROGRAMS TODAY

Oncology

Autoimmune/Inflammation
Cardiovascular

CNS

Infectious Diseases

Musculoskeletal
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The research antibodies market is currently
undergoing a period of technological and
Structu I\al upheaval ] Until recently, all research antibodies were developed using outdated,

animal-based technologies. MorphoSys is confident that the market is
ready for a shift towards new in vitrc approaches such as HuCAL.

In addition to the projects initiated through partnerships, MorphoSys has internally developed

' two antibody programs, MOR103* and MOR202, that will be out-licensed in the future to a partner
for further clinical development and subsequent marketing. Generally, companies that advance
antibody-based drug candidates into the clinic can expect attractive out-license agreements
that reflect the program value through higher mitestone payments and a greater share of future
sales. In the last few years, biotechnology companies have had a much-improved negotiating
position when seeking to partner projects with pharmaceutical companies, due primarily to
pharma’s increasing need for new agents and products.
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RESEARCH ANTIBODIES AS A SECOND DRIVER OF GROWTH

MorphoSys began marketing research antibodies in 2003 under the brand “Antibodies by Design.
The objective of this business was to open up the market for non-therapeutic applications. Within
two years, MorphoSys consolidated this part of the business through the acquisition of the British-
American Biogenesis Group in January 2005 and the Serotec Group* in January 2006. MorphoSys's

AbD Serotec unit is today cne of the leading suppliers of research antibodies in Europe and one

of the twenty largest suppliers worldwide. With total sales in excess of € 18 million, the business
has matured into a reliable second contributor to MorphoSys’s top line.

”

Scientists are currently investing approximately US$ 1 billion annually in research antibody
tools. In past years, the market for research antibodies has recorded an average growth rate of
between 10% and 15%. It is possible, with the right strategy, to exceed this growth, MorphoSys’s
goal is to achieve this in three ways: first, the company will increase the proportion of HuCAL-
based antibodies by introducing new products inte the Company’s proprietary sales catalog.
Second, MorphoSys will replace bestsellers with HuCAL antibodies with which there is the
possibility of increasing the profit margin. And third, the Company will further consolidate the
lucrative sub-business of producing research antibodies on behalf of customers - the so-called
custom business. By following this approach in the past fiscal year, MorphoSys has exceeded
the market growth rate.

In addition to organic growth, MorphoSys further improved the profitability of the segment.
In 2006, AbD Serotec achieved a gross margin of approximately 60 % and thus achieved the
objective set at the start of the year. With further automation of antibody selection, MorphoSys
aims to continue to improve the margin in the future.

The research antibodies market is currently undergoing a period of technological and structural
upheaval. Until recently, all research antibodies were developed using cutdated, animal-based
tachnologies. MorphoSys is confident that the market as a whole is ready for a technological shift
and that in the medium to long term, animal-based methods will be replaced by in vitro approaches
such as the Company’s HuCAL GOLD technology. Here, MorphoSys sees itself at the forefront.
In structural terms, the market is very fragmented, with a large number of small providers, and
a phase of consolidation has begun. MorphoSys’s ohjective is to continue to be actively involved
in this trend and it plans to look for suitable companies that could additionally strengthen the
research antibodies AbD Serotec unit.
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OPENING UP NEW APPLICATIONS FOR HUCAL ANTIBODIES

In August 2006, the AbD Serotec unit signed an agreement to become the exclusive supplier
for a project in the field of biological weapans defense. As part of this relationship, USAMRIID",
an organization of the United States Army Medical Research and Materiel Command and the
leading medical research institute for the United States’ defense program against bioterrorism,
requested research antibodies against five bacterial toxins*. AbD Serotec developed and supplied
these within five weeks with the help of MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD antibody library.

The successful signing of the contract with USAMRIID underlines the potential of the Company's
HuUCAL GOLD technology in the growing battle against biological weapons. The project bene-
fited especially from one central advantage of recombinant antibodies technology, specifically
the development of antibodies against toxic substances, which would be impossible with animal-
based methods.

In addition, MorphoSys has entered into a research coaperation with the renowned Japanese
Kazusa DNA Research Institute*. As part of this cooperation, both partners have jointly devel-
oped a series of research antibodies from MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLD antibody library. The anti-
bodies detect proteins from the Kazusa mKIAA cDNA project, the nbjective of which is to identify
and characterize previously unknown genes and the proteins encoded by them. Both partners
share the marketing rights and therefore these antibodies are now included in both the Kazusa
Institute and the MorphoSys Group sales catalogs.

VALUE ADDED FROM RESEARCH TO CLINICAL DEVELOPMENT

One of the synergies of MorphoSys’s business model is the potential for further development of
existing customer relationships into higher-priced operating segments. It is highly possible
that satisfied AbD Serotec customers, who thereby have initial exposure to MorphoSys’s core
technology, will decide to partner with MorphoSys for the development of their therapeutic or
diagnostic projects. MorphoSys has seen at least one user in the pharmaceutical industry switch
from being an AhD Serotec customer to a full therapeutic partner, based on satisfaction with
the technology.
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SYNERGY MODEL OF BUSINESS SEGMENTS

RESEARCH PROJECTS DIAGNOSTICS THERAPEUTICS

LA D RIS
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The AbD segment acts as a feeder for new diagnostic and therapeutic commercial applications, providing MorphoSys with access to
new markets for the Company’s technologies.

Antibodies used as research tools to identily and validate disease-related target molecules bear
the potential te act as diagnostic or therapeutic agents. The more research is performed using
HuCAL antibodies, the more likely it is that lucrative commercial opportunities for MorphoSys
will result, whether in the therapeutic, diagnostic field or in wider research applications. For this
reason, MorphoSys is actively promoting the uptake of its technology in the research community.
In 2006, MorphoSys signed a contract with the renowned US research center, the Burnham
Institute, that follows this rationale. The Burnham has access to novel HuCAL GOLD-based
research antibodies from AbD Serotec to identify and validate target molecules with potential
medical implications. MorphoSys retains commercialization rights for all antibodies emerging
from the collaboration both as research antibody tools distributed via the AbD Serotec sales
catalog as well as in therapeutic or diagnostic applications.
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ANTIBODY PRODUCTION

AT MORPHOSYS
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MorphoSys’s antibody library offers the opportunity to identify suitable antibodies for
a variety of applications in research, diagnostics or therapeutics. The Company has

a variety of methods that can be used to produce large quantities of antibodies for its
own purposes, as well as for its partners and customers. The production of thera-
peutic antibodies in particular is a process of considerable technical complexity with
associated high costs. For this reasen, among others, MorphoSys is always aiming to
improve on its current technology and monitors all innovations in this sector.

rom the first scientific use of antibodies until today,
F there hava been significant developments in meathods
for the production and application of antibodies. Antibodies
produced in animals were suitable only for a timited number
of research and medical applications, and only smail quanti-
ties could be prepared. The research of Nobel laureates
Georges ). F. Koehler and César Milstein in 1975 paved the
way for fundamental specific applications and led to @ mas-
sive increase in the use of antibodies in science and medi-
cine. Their tachnelogy, cailed hybridama technology, in which
an immortal blood cancer cell is fused with an antibody-
producing B cell derived predominantly from mice or rats, en-
abled the production of specific antibodies in large amounts.

Additionally, their discovery enabled far the first time the cen-
tinuous production of a defined monoclenal antibody that
recognized a characteristic target molecule, whereas earlier
methods produced a mixture of different antibodies.

Production methods were improved further by the introduc-
tion of synthetic methods based on gene technology, in
which the genetic blueprint required for the generation of

a protein is inserted into a host organism. At the end of the
1970s, these methods enabled the production of human
insulin in bacteria, and the introduction of such insulin for
the treatment of diabetes in 1982 was regarded as a major
milestone. Today, antibodies are alsc often produced using
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€ The production of monoclanal antibodies according te Keehler and Milstein uses antibody-producing B-cells from the spleen or lymph nodes of an animal that has been chal-
lenged several 1imes with the antigen of interest, €) These B-cells are then fused with B-ceil cancer cells that can grow indefinitely in culture but have lost the ability to produce
antibodies. & Being cancer cells the fused hybrid cells, called hybridomas, wiit multiply rapidly and indefinitely. & targe amounts of antibodies can therefore be produced.

recombinant methods. The most appropriate production
method is now selected largely according to the down-
stream application and the amount of antibody required.
Gver the past years, MorphoSys has established highly effi-
cient production platforms and currently uses al! the pro-
duction methods described below.

PRODUCTION IN BACTERIA

The advantages of producing antibodies in bacteria such as
Escherichia coli (known simply as £. coli} are mainly the rel-
atively safe and straightferward handling of bacterial cells
and the rapid replication cycles of microorganisms. Overalt,
bacteria are significantly less demanding than other cell
types used for antibody production. However, bacteria are
used to produca only smaller fragments of antibodies as
they lack tha cellular mechanisms needed to modify and
create the complex structure of a complete antibody mole-
cule. In the bacterial cell, the genetic information encoding
the antibody fragment is read and translated into a protein.
Thanks to a specific signal sequence, the resulting antibody

fragments accumulate in a specialized compartment inside
the cell, the periplasmic space. To harvest purified anti-
body, the antibody must be released by breaking up the
bacterial cells. Finally, all bacterial components and media
residues must be completely separated, as they may have
toxic effects in pharmaceutical applications of the anti-
body. A subsequent quality assurance step checks that
resulting antibodies perform according to specifications.

In 2005, MorphoSys, together with the company Wacker,
carried out a feasibility study of a new, £. cofi-based secre-
tion system. It differs from the bacterial production meth-
ods used until now, in that the bacteria release the protein
into the surrounding culture medium during the production
process. Wacker used this system for the production of
simple proteins for use in technical applications. The stud-
ies carried out on behalf of MorphoSys showed that this
system can a'so be used to produce antibody fragments for
use in therapeutic and research applications.
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The development of antibody production metheds over the course of the past decades has resulted in a broad specirum of systems and hosts used for production purposes. Teday,

2l of these are still in use but each system was continuously improved and upgraded over time. For the future, new approaches such as the production in transgenic organisms like

plants and animals are in discussion, Potential advantages of these methods include the possibility te produce farge amounts of antibody material in a costly manner.

PRODUCTION IN MAMMALIAN CELLS

Production of antibodies in bacterial cells is cost-effective,

but has its limitations. First, it yields only antibody frag-
ments, whereas intact antibodies in a format known as I1gG
are still most frequently used for therapeutic applications.
Furthermore, proteins produced in bacteria lack some of
the typical modifications found in mammalian cells.

For this reason mammalian cell lines have been used for produc-
tion in parallet with bacteriat cells. An example s the frequently

used CHO cell ling, which is derived from Chinese hamsters.
These cells can be used to produce larger amounts of protein.

However, a disadvantage of these cells is that antibcdy produc-

tion takes longer than in bacteria, because animal cells divide

only once every 24 hours, whereas bacteria divide every 20 min-

utes. Furthermore, although CHO cells are relatively robust,
some mammalian cell cuitures are extremely sensitive and
require stringently controlled conditions for optimal growth. A

furthar drawhack associated with using CHQO calls is the resuilt-

ing animal glycosylation patterns - the natural modification of

the antibody’s surface with sugar mclecules - which differ from

human patterns.

PRODUCTION IN FULLY HUMAN CELL LINES

MeorphoSys’s HuCAL antibodies are of fuily human origin in
both their amino acid sequence and in their structural con-
figuration. Furthermare, production in completely human cell
lines results in antibodies with a human glycasylation pat-
tarn. This makes the resulting antibodies even more similar
to their natural counterparts and minimizes the risk of side
effects from their use as drugs. This advantage is the main
driving factor for MorphoSys for producing therapeutic anti-
bodies in fully human cell lines,

In 2004, MorphoSys acquired rights to use human cell lines
from the companies Bayer and Crucell. Both cell lines were
tested in detail for the production of antibodies for different
application areas. In August 2005, Crucell’s PER.C6® cell
line was alsc selected for production of clinical antibody
material in the Company’s MOR103 program. The production
of the HuCAL antibody is being performed in the audited
production facilities of DSM Biofogics in Greningen, the
Netheriands.
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COST CONSIDERATIONS

Antibody production, whether to provide for clinical grade
material or for productien of the antibody product on an
industrial scale, makes a very significant contribution to the
cost of drug development for a number of reasons. The
development of biclogically active agents in living systems
requires multiple stages, in which the individual steps must
be optimally integrated. Starting from the establishment of

a cell culture capable of production, through the actual pro-
duction step, to fermentation, purification and transfer inte
a suitable application format, every step requires a very
narrow range of conditions. A critical consideration is that
every step in the production must conform to standards
required By international pharmaceutical authorities in order
to maximize the quality of the resulting drug and provide
the highest degree of security for patients treated with it.
However, setup and operation of suitable facilities is expen-
sive, and companies that offer antibedy production as a
service have to set their prices accordingy.

RESEARCH VS. THERAPEUTIC USE —

EFFECTS ON ANTIBODY PRODUCTION METHODS

While main drivers for improvements of production methoeds
in the therapeutic antibody sector are complex, considerations
in the research antibody space are relatively simple and aim

predominantly on an increase of high-throughput capabilities
and cost reduction. As an in vitro-based technology, MorphoSys's
HuCAL platform offers significant advantages in both aspects.
It is highly automatable and scalable, and thus allows MorphoSys
not only to cope with a huge amount of projects to run in paral-
lel, but also shows economies of scale effects. Anincrease in
the number of research antibodies preduced causes a decrease
in the average fixed cost of each unit.

FUTURE QUTLOOK

Antibody production remains a very active field with major
inngvattons, MorphoSys is directly involved at many levels.
Optimization of production methods increases the attractive-
ness of MorphoSys to pharmaceutical customers interested
in therapeutic antibodies. In the research antibody segment,
it promises reduction of production ¢ests and an associated
increase in profit margins.

Improvements are primarily aimed at a gradual improvement
of existing systems, but radical changes are being discussed
in the scientific world. Ideas such as antibodies produced in
plants, e. g. tobacco, or in various animals, have existed for
some years. Although these methods have not yet resulted in
a breakthrough, their potential, particularly for cost savings,
is of great interest to antibody companies.
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The MorphoSys Share

In 2006, MorphoSys was able to outperform the TecDAX by 7%
and charted an increase of 32 % on a year-on-year basis. Over
the course of 2006, MorphoSys succeeded in roughly doubling
the proportion of international institutional investors holding its
shares, reflecting the increasing globalization of its operations
and investor base.

POSITIVE DEVELOPMENT FOR THE CAPITAL MARKETS

On bhalance, 2006 was a year of positive performance in the global capital markets. Despite a
sharp decline in the late spring, the international capital markets showed an overall increase.
The primary US stock exchange index, the Dow Ienes, reached 12,530 points for the first time
in December 2006 and closed at 12,463 points at the end of the vear, an increase of 16%. The
lapanese Nikkei Index ended the year with an increase of 7%. For the German markets, the
DAX stood at 6,597 points at year-end, up 22 % over the beginning of the year. The German
TecDAX closed the year with an increase of 25%, although it was unable to repeat the high levels
it achieved in the second quarter of 2006.

Against the backdrop of an upheat mood for capital markets generally, the market value of the
pharmaceutical and biotechnological industries also benefited. Furthermore, this general growth
trend was supported by a number of positive developments in the industry, including several
well-received acquisitions and collaborations. The performance of the bictechnology industry
was significantly better in Eurepe than in the USA. [n this vein, the Prime IG Biotechnology
index rose by 19%, buoyed by investor sentiment and a number of long-awaited announcements,
including the out-licensing of Genmab’s CD20 antibody and several better than expected fund-
raising events, such as Amgen’s convertible bond offering in the amount of US$ 5 hillion. In
contrast, the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index managed only a slight increase of 1%. Viewed as a
whole, the financing volume for the industry exceeded US$ 21 billicn - the third best year in
its history.




In 2006, the MorphoSys share
outparformed the TecDAX

as well as the NASDAQ Biotech-
nology Index.
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The window for IPOs was only partially open. The European biotechnology sector counted a total
of 27 biotechnology [POs, compared to 21 in North America. Of the six biotech [POs in Germany,
five were listed at the General Standard or the Entry Standard. The majority of [POs in Europe
performed well and paved the way for several successful [POs in the final quarter. Success
stories in Europe included Wilex AG in Germany, Santhera in Switzerland and LifeCycle in
Denmark, Many of the companies new to the stock exchange in North America showed a posi-
tive performance as well, with an increase in average of 42% from the issue share price.

THE MORPHOSYS SHARE {lanuary 2, 20046 - 100%}
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MORPHOSYS'S SHARE OUTPERFORMS BENCHMARK

The MorphoSys share continued its past positive price performance and closed the fiscal year
with an increase of 32 %, compared to 8% for 2005. The share thus cutperformed the TecDAX,
which in¢reased by 25% in the same period.

Since September 2004, MorphoSys has been a member of the TecDAX index, which includes the
30 largest technology stocks on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. At the end of 2006, the Company
occupied 26th place based on market capitalization (December 31, 2005: 26th place) and 15th
place based on trading volume {December 31, 2005: 15th place).
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Stock liquidity remained relatively high. The average daily trading volume was € 2.4 million

per day - an increase of 70% compared 1o 2005. In the same period, the daily trading volume of
the TecDA X index increased by 70%. The daily average trading volume as a percentage of mar-

ket capitalization was above 1% in 2006 and as a result, MorphoSys was one of the most liquid

German biotech companies for the vear.

KEY DATA FOR THE MORPHOSYS SHARE IN 2004

Dgutsche Bdrse, Prime Standard, Franl;fgrt )
Securi

Identification Number
International Securities |dentification Number

~ Steck Exchange Abbreviation

) Reuters

TecDAX, and others

free Float as of December 31, 2006" o BTK
Market Capitalization as of December 31, 006 ~€365m|lllon N

* Definition of free fleat in accerdance with Deutsche Borse

INCREASE IN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS

According to an external shareholder analysis study conducted at the end of 2006, institutional
shareholders, primarily European investment funds, hold approximately 40% of outstanding
shares; in 2005, this figure had been approximately 20%. Private investors hold approximately
40%. Members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board held approximately 3% of
total share capital.

At the end of 2006, the two largest shareholders held 13% of shares. Novartis Pharma holds
approximately 7% of total shares, which were acquired as part of the strategic partnership with
MorphoSys in May 2004. AstraZeneca holds a further 6% of total shares.

Although a significant holder in 2005, Berlin-based Schering AG fell below the reporting
threshold of 5% in March 2006 and now no longer holds any MorphoSys shares.
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE

Novartis 7%

AstraZeneca 4%

Management/Supervisory Board 3%

Institutional Shareholders 40%

Private Shareholders and Others  44%

Number of institutional

investers roughly doubled
in 2006, Qf

Non Free Free Float (87 %)
Float (13%)

CORPORATE EQUITY TRANSACTIONS IN 2006

Two significant equity transactions* were completed by MorphoSys during the 2006 fiscal year.
As part of the acquisition of the Serotec Group in January 2006, one-third of the purchase price,
or 208,560 shares, was acquired by means of a capital increase against contribution in kind.
These new shares arising from the capital increase, representing 3.5% of share capital, were
issued to former shareholders of the Serotec Group and are subject to a graduated holding period.

CAPITAL MEASURES IN 2006

_Ordinary Shares lssued (December 31,2008 6025863
Capital Increase Against Contributicn in Kind as Part of the Acquisition
of the Serotec Group (January 12, 2006) 208,560
Cash (Ség)rital Increase (March 29, 2006) oo 384338 VVVVVVVV
Converslon of Stock Options and Corvertivle Bonds by Employees 96,561
) Ordmary Shares issued {December 31, 2006) 6,716,322

In March 2004, an offering to institutional shareholders in an overnight private placement
resulted in 384,338 new shares placed to European institutional shareholders. The offer price
was € 44.50 and the cash-based capital increase resulted in gross proceeds for MorphoSys
amounting to € 17.1 miltion, The proceeds from the cash capital increase is intended to be used
for further acquisitions in the field of research antibodies.
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FURTHER EXPANSION QF CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

In 2006, MorphoSys improved its corporate communications. First and foremost, the Company
expanded its focus to increase its outreach to investors in other countries. Company manage-
ment conducted numerous ene-on-one meetings and participated in several IR conferences,
particularly in the USA, with the aim of obtaining new investors. The launch of the ADR* Level 1
program in lanuary 2006 was an additional element that established a platform from which US
investors could gain easier access to MorphoSys shares in US dollars.

ADR LEVEL { PROGRAM

Type of Program Sponsored Level | ADR Program

Over the course of the year, more than 200 investor meetings were held in ten countries. The
Management Board presented MorphoSys’s business model and strategy at a total of 21 interna-
tional investar conferences.

As of December 31, 2006, 13 analysts regularly produced analyst reparts on the Company’s
progress, as compared to twelve in the previous. At that date, analyst coverage of MorphoSys
remained primarily positive, with nine stating “Buy” or the equivalent, three “Sell” or the
equivalent and ene “Hold” or the equivalent (2005: five “Buy,” two “Sell” and three “Hold”).

LIST WITH ANALYSTS {IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER)
B. Metzler seel. Sohn & Co. KGaA

Berenberg Bank*

Landesbank Baden-wirtte
MIDAS Research GmbH

Vontobel
WestLB AG

* Added in 2006
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In 2000, the MorphoSys
share continued its past positive price

e rfo I\ma n C e The Company expanded its focus ta increase its cutreach to investors in other
p " countries particularly in the USA, with the aim of obtaining new investors. Qvear the

course of the year, more than 200 investor meetings were held in ten countries.

During 2004, the Company also overhauled the Company’s website in order to improve the
capabhilities for providing company information. Several improvements have been incorporated
as a result, For example, financial conference call playbacks are now available as podcasts, and
hoth press releases and ad-hac information can now be subscribed 10 via RSS. The Company also
promptly provides a transcript of the conference calls, including all questions and answers, in
both German and English.

[n recognition of the quality of its corporate communications, MorphoSys received a number
of awards for its 2005 Annual Report. MorphoSys was placed 3rd in the German Manager Magazin

@ ranking for “Best Annual Report 2005” in the TecDAX segment. Additionally, the MorphoeSys
Annual Report was awarded the LACP Vision Award {platinum medal and 1st place in the
“Biotechnology™ category) and the silver medal overall for the Annual Report Competition
(ARC) Award, which is awarded by the International Academy of Arts and Sciences/MerComm,
[nc. (New York, USA).

Finally, MorpheSys won an award for excellence in its finance department in the annual STEP
Award competition in the category “Financials.” The award initiated in 2006 by Infraserv
Hochst and F.A.Z.-Institut -~ [nnovationsprojekte honors growth companies in the areas of
pharmaceutics, chemistry, life sciences as well as bio- and nanotechnology. In 2006, some
100 companies from Germany, Switzerland and Austria applied for the STEP Award.
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Tschimegma Bataa harvests
IgG-antibodies that have been produced in
mammalian Cell IImes. e e o e ™

projects. Although antibody production remains a dynamic field,
MorphoSys continues to set new standards of excellence.
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Interview with Paul J. Hastings

PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, ONCOMED PHARMACEUTICALS

N

PAUL ). HASTINGS has more than 20 years'
experience in the biotechnology and pharma-
ceutical industries. Before joining OncoMed,
he held leading positions in a number of com-
panies, including QLT, Chiron, Genzyme and

F. Hoffmann-La Roche. In addition to these
roles, he is actively involved in the develop-
ment of the biotechnclogy industry and serves
on ihe board of the Bay Area Biotechnology
Association as well the Biotechnology Industry
Organization (BIO) and served as a director on
the board of Canada's BC Biotech Association.
Mr. Hastings received a Bachelor of Science
degree in Pharmacy from the University of
Rhode Island.
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In June 2006, MorphoSys announced an agreement with the US biotechnology company OncoMed
Pharmaceuticals. OncoMed is a young start-up cempany that focuses on a relatively new and
exciting approach to cancer therapy - targeting a recently appreciated subset of tumor cells known
as cancer stem cells. Research by OncoMed's scientists shows that substances such as futly human
antibodies, which attack and kill cancer stem cells, could improve therapy for a variety of cancers,
such as breast, lung or colon cancer.

morpHOSsYs  Mr. Hastings, can you explain what cancer stem cells are and the role you believe they play in
carcinogengsis?

pauL HasTINGS  Cancer stem cells were recently identified as a smatl subset of tumar cells that are uniquely
responsible for the growth and proliferation of tumers. They show properties that are typical
of stem cells, such as self-renewal and the potential to differentiate. In marked conirast, the
bulk of the cells that comprise the tumor are more differentiated cells that no longer possess
self-renewal potential. As such, cancer stem cells may be responsible for both extensive tumor
growth and for enabling the tumer to spread through the body by forming metastases. They
are therefore the central element in a new theory of carcinogenesis.

MORPHOSYS  How does the cancer stem cell concept alter our perspective on the development of cancer
therapeutics?

PAUL HASTINGS  The standard dogma has been that a tumor is simply a collection of mutant cells that divide
endlessly. Taking cancer stem cells into consideration completely alters our understanding of
tumor development. Instead of being just a group of degenerate cells, a tumor is more of a dis-
regulated “organ,” comprised of cancer stem cells and specialized tumor cells that have arisen
from these stem cells. Standard therapies often fail to eliminate cancer stem cells, which have a
number of properties that render them selectively resistant to radiation and chemotherapy. This
makes them extremely dangerous and could explain why although tumors often initially disap-
pear after chemotherapy, they tend to come back later. A therapeutic approach that is targeted
specifically to cancer stem cells could therefore have a better chance of success.
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Who developed the basic principle underlying this approach, and who is leading the research at
OncoMed ?

The founder of OncoMed, Michael Clarke, with his team from the University of Michigan, was
the first to demonstrate the existence of cancer stem cells within solid tumors, such as breast
cancer. This discovery and previous work done by researchers at the University of Torento dem-
onstrating a fundamental role for cancer stem cells in leukemia laid the foundations for the
canger stem cell field. OncoMed was founded with the aim of translating this seminal scientific
advance into a medical application and commercial use.

Dr. John Lewicki leads our research and development teamn at OncoMed, John came to us from
the biotechnology company Scios Inc., where he managed research for a number of years, At
Scios, he was closely involved in the discovery of the drug Natrecor™ for congestive heart fail-
ure. Dr. Austin Gurney and Dr. Tim Hoey work with him. Tim identified oncogenes as Director
of Tumor Biology at Tularik /Amgen and developed drugs to target those genes, Austin came to
OncoMed with 2 years' experience at Genentech, where his team discovered and patented
numerous growth factors and cytokines involved in control of cell growth and behavior, several
of which have entered clinical development. All in all, we have a highly experienced team.

What is OncoMed’s strategy for attacking these cancer stem cells and what role do antibodies
play in this?

We are focused on developing antibodies as therapeutic agents that selectively target cancer
stem cells. Antibodies have been among the most successful and innovative anti-cancer drugs
in recent years. Products such as Avastin®, Herceptin® and Rituxan® have greatly improved the
treatment of certain types of cancer and generate annual sales of over € 5 billion.
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Why have you decided 1o use MorphoSys’s HuCAL technology as the source for your antibodies?

We have already developed an extensive collection of antibodies using traditional mouse hyhrid-
oma technology. However, as a company focused on developing antibody-based therapeutics,
we feel it is vital to utitize the best available antibody technologies. In particular, the ability to
develop humanized or fully human antibodies as therapeutic candidates is very important.
We looked at all the systems on the market and decided to use HuCAL technology as we believe
the targeted, optimized approach that is HuCAL hest serves our needs.

The subject of stem cells has provoked lively ethical debate in recent years. How is your work
connected Lo this debate?

Cancer stem cetls are not to be confused with embryenic stem cells. Embryonic stem cells are
normal, healthy stem cells that give rise to a variety of tissues and organs. The harvesting and
scientific application of these cells takes center stage in the stem cell discussion. Cancer stem
cells, on the other hand, oceur within cancer patients as a population of tumor cells with the
capacity for self renewal, but they can only turn into more tumor cells. As such, they can be
considered as “evil” or “had” stem cells, and there are no ethical arguments against fighting
them.

The appraach has not yet been clinically validated. What makes you so confident that it will
eventually lead to new cancer therapies?

Of course there is no guarantee of success, as with all new scientific advances. However, it is
becoming increasingly clear, as evidenced by the avalanche of publications in top scientific
journals, that cancer stem cells underlic many il not all cancers. Recent work highlights their
role in such major diseases as breast, colon and brain tumors as well as leukemia. We are com-
mitted to demanstrating the value of targeting these cancer stem cells and believe that this
approach will provide real benefit to patients.

Thank you very much for the interview, Mr, Hastings.




— 036




037 -

Daniel Blyth focuses on defining
which antibodies scientists will need for their
research in the future. bt oo s Odod sentsis rom 4:b Servee

test systems. Through this process, customers of AbD gain access
to new products that specifically meet their research naeds,

JN

A
S
il
T & . \
| |
/ ==
/// T :




- 038

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance is most often viewed as both the internal
structures and the cooperation between the Management Board
and Supervisory Board which determine corporate direction and
performance. Responsible corporate governance supports the
Company’s long-term value creation and strengthens the trust
of shareholders, customers, business partners, employees,
politics and the public in MorphoSys.

1C

GERMAN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The aim of the German Corporate Governance Code is to make Germany’s corporate governance*
rules transparent for both national and international investors, thus strengthening confidence
in the management of German corporaticns. In 2006, the German Corporate Governance Code
was amended by resolution of the Government Commission charged with its administration. The
revised form affects the relevant provisions of the Management Compensation Disclosure Law
{VorstOG) and the effects of the Law on Corporate Integrity and Modernization of the Right of
Avoidance (UMAG). These changes mainly itvolved a more detailed individualized disclosure
of management compensation and strengthened the rights of the chairman of the annual gen-
aral meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ON MORPHOSYS'S WEBSITE

Important information regarding corporate governance can be found on MorphoSys’s website:
http:y//www.morphosys.com.

e A

Declaration of Conformity (including past years)
http://www.morphosys.com/en/news_investors/declaration_of_conformity-127.htmi

Code of Ethics
htip://www.morphosys.com/en/news_investors/corporate_governance-119.htm!

Shareholdings and Insider Transactions of the Management and Supervisory Board

http://www.morphosys.com/en/news_investors/directors-124_html

N /
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CONFORMITY WITH THE GERMAN GORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Each year, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys AG submit their de-
claration of conformity with the recommendations of the Government Commission German Cor-
porate Governance Code in accordance with article 161 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AKIG).
MorphoSys has adapted its internal standards and policies to the amended code as required.
Since 2003, MorphoSys publishes an extensive Corporate Governance Report each year, includ-
ing the disclosure of the compensation of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board in
the Remuneration Report.

MorphoSys complies and will comply in the future with the recommendations of the German
Corporate Governance Code as amended on June 12, 2006, with two exceptions only {see below).
Moreover, MorphoSys fully complies with all suggestions (discretionary provisions) of the Ger-
man Corporate Governance Code on a voluntary basis.

DECLARATION OF CONFORMITY
The following declaration of conformity, together with those of previous years, has been made
permanently available to the public on the Company’s website:

At the meeting on December 12, 2006, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board
approved the following Declaration of Compliance pursuant to sec. 161 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (AktG):

MorphoSys AG complies and will comply with all recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code - in the version of June 12, 2006 - with the following exceptions:

« The stock option program for the Management Beard does not provide a cap for unforeseen
developments within the meaning of Cede sec. 4.2.3, since the reasonableness of the amount of
stock optiens for the Management Board has already been considered at the time of the grant.

= The present D& G insurance policy at MorphoSys AG includes a deductible for Management and
Supervisory Board members (Code sec. 3.8, para. 2), the magnitude of which, however, may be at
a level which does not comply with the requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code.

With these two exceptions, MorphaSys AG has also complied with the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Code in the time period since its Declaration of Compliance of
December 2005.

Martinsried/Planegg, December 12, 2006
MorphoSys AG

Management Board and Supervisory Board
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CODE OF ETHICS

In 2003, MorphoSys introduced a cade of ethics directed at the members of the Management
Board and those persons responsible for finance, controlling and accounting at the Gompany.
Senior Management and the Company’s financial staff have an important and distinctive role
within the Company's corporate governance in that these personnel are authorized and entrusted
te ensure that accurate financial information is speedily provided to investors.

DUAL MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISORY STRUCTURE

As a German stock corporation, MorphoSys has a dual management and supervisory structure.
The members of the Management Board are appointed by the Supervisory Board and are respon-
sible for the management of the Company. The Management Board and the Supervisory Board
cooperate closely to the benefit of the Company.

The Management Board* of MorphoSys AG consists of three members and has a chairman.
Terms of reference regulate the allocation of areas of responsibility and the cooperation within
the Management Board.

= Dr. Simon E. Moroney, Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for the business segment AbD -
Antibodies Direct, Business Development, Intellectual Property and Licensing as well as
Human Resources.

= Mr. Dave Lemus, Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for Controlling and Accounting, Cor-
porate Development, Treasury, Corporate Legal, Corporate Communications and Investor Rela-
tions as well as Technical Operations including IT.

o Dr. Marlies Sproll, Chief Scientific Officer, is respansible for Research and Development as
well as Alliance Management.

The Management Board members have no additienal mandates in supervisery boards of other
publicly listed companigs, Dr. Moroney acts as an advisor for Complex Biosystems GmbH, Heidel-
herg, Germany. Mr. Lemus was elected and serves presently as CEOQ and Treasurer of the Munich
[nternaticnal School. Both positions were approved by the Supervisory Board.

The Supervisory Board* advises the Management Board and oversees its management activities,
Currently, the Supervisory Board consists of six professionally qualified members, representing
the Campany’s shareholders.

The Supervisory Board has a comprehensive monitoring function. To fulfill this duty, three com-
mittees were established to prepare the decisions for the Supervisory Board. Suggestions of the
committees are reported to the Supervisory Board plenum: decisions are generally made by the
Supervisory Board as a whole,
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COMPOSITION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD COMMITTEES

MEMBERSHIP IN THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES

END OF AUDIT REMUNERATIGN AND SCIENGE AND
TERM COMMITTEE NOMINATION COMMITTEE TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE
Dr. Gerald Méller, 2008 X
Chairman {Chairmap)
Prof. Dr. Jirgen Drews,
Deputy Chairman 201 X X
Dr. Daniet Camus 2008 X
Dr. Metin Colpan 2008 X X
Prof. Dr. Andreas Plickthun 201 X
[Chairman)
Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon 2008 X
{Chairman}

The Supervisory Board has issuad terms of reference.

Information about additional mandates held by members of the Supervisory Board in supervisory
bodies of other companies is summarized on pages 146-147. Detailed information on the work
of the Supervisory Board is contained under the chapter entitled “Supervisory Board Report”
on pages 142-145.

During the fiscal year 2006, no conflict of interest was reported, either for a member of the
Management Board or for a member of the Supervisory Board.

DIRECTORS' HOLDING

The ownership* of MorphoSys AG shares or related financial instruments by Management Board
and Supervisory Beard members exceeds 1% of the shares issued by the Company. For the dis-
closure of Company stocks held or financial instruments relating to them, please refer to sec-
tion 23 of the Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements. This list separately shows all the
stocks, stock options and convertible bends held by each member of the Management Board and
the Supervisory Board.
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DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS

[n 2006, MorphoSys reported the following sales of the Company’s shares pursuant to section
15a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Each sale of shares listed below was pre-
ceded directly by the exercise of stock options/convertible bonds to purchase an identical
number of shares.

DATE OF NUMBER OF

MEMBER OF THE TRANSACTION TYPE OF S5HARE PRICE STOCKS/

MANAGEMENT BOARD FUNCTION IN 2006 TRANSACTION in € DERIVATIVES
- a e Py rr's -e a

Dr. Simon E. Moroney CEO Sept. 25, 2006 Sale 46_.18 _ _ 7474

Mr. Dave Lemus CFO Qct. 12, 2006 Sale 4926 6,228

Dr. Marlies Sproll Cs0 Aug. 17, 2006 Sale 43.46 3,741

Sales of the above convertible bonds were in conjunction with the scheduled expiration of these
bonds at year-end 2006.

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting took place on May 17, 2006, in Munich. Approximately 30%
of the entire voting stock was represented at the meeting, comparable with the attendance in
2005. MorphoSys assisted the shareholders in the use of proxies and arranged the appointment
of a representative to exercise shareholders’ voting rights in accordance with instructions. This
representative was also available at any time during the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. For the
first time, MorphoSys provided a webcast of the speech of the Management Board online.

TRANSPARENCY, REPORTING AND THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Providing transparency and timely information for the shareholders is a high priority for the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board. In that vein, MorphoSys set itself the goal of
exceeding the regulations of the German Corporate Governance Coede and reports its year-end
results within 60 days and the quarterly results within 30 days of the end of the respective
periods.

MorphoSys strictly ensures that no shareholder receives preferential information - all commu-
nications, including with individual investors during one-on-ones or roadshows, provide the
same level of information.
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The corporate website plays a central role as an extensive information platform. MorphoSys
provides manuscripts of conference calls in German and in English shortly after the completion
of the conference calls. Furthermore, MorphoSys informs its stakeholders about the current situa-
tion of the Company and ahout the earnings by the following means (in German and English):

s Press releases

= Quarterly reports

= Telephone conferences after important news releases and after the publication
of quarterly results

o Yearly press conference

IR conferences in and outside of Germany

o Shareholders’ newsletter

The Annual Shareholders” Meeting appointed KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktien-
gesellschaft Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft as auditar for the 2006 fiscal year. KPMG issued
a declaration of independence.
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With the help of antibodies, Carol Zehetmeier
locates the position of individual proteins
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thereby providing its partners with therapeutic candidates that best meet their
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Group Management Report

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT 2006

As a globally present research-based biotechnology company, MorphoSys operates in an ever-
changing environment that presents both opportunities and challenges for its business. A strong
fundamental demand for new therapeutics and research tools underpins the Company’s future
growth prospects. With Group revenues of € 53.0 million and an operating profit of € 6.2 mil-
lion, MorphoSys surpassed its financial goals set at the beginning of the year 2006. This posi-
tive development was attributable, first and foremost, to the strong demand for MorphoeSys’s
proprietary antibody technology HuCAL, as well as the industry-wide need for therapeutic anti-
bodies and research tools.

The MorphoSys Group operates in two corporate segments, with headquarters based in Martins-
ried, near Munich, Germany. The corporate segments are responsible for business operations
and represent the segments required for the purposes of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT
The Therapeutic Antibodies segment comprises MorphoSys’s activities in the area of therapeu-
tic antibodies, which includes its therapeutic antibody collaborations with pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, as well as its proprietary antibody development programs. In 2006,
MorphoSys was able to sign new partnerships with Daiichi Sankyo, OncoMed, and Schering-
Plough, and existing partnerships with Novartis, Pfizer, and Roche were expanded. After Bayer AG's
acquisition of Schering AQ, the collaborations with the two companies were consolidated under
the existing contract with Schering AG. At the beginning of 2000, the second HuCAL anti-
hody entered phase 1 clinical trials, and the Company ended the year with 43 active partnered
therapeutic antibody programs. The proprietary antibedy programs MOR103 and MOR202 are
well on track. For MOR202, a formal preclinical development candidate was selected by the
end of 2006, and for MOR103, MorphoSys expects to file for an IND (investigational new drug)
in the secand half of 2007. Total revenues of the Therapeutic Antibodies segment increased by
19% to € 34.7 million, thus representing 65% of total Company revenues.
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ABD — RESEARCH ANTIBODIES SEGMENT
In 2006, MorphoSys continued to build its Research Antibedies business segment, or AbD,

by acquiring the UK- and US-based Serotec Group. The segment comprises the former brands
“Antibodies by Design”, “Biogenesis”, and “Serotec”. During 2006, all brands were renamed
and all products of the segment are now marketed under AbD - Antibedies Direct. AbD is active
in the field of research antibodies, and distributes research antibodies through a comprehensive
sales catalog. Furthermore, AbD offers custom monoclonal antibodies, and provides contract
manufacturing services. The Research Antibodies segment contributed revenues of € 18.3 mil-
lion, representing about 35% of total Company revenues.

MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

MorphoSys provides its proprietary antibody technology HuCAL for national and international
customers for therapeutic, research and diagnostic applications. The Therapeutic Antibodies seg-
ment operates under the Company’s name MorphoSys, the Research Antibodies segment under
the brand name AbD — Antibodies Direct. The Company operates globally and is represented

with offices in Germany, in the UK and the United States as well as in Norway and in France.
Furthermore, MorphoSys has established a distribution network with more than 100 distributors,
to serve customers in more than 70 countries, including all major economic regions.

MorphoSys has a dual management and supervisory structure. The Group is managed by the
Management Board. The Supervisory Board advises the Management Board and monitors its
management activities. The Management Board is responsible for all operational activities of
both segments of the Company. The subsidiaries are managed by managing directors, who
report to the Management Board of MorphoSys AG.

MACROECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

ECONCMIC DEVELOPMENT IN 2006

The world economy continued its growth track in 2006. World gross domestic product {GDP)
increased by approximately 5%, compared with about 4% in 2005. In 2006, economic growth
focused on the rapidly developing countries of Asia, Latin America as well as Central and East-
ern Europe. In the developed industrial nations, economic conditions remained positive. The
exchange rate of the US dollar and the euro remained largely stable, with an upwards trend for
the euro towards the end of the year. By contrast, energy and raw material prices again rose sharply.
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Growth rates in the United States slowed slightly during the year with economic grewth in (13
2006 heing the towest since 2003. In the United States, signs of inflationary pressures and
labor market tensions as well as higher interest rates, rising gasoline prices and signs of weaken-
ing in the property sector were offset by continued strong consumer spending.

The economy in the Eurozone is experiencing the strongest upturn since the year 2000. In 2006,
growth in the Eurozone was above its multi-year average at around 2.5%. The German GDF
grew by approximately 2.5% in 2006, the strongest rate in five years. As a result of the economic
upswing, unemployment in Germany has fallen below the 10% threshold for the first time in
several years.

The Asian economic region again experienced sustained growth during 2006. The Chinese
economy grew by approximately 11%, driven by high exports and a strong rise in capital
spending. In Japan, the moderate upward trend continued thanks to an increase in domestic
demand.

DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE PHARMACEUTICAL AND BIOTECHNOLOGY SECTOR

Global pharma growth rate in the sector has slowed significantly during the last years, but
according to IMS Heaith, future growth rates are expected to stabilize at 5% to 8% until 2010.
During 2006, pharmaceutical companies faced several industry challenges, including pipeline
and pricing pressure, government regulations, major blockbuster drugs such as the cholesterol-
lowering drug Zocor® {Merck & Co.) and anti-nausea drug Zofran® {(GlaxoSmithKline) going

off patent, and the appearance of biosimilars on the horizon. Additionally, the FDA continued
its cautious stance, adding risk warnings and low number of approvals. Nevertheless, there
were also positive developments, European authorities have speeded up the approval procedures,
and it is widely hoped that the recent appointment of a new FDA commissioner will result in
shorter approval time and less risk aversion. Additionally, several preduct approvals and the
lahel extensions of successful drugs such as Avastin® and Herceptin® had a positive impact on
the industry.

To maintain growth rates, pharmaceutical companies are under pressure to acquire innovative
products and technologies, resulting in increased M & A activity between pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies. Abbott Laboratories’ acquisition of Kos Pharmaceuticals for approxi-
mately US$ 3.7 billion is one example of this trend, the primary motive for the transaction be-
ing Abbott’s goal of obtaining access to the cholesterol drug market. Other examples in 2006 in-
clude Pfizer's acquisition of PowderMed to strengthen the company’s entrance into the vaccine
market, and Merck & Co.'s purchase of Sirna Therapeutics to get access to RNAI a technology
for the regulation of gene activity. M& A activity in the biopharmaceutical industry often comes
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in waves based on the changing strategic needs of pharmaceutical companies and the develop-
ments in the capital markets for biotechnology companies. [n contrast to the recent past, when
pharmaceutical companies were predominantly interested in license agreemenis and partner-
ships, today acquisitions appear to have greater strategic importance.

Antibody- and proiein-based technologies and companies have been particularly sought after.
The year 2006 saw a further decreasing of competition in the antibody industry. This was pre-
dominantly attributable to the acquisition of two main competitors of MorphoSys, namely the
acquisition of Abgenix by Amgen at the end of 2005, and the takeover of Cambridge Antibody
Technelogy (CAT) by AsiraZeneca in May 2006. [n addition, Merck & Co. announced the acquisi-
tion of two antibody technology companies, Abmaxis and GlycoFi, and Novartis bought NeuTec
Pharma, a biotechnology company developing antibodies for infectious diseases. Finally, in Sep-
tember 2006, Amgen acquired Avidia, a privately held biopharmaceutical company that dis-
covers and develops a new class of human therapeutics known as Avimer™ proteins.

At the end of 2006, 20 therapeutic antibodies were approved. In June 2006, Tysabri®, marketed
by Biogen Idec and Elan, was reintroduced as a monotherapy treatment for relapsing forms of
multiple sclerosis {MS). Tysabri® had been recalled in 2005 after cases of rare and fatal neurg-
logical disease occurred in connection with the use of the drug. In June 2006, Lucentis® (Genen-
tech) received approval for the treatment of neovascular (wet) age-related macular degeneration
(AMD}. And in September 2006, Amgen's Vectibix™, developed by Abgenix to treat metastatic
colorectal cancer, was approved by the FDA, thus becoming the 20th antibody drug on the market,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

REVENUES

In the fiscal year 2006, revenues increased by 58% to € 53.0 million year-on-year {2005; € 33.5 mil-
lion). Reasens for the increase included revenues arising from extended deals, the inclusion of
success-hased payments from existing collaborations, as wel! as the inclusion of Serotec Group
revenues, contributing 23% of total revenues. Revenues arising from the Therapeutic Antibodies
segment accounted for 65% or € 34.7 million of total revenues, while the AbD segment generated
35% (€ 18.3 million) of the total. Total Company organic growth amounted to 22 % compared to
the same period in 2005, Approximately 42 % of total Group revenues resulted from MorphoSys’s
three largest alliances with Novartis, Centocor and Roche (2005: 64 % from Novartis, Centocor
and Schering). Geographically, 62% of MorphoSys's commercial revenues were generated with
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies located in Europe and Asia, compared to 38% in
North America (see also Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — saction 2). This
compares to 56% and 42 % respectively, in the year 2005.
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REVENUE SPLIT {in %)

56% 42%

42% 8%
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® Europe& Asia * North America

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT
The Therapeutic Antibodies segment comprises all collaborations with a strong therapeutic
and licensing aspect to them. [n 2006, this segment generated its revenues with the following
antibody collaborations: Bayer, Boehringer Ingelheim, Bristol-Myers Squibb, Centocor {Johnson
&Johnson), Daiichi Sankyo, Eli Lilly, F. Hoffmann-La Roche, ImmunoGen, Merck & Co., Novartis,
Novoplant, OncoMed, Pfizer, Schering, Schering-Plough, and Shionogi. The Therapeutic Anti-
bodies segment also includes all activities in the area of proprietary product development. [ts total
revenues enclose € 27.2 million funded research and paid license fees, as well as € 7.5 million
success-based payments (which include clinical milestones).

ANTIBODIES DIRECT - ABD SEGMENT
The AbD segment, embracing the Serotec Group, MorphoSys's Antibodies by Design unit and
the Biogenesis Group, generated 35% (€ 18.3 million) of total revenues. The Serotec Group, new-
ly acquired in January 2006, contributed € 12.3 million in revenues, or 67 % of the total segment
revenues. The Group alse recorded grant revenues of € 0.2 million (2005: € 0.4 million) during
the reporting period.

As of December 31, 2006, orders in the amount of € 2.5 million were classified as back orders
in the segment.

QPERATING EXPENSES (in million €)

2.5 14.0 10.8
2005 [ e Sl A — . ]
8.0 12.5 214
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OPERATING EXPENSES

In the fiscal year 2006, operating expenses increased by 72% to € 46.9 million {2005; € 27.3
million), with operating profit remaining almost unchanged at € 6.2 million (2005: € 6.2 mil-
lion). The total increase in operating expenses of € 19.6 million was mainly due to the inclusion
aof the Serotec Group in the consolidated accounts with an impact of € 13.8 million, due to higher
personnel-related costs in conjunction with new collaborations, and increased expenses for
proprietary product development.

Stock-based compensation expenses amounting to € 1.2 million are embedded in cost of goods
sold, sales, general and administrative expenses as well as research and development expenses,
and changed little in comparison to the previous year, remaining as a non-cash charge.

Applying IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” under IFRS accounting, a purchase price allocation
(PPA) is currently carried out for the Serotec acquisition. The resulting preliminary vatues were
retroactively recognized to the purchase date, and amortizaticn as well as depreciation of assets
identified were included in total operating expenses during the year 2006. Total PPA effects on
operating profit including the Serotec acquisition amounted to € 1.5 million {2005: € 1.0 million).

COST OF GOODS $OLD [COGS)

COGS is composed of the AbD segment’s cost of goods sold during the year 2006 and includes
the amartization of assets identified in connection with the Biogenesis and Serotec PPAs. In 2006,
COGS rose significantly to € 8.0 million compared to € 2.5 million in the year 2005, which re-
sulted mainly from the € 5.5 million inclusion of Serotec CGGS in the consolidated Group accounts
and the inclusion of € 0.7 million depreciation of inventories resulting from the purchase price
allocation exercise in conjunction with acquired companies.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (RAD] EXPENSES

In 2006, research and development expenses increased by € 3.5 million to € 17.5 million {2005:
€ 14.0 million). This was mainly the result of expenses for product and technology development
amounting to € 3.0 million. The impact on R& D through the amortization of intangibles of
acquired companies amounted to € 0.8 million.
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SALES, GENERAL AMD ADMINISTRATIVE (S, G&A) EXPENSES
Sales, general and administrative expenses amounted te € 21.4 million compared to € 10.8 mil-
licn in the previous year. The increase is mainly derived from the inclusion of the Serotec Group
in the amount of € 8.3 million, higher S, G & A personnel costs at MorphoSys AG in Munich, and
integration costs associated with acquired companies.

COST BY EXPENDITURE TYPE
For the year 2006, personnel costs (excluding expenses arising from stock-based compensation)
amounted to € 18.1 million (2005: € 10.8 million) or 39 % of total operating expenses, thus rep-
resenting the largest cost block within operating expenses in the year 2006. The higher person-
nel costs arose mainly from the increased head count resulting from the inclusion of Serotec Ltd.
and its affiliates and frem the Group’s expanded overall operational activity.

External services, representing the second-largest cost block by cost type and mainly consist-
ing of marketing expenses, legal costs, costs for tax, auditing and accounting as well as general
consulting, amounted to € 6.1 million (2005 € 2.9 million) or 13% of total operating expenses
in 2006. Mast heavily impacting these costs in 2006 were proprietary drug development and
the inclusion of marketing costs from the Seratec Graup.

Infrastructure costs included rent costs as well as depreciation of property and equipment and
impacted operating expenses by € 5.9 millien (2005: € 3.0 million) or 13% in 2006. Increased
infrastructure costs were primarily the result of the inclusion of the acquired Serotec Group of
companies. The Company leases for facilities on a group level amounted to € 1.7 million and

£ 0.9 million for the full years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 respectively.

COST BY EXPENDITURE TYPE

Personnel Cost 39%
Cost for External Services 13%
Infrastructure Cost 13%
Gthers 35%

39% 13% 13% 35%
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NON-OPERATING ITEMS (NON-TAX)

Non-operating expenses excluding 1axes amounted to € 0.9 million compared to non-operating
expenses of € 1.0 million in the year 2005. Losses on foreign exchange totaled € 1.2 million
and resulted mainly from contracts with commercial partners who share such foreign gains
and losses. Bank fees and interest expenses (€ 0.3 million) were more than offset by gains from
available-for-sale securities (€ 0.7 million).

TAXES

Income tax expenses of € 1.2 million were partly offset by amortization of deferred tax liabili-
ties resulting from the Biogenesis and Serotec PPAs (€ 0.5 million). Furthermore, tax expenses
comprised withholding tax (€ 0.2 million) retained from payments made by foreign customers.

As a result of the forecast for taxable income in 2007, a deferred tax asset on tax loss carry-
forwards has heen capitalized, which further reduced tax expenses by € 1.2 million.

OPERATING PROFIT/NET INCOME

For the full fiscal year 2006, Group operating profit remained almost unchanged at € 6.2 mil-
lion compared to 2005. Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) amounted to € 5.4 million,
compared to an EBIT of € 5.3 million in the same period of the previous year. Earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization {EBITDA) amounted to € 10.3 million compared
te € 8.6 million in the previous year.

A net income after taxes of € 6.0 million was achieved for the year 2006, compared to € 4.7 mil-
iion in the same period of 2005. The resulting basic net profit per share for 2006 amounted to
€0.94 (2005: € 0.84).

LIGUIDITY/CASH FLOWS

Cash flow from operations amounted to € 16.3 million in 2006 (2005: € 4.4 million). The Com-
pany’s total cash flow was impacted by MorphoSys’s successful private placement offering in
March 2006, resulting in a total cash inflow from financing activities of € 19.6 million (2005:
€ 18.4 million). Net cash used in investing activities was primarily impacted by the acquisition
of Serotec in January 2006 (€ 21.2 million), and amounted to a tetal of € 36.2 million (2005:

€ 31.4 million).

ASSETS

Total assets increased by € 47.7 million to € 127.8 million in the year 2006, compared to

€ 80.1 million in the year 2005. This was primarily a result of the acquisition of the Serotec Group’s
assets, including acquired goodwill in the amount of € 30.2 million, and due to cash inflows from
a capital increase and cash generated from operations. For a more detailed split of the impact of
the Serotec acquisition, see also Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — section 11.
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The value of inventories at year-end 2006 has sharply increased from € 0.5 million 10 € 3.5 mil-
lion, reflecting the higher stocks through the acquisition of the Serotec Group. Many research anti-
bodies are held in stock, to allow immediately shipping upon ordering by the customers.

At the end of 2004, MorphoSys's accounts receivable increased by € 0.4 million to € 3.7 million
{2005: € 3.3 million).

With the restructuring and concentration of atmost all US activities as well as UK activities of
the AbD segment in Raleigh, North Carolina, USA, and Oxford, UK, land and building owned
by the Company in New Hampshire, USA, as well as Oxtord, UK, are held for sale and have
heen reclassified in the amount of € 0.7 million from non-current assets to current assets,
accordingly.

On December 31, 2006, the Company held € 66.0 million in cash, cash equivalents and avail-
able-for-sale financial assets, compared to a balance at year-end 2005 of € 53.6 million.

TOTAL ASSETS (in millien €)*

3.6 3.3 12.4 4.1 6.6
2005 |
66.0 3.7 14.8 27 1.5 14.8
2006 L Wleees oan]
* - * —
0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140
# Cash Equivalents and Available-for-Sale : Intangibles Deferred Tax Asset
Financial Assets ® Goodwill ® Cther Assets

® Accounts Receivable

* Differences due to rounding up/down, see consclidaled balance sheets

LIABILITIES

In the fiscal year 2006, current liabilities ingreased by € 7.3 million to € 18.3 million from
€ 11.0 million at the end of 2005. This change primarity arose from the increase of accounts
payable by € 6.2 mitlion to € 10.5 million (2005: € 4.3 millien) and was mainly a cesult of the
inclusion of the Serotec entities into the consolidated financial statements as well as from in-
creased operational activity involving higher short-term accruals. The growth in non-current
liabilities was significantly impacted by the rise of non-current deferred revenues by € 2.5 million
due to payments arising from new contracts signed in 2005 and 2006, in addition to an increase
in deferred tax liability in combination with the Company’s Serotec PPA exercise.
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LIABILITIES (in million €)*

1.0 51 64.0

2005 AR —
18.3 9.5 100.3

2006 (T I Y N .

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

® Current Liabilities » Non-Current Liabilities * Stockholder’s Equity

* Differences due to rounding up/down, see consolidated balance sheets

EQUITY
Taotal stockholders’ equity amounted to € 100.1 million on December 31, 20406, or an equity ratio
of 78%, compared to € 64.0 million on December 31, 2005.

As of December 31, 2006, the total number of shares issued amounted to 6,715,322, of which
6,686,160 were outstanding, compared to 6,025,863 and 5,994,701 on December 31, 2005,
respectively.

The increase in 2006 stockholders” equity compared to the prior year arose largely from the
issuance of 208,560 new shares following a capital increase as consideration for the Serotec
acquisition. The issuance of 384,338 shares stemming from the capital increase against cash
successfully placed in March 2006 also contributed to the higher number of total shares. An
additional increase of 96,561 shares resulted from the conversion of bonds issued to employees
as well as exercised options. Furthermore, the grant of new stock options impacting equity
amounted to € 1.2 million.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

In the fiscal year 2006, MorphoSys's investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to
€ 3.5 million, resulting in an increase of € 2.9 million compared to the same period of the prior
year. Concentrating the Group’s UK activities into one new UK headquarters in Oxford contrib-
uted € 1.2 million to the same. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for 2006 accounted
for € 1.5 miltion, compared to € 0.9 million in 2005. The increase was mainly due io an addition-
al depreciation of € 0.5 miltion recognized as a result of the depreciation of stock in connection
with the PPA exercises of the Serotec acquisition. In 2006, the Company invested € 0.4 million
in intangible assets. Amortization of intangibles amounted to € 3.4 miltion and increased by

€ (.7 million vear on year, mainly due to the amortization of intangible assets acquired in the
Serotec deal.
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Christopher Stift, Head of Controlling & Accounting

FINANCING

During 2006, two capital increases were carried out. As part of the acquisition of the Serotec
Group in jaruary 2006, one-third of the purchase price was paid by means of a capital increase
against contribution in kind. The 208,560 new shares from the capital increase {3.5% of the
share capital) went to the former owners of the Serotec Group and are subject to a graded hold-
ing pericd.

In March 2006, MorphoSys successfully placed 384,338 shares (6.5 % of the share capital) in
a private placement to international institutional investors at o price of € 44,50 per share. The
issue was oversubscribed several times. The Company raised gross proceeds of approximately
€ 17.1 million. The proceeds from the cash capital increase are intended to be used for general
purposes, including further acquisitions in the field of research antibodies.

SUBSIDIARIES/CORPORATE ACQUISITIONS/DIVESTITURES

ACQUISITION OF THE SEROTEC GROUP

In January 2006, MorphoSys’s Research Antibodies segment was further strengthened through
the acquisition of the Serotec Group. The acquisition of Serotec, a renowned and internationally
active supplier of research antibodies, more than tripled MorphoSys's existing Research Anti-
bodies segment revenues and established the Company as one of the leading suppliers of re-
search antibodies and antibody research technologies in Europe. Serotec provides MorphoSys
with a strong distribution network including subsidiaries and sales offices in the United States
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and in the United Kingdom as well as in Germany, France and Scandinavia. Serotec (Serotec Ltd,,
Serotec, Inc., Serotec GmbH and Oxford Biotech Ltd.) has become a wholly owned subsidiary

of MorphoeSys AG and is being integrated within MorphoSys’s existing Research Antibodies
segment represented at that time by the Biogenesis and Antibodies by Design hrands.

The purchase price of approximately £ 20 million {roughly € 29.3 million} has been paid via
approximately £ 14 million (roughly € 20.5 million) cash and through the issuance of 208,560
new MorphoSys shares from a capital increase against contribution in kind.

INTEGRATION

During 2006, the newly acquired Serotec Group was integrated in MorphoSys's existing Re-
search Antibodies segment. All products were combined in one sales catalog, and all offerings
and marketing activities have been consolidated. The existing websites were integrated, and
will be further expanded as an e-commerce platform.

In August, a new US office in the technology cluster Research Triangle Region near Raleigh,
North Carolina, USA, was opened. The new 500-square-meter facility will provide additional
space for new staff, increased stock levels for the expanded product range, and the expansion
of sales far the custom monoclonal antibodies provided by AbD. All US activities of the AbD
segment were concenirated in Raleigh, but another sales representation was kept in Brentwood,
New Hampshire, USA.
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By the end of 2006, all UK-based activities of AbD were centralized in a new building in Oxford,
UK. The 2,200-square-meter facility acts as new UK headquarters for the MorphoSys Group of
companies,

For 2007, a streamlining of corporate structure in order to increase administrative efficiency is
planned.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Customer satisfaction determines MorphoSys’s success. We strive to establish long-term part-
nerships and customer relationships, bringing lasting success to both sides. In the Therapeutic
Antibodies segment, MorphoSys has shown an cutstanding track record in establishing and
expanding existing partnerships over the years, and more recently also in the AbD segment,

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT
In 2006, the Company expanded several existing partnerships and signed new collaborations
in the Therapeutic Antibodies segment. The following partnerships were either established or
expanded in the 2004 fiscal year (in alphabetical order). For a detailed description of other

partnerships, please refer to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — section 25.

DANCHI SANKYQ - SECOND PARTNERSHIP IN JAPAN
In March 2006, MorphoSys anncunced a license agreement and therapeutic antibody collabo-
ration with Japan's pharmaceutical group Daiichi Sankyo for an initial two-year term with the
option of an extension of up to three more years. For the Company, it is the second commercial
partnership with a top 10 pharmaceutical company in Japan. MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD
library was installed at Daiichi Sankyo’s research site in Tokyo.

Daiichi Sankyo committed to start one therapeutic antibody program with MorphoSys and
received an option for further programs. MoerphoSys will apply its proprietary HuCAL GOLD
technology to generate antibodies against a target provided by Daiichi Sankyo. Subsequently,
Daiichi Sankyo will be responsible for preclinical and clinical development as well as the
ensuing marketing of resulting products. If extended beyond the initial two-year period, the
contract provides Daiichi Sankyo with access to additional MorphoSys capabilities, such as
target validation, antibody optimization and preclinical development. Such an extension would
trigger an additional up-front payment and result in increased research funding for MorphoSys.
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NOVARTIS - LARGEST ALLIANCE FURTHER EXPANDED

In June 2006, MorphoSys anhounced an expansien of its existing collaberation with Novartis.
The collaboration, which is currently MorphoSys’s largest partnership, will now go through May
2011, Novartis committed itself to increase the number of new therapeutic antibody projects an-
nually - resulting in increased levels of Novartis's funding for research and development at
MorphoSys. [n addition, Novartis will have the option to gain access to the MorphoSys HuCAL
GOLD library at an additional research site and will have access to the newly developed RapMAT
quick-affinity optimization technology at the HuCAL library installation sites for optimization of
non-therapeutic antibodies. Furthermore, the agreement also provides for increased annual
license fees, with commercial license fees, research and developmental milestones, and royal-
ties on marketed antibody products remaining unchanged. The non-exclusive option on inter-
nalization of the entire MorphoSys HuCAL technology platform, offered to Novartis under the
terms of the initial collaboration in 2004, remains in place.

ONCOMED PHARMACEUTICALS - UNIQUE APPROAGH IN CANCER THERAPY
The US-based biopharmaceutical company OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, Inc., has acquired

a license to use MorphoSys's HuCAL technology in the research and development of human
therapeutic antibodies for the treatment of various cancers, including breast, lung, colon
and prostate cancer by targeting cancer stem cells. The two-year contract includes an option
for OncoMed to develop HuCAL-derived therapeutic antibodies. The agreement includes an
up-front payment and annual user fees.

PFIZER - EXPANSION DOUBLES POTENTIAL DEAL VOLUME
In December 2006, MorphoSys announced an early expansion of its collaboration with Pfizer
until the end of 2011, Under the extended agreement, Pfizer has the option to begin new thera-
peutic antibody projects with MorphoSys resulting in an increased level of programs to be
performed within the collaboration. As a result, the potential value for MorphoSys in research
funding and potential developmental milesione payments increased to more than US $ 100
mitlion, not including royalties. Additionally, the extensien triggered a one-off payment from
Pfizer to MorphoSys,

SCHERING-PLOUGH - INCREASED MARKET SHARE AMONG BIG PHARMA
In May 2006, MorphoSys signed an initial two-year license agreement with the Schering-Plough
Corporation for the use of its HuCAL GOLD technology in the research and development of
human therapeutic antibodies. Under the terms of the agreement, MorphoSys grants access to
its proprietary antibody [ibrary to Schering-Plough for use in its drug discovery programs at
one research site, Schering-Plough has the optien 1o develop HuCAL-derived therapeutic anti-
bodies against up to ten disease-related targets.
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The initial 1wo-year term of the agreement also provides Schering-Plough with the option of
an extension of up to three more years. The HuCAL GOLD antibody library was installed at
Schering-Plough’s research site in Palo Alto, California, USA, the lacation of Schering-Plough
Biopharma, an affiliate of the Schering-Plough Research Institute.

COLLABORATIONS WITH ACADEMIC INSTITUTES
[n addition to the commerciat partnerships with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies,
MorphoSys has forged two relevant collaborations with leading academic institutes which offer
potential benefits for both business segments.

THE BURNHAM INSTITUTE

In November 2006, MorphoSys signed a broad alliance with the Burnham Institute for Medical
Research in La Jolla, California, USA, covering the use of fully human recombinant research
antibodies and the commercialization of resulting products. The Burnham [nstitute will receive
access 10 novel HuCAL GOLD-based research antibodies from AbD to identify and validate tar-
get molecules with potential medical implicatiens. MorphoSys retains the commercialization
rights for all antibodies emerging from the collaboration both as research antibody tools distrib-
uted via the AbD sales catalog as well as in therapeutic or diagnostic applications.

COLLABORATION WITH LEADING RESEARCH INSTITUTE IN JAPAN
MorphoSys and its partner the GeneFrontier Corporation have expanded their existing marketing
alliance in Japan. The collaboration now also covers the generation of HuCAL-derived antibodies
for proteome research and target validation together with a leading Japanese research organi-
zation as well as the commercialization of resulting antibody products. GeneFrontier will utilize
MorphoSys's HuCAL GOLD antibody library to generate novel HuCAL antibodies against targets
provided by the research institute. For this purpose, the HuCAL antibody technology was in-
stalled at GeneFrontier’s research laboratories within a research facility in Tokyo. GeneFrontier
will provide MorphoSys with financial compensation for access to the technology. Both com-
panies agreed to share the commercialization rights for all antibodies discovered in this project.
Similar to the contract with the Burnham Institute, this contract offers significant new product
potential for the AbD division, but also a potential long-term benefit for MorphoSys's therapeutic
business.

RESEARCH ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

in the Research Antibodies segment, several agreements were signed in 2006. The common
aim of these activities is to support the central goal of the Company in this segment, namely,
10 make HuCAL the industry standard for research antibody generation.
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CHEMICON — HUCAL ANTIBODIES POSITIONED IN LEADING MARKETING CHANNEL

in January 2006, MorphoSys and Chemicon International, Inc., a unit of the Millipore Corpora-
tion, signed a three-year agreement for the distribution of HuCAL-based recombinant research
antibodies through Chemicon's worldwide sales network. Chemicon may market the licensed
HuCAL-based research antibodies for use in in vitro research as stand-alone products or as
components of reagent kits and may, in addition, also market the antibodies for clinical diag-
nostic applications. MorphoSys receives payment for antibody generation, optional additionai
fees, and royalties on all products.

CHIMERA BIOTEC — CO-MARKETING AGREEMENT WITH ANTIGEN SERVICE PROVIDER

In February 2006, AbD and Chimera Biotec GmbH announced the start of a co-marketing agree-
ment. The parties agreed to co-market the rapid generation of monoclonal HuCAL antibodies by
AbD and Chimera Biotec’s complementary Imperacer™ assay technology for ultrasensitive anti-
gen detection. Each partner will offer the other partner's services 1o its customers throughout
the worldwide market.

HUCAL ANTIBODIES IN BIODEFENSE-RELATED PROJECTS
In September 2006, AbI} was able to secure a contract as the sole source on a biodefense-related
project by USAMRIID, an organization of the US Army Medical Research and Materiel Command
and lead medical research laboratory for the US Biological Defense Program. USAMRIID has
ordered fully human recombinant research antibodies against five bacteria-derived toxins.
AbD generated these antibodies successfully within five weeks using the HuCAL GOLD anti-
body library and delivered the requested products to USAMRIID.
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Biological toxins derived from living organisms, such as bacteria and other microorganisms or
plants, are biological agents with potential implications in bioterrorism. HuCAL-derived anti-
bodies may support the development of countermeasures against such biological toxins or act
as therapeutic agents themselves.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT/ALLIANCE MANAGEMENT

MorphoSys uses its own HuCAL technology for the development of therapeutic antibodies and
research applications. Its technology has been thoroughly tried and tested in numerous part-
nerships. The following represents the progress made in proprietary product and technology
development as well as existing collaborations throughout the year:

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

MORI03 AS NEW LEAD PRODUCT ON TRACK TO CLINIC

At the beginning of 2006, MorphoSys rearranged the further development of its proprietary
therapeutic antibody programs. As a result of a strategic review process initiated in 2005,
MorphoSys decided to focus the majority of its efforts on its anti-inflammatoery compound
MOR103 as new lead compound in the indication of rheumatoid arthritis. MOR103 is a fully
human HuCAL antibody against an undisclosed target. The Company intends to evaluate
clinical efficacy of the compound. As a next development step, MorphoSys will provide all
necessary information to regulatory authorities and ethics committees within the second
half of 2007 to start human clinical trials.

In regard to MorphoSys's cancer-related MOR202 antibody program, the Company generated
additional preclinical data around this project, and a preclinical candidate was selected.

MaorphoSys discontinued further development of its anti-!CAM-1 program, which consisted of
the MOR101/MOR102 therapeutic antibody projects.

ACCESS TO FULLY HUMAN GELL LINE FOR MOR103

In August 2006, MorphoSys AG signed a second PER.C6® license agreement with Dutch biotech-
nology company Crucell N.V. and a biopharmaceutical manufacturing agreement with its tech-
nology partner DSM Biologics. The license agreements allow MorphoSys to use the PER.C6®
cell line in the production of clinical-grade materiat for the development of its proprietary
MOR1G3 therapeutic antibody program. Production of clinical-grade material is a relevant step
to keep to the timeline for this project.
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BOEHRINGER INGELHE!M STARTS NEW CANCER PROGRAM
In November 2006, MorphoSys and Boehringer Ingelheim expanded their existing collaboration
with a new antibody program. Beehringer Ingelheim exercised an option for optimizing a thera-
peutic HuCAL antibody and acquired an exclusive license for this project. The antibody iden-
tified by Boehringer Ingelheim at its research site in Vienna, Austria, is directed against a
cancer disease-related target molecule. As a result, the cellaboration new includes three areas
of disease — the development of new therapies against cancer, inflammatory and cardiovascular
diseases.

FURTHER PROGRESS IN CENTOCOR COLLABORATION
In February 2006, MorphoSys AG announced the achievement of a fourth therapeutic milestone
within the scope of its collaboration with Centocor, Inc. [n meeting the milestone, MorphSys
developed several highly optimized fully human IgG antibodies against a Centocor target in-
volved in inflammatory and autcimmune diseases. The HuCAL GOLD antibodies passed pre-
defined criteria. Achievement of the milestone triggered a payment from Centocor to MorphoSys.

FIRST CLINICAL DATA WITH HUCAL ANTIBQDY 1D09C3

In December 2006, MorphoSys’s partner GPC Biotech presented preliminary clinical data for
the HuCA L-derived anticancer antibody 1D09C3 at the 48th Annual Meeting of the American
Society of Hematology. 1D09C3 is currently in a phase 1 clinical program that is evaluating the
antibody in patients with relapsed or refractory B-cell lymphomas, who have failed prior stan-
dard therapy. The objectives of the phase 1 program are to determine the maximum tolerated
dose and to establish a recommended dose for a phase 2 efficacy trial. The preliminary data
from 25 patients suggest that the HuCA L-antibody is well tolerated in this heavily pretreated
patient population. A maximum tolerated dose had not yet been reached. Hints of antitumor
activity were observed in two patients.

PROGRESS IN COLLABORATION WITH MERCK & CO., INC.
In December 2005, MorphoSys signed a license agreement with the US pharmaceutical com-
pany Merck & Co., Inc., for the use of its HuCAL GOLD and AutoCAL technologies in research
and development of human therapeutic antibodies. During the course of 2006, installation of
the Company’s proprietary AutoCAL technology was successfully completed at two of Merck’s
research sites, Rome, Italy, and West Point, Pennsylvania, USA, and milestone payments were
received.

ALZHEIMER ANTIBODY ENTERED CLINICAL TRIALS
In January 2006, MorphoSys's partner Roche filed all necessary applications to commence a
Eurcpean phase 1 clinical trial with a HuCAL-derived antibody to treat Alzheimer's disease.
This clinical trial is currently underway in patients.
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The HuCAL antibody targets are intended to remove abnormal build-ups of amyloid beta protein
in cerebral tissue, which are typical to Alzheimer disease progression. The applications filing to
commence clinical trials triggered a clinical milestone payment from Roche to MorphoSys.

FIRST HUCAL USER DAY

In December 2006, MorphoSys held its first HuCAL GOLD User Day in San Diego, California,
USA, on the back of the international IBC’s Antibody Engineering Conference. The meeting
was intended to support and intensify the interaction between MorphoSys and its partners,
and to increase the partners’ knowledge of the HuCAL technology and handling.

RESEARCH ANTIBODIES SEGMENT ABD

Due to the activities of the Research Antibodies segment, HuCAL antibodies have found their
way into many new areas of application. [n 2006, the following research-related items arising
from the AbD business were announced.

PARTNERSHIP WITH JAPANESE KAZUSA DNA RESEARCH INSTITUTE

In May 2006, AbD concluded a research and development program with the Japanese Kazusa
DNA Research Institute. The two parties have jointly developed and characterized a series of
recombinant research antibodies from MarphoSys’s HUCAL GOLD antibody library. The anti-
bodies are directed against proteins sourced from Kazusa's mKIAA ¢DNA cloning and expres-
sion project, which aims at identifying and characterizing previcusly unidentified genes and
their corresponding proteins. Both parties share distribution rights and have made these HuCAL
antibodies available via the sales catalogs of the Kazusa [nstitute and AbD.

HUCAL ANTIBODIES IN PARKINSON AND ALZHEIMER RESEARCH
In December 2006, AbD presented results from one of its customers at Japan’s renowned Hokkaido
University obtained by using HuCAL-derived antibodies. A set of monoclonal and fully human
mini-antibodies was selected that specifically recognize the DJ-1 protein oxidized at a single
amino acid. The analysis demonstrated that the HuCAL-based antibody fragments provide a set
of useful probes for studying the DJ-1 protein. DJ-1 was initially identified by researchers at
Hokkaido University as a novel cancer target and has recently been linked to certain forms

of Parkinson's and Alzheimer’s disease. As with other HuCA L-based antibodies generated for
customers, AbD has made a DI-1-gpecific antibody available via its sales catalog and customer
website.
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PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS

LAUNCH OF NEW TECHNOLOGY PLATFORM

In December 2006, MorphoSys presented a new technology platform called RapMAT, a new
antibody optimization system. The RapMAT approach improves MorphoSys's capabilities to
generate antibodies using the proprietary HuCAL GOLD antibody library and reduces the time
until promising lead candidates can be isolated. The new system works hand in hand with
the established HuCAL GOLD technology and builds on its advantageous features, such as its
modular design with unique restriction sites flanking all important segments of the antibody
genes. Resulting antibedies remain of fully human compaosition.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Securing and exploiting intellectual property (IP) remains a core focus of MorphoSys. In line
with this philosophy, MorphoSys is active in seeking, when appropriate, IP protection for its
proprietary drug candidates and its drug discovery platforms. Thus, at times, the Company
pursues trade secret protectien in lieu of filing patent applications when it believes the former
will bring more value to the Company. In 2006, the Company filed numerous patent applica-
tions, including those covering its proprietary antibody programs and advances to its rebust
discovery platforms. IP continues to play a key role in the Company’s successful partnering
track record. For example, MorphoSys filed for IP protection on its RapMAT technology, access
to which was a feature of the expansion of its collaboration with Novartis in June 2006.




— 006

HUMAN RESOURCES

MorphoSys's future success relies on having an expert and committed workforce. One of the
key management tasks is to attract and maintain highly qualified and motivated employees for
all areas of the Company.

LONG-TERM PERFORMANCE-RELATED REMUNERATION

All employees participate in the operational and financial success of the Company. In order to
strengthen and expand the reward system for individual contribution, MorphoSys offers a
performance-based bonus to all employees. This bonus supplements the existing remuneration
system and opens up an additional performance incentive. Employee bonuses are based on the
success of the Company and on personal performance. By setting personal goals, department
goals and Gompany goals, each employee has the chance to contribute to the successful devel-
opmeni of MorphoSys and to participate in its success.

In addition to the performance-related compensation, all employees have the chance to partici-
pate in a stock option or convertible hond program as part of a long-term equity incentive scheme.
The aim of this program is to give employees a long-term stake in the success of the Company.

QUALIFICATION AND TRAINING

Supporting science and management education is a priority for MorphoSys. The Company offers
career ppportunities in the areas of research and product devetopment as well as a variety of
management positions. All employees enjoy a wide range of professional and personal develop-
ment programs as well as a working environment that encourages enthusiasm and collabora-
tion among departments and between the Company’s different locations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

One of the most important goals of the human resources department is to provide an optimal
working environment for all employees. Flexible working hours and employment arrangements
have a long tradition at MorphoSys; the goal being to help strike a better balance between pro-
fessional duties and private needs, which in turn contributes to employee commitment to the
Company. MorphoSys provides equal opportunities to women and men at their workplace. This
tradition is based on the open and international corporate culture that has characterized the
Company from the heginning and has remained strong up te the present day.

NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION OF EMPLOYEES
On December 31, 2006, the MorphoSys Group employed 279 people {December 31, 2005: 172).
On average, the MorphoSys Group employed 265 people in 2006 (2005: 170).
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Of the 279 employees, 98 pecple were employed by the Serctec Group on December 31, 2006,
and on average 88 in the course of the vear.

Of the 279 employees, 155 worked in research and development and 124 in sales, general and
administration, On December 31, 2006, 5% of MorphoSys’s employees held a Ph.D. degree
(December 31, 2005: 46).

Of the 279 employees, 158 were engaged in the Therapeutic Antibodies segment and 121 in the
AbD segment.

On December 31, 2006, MorphoSys had 1 apprenticeship position (December 31, 2005: 1).

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Germany 183
UK 78
USA 18
TOTAL 279
EMPLOYEES OF MORPHOSYS GROUP
172
2005
279
2006 |
50 100 150 200 250 300

SUPERVISORY BOARD
At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting held in Munich on May 17, 2006, MorphoSys's shareholders
re-elected Prof. Dr. Jiirgen Drews and Prof. Dr. Andreas Plickthun to the Supervisory Board.

IOB SAFETY

Regular medical checks are carried out for the MorphoSys employees. An initial medical check-
up is performed for all new employees of the research and development department. In addition,
the Company offers all employees in research and development the option to be vaccinated
against hepatitis A and B.

MorphoSys conducts its research in safety level “Bio 1" and “Bio 1I” laboratories under strict
observance of all relevant legal guidelines. Internal standards are more stringent than those
guidelines which are legally required.
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Dr. Giinter Welinhofer, Head of Technical Operations + Silvia Dermietzel, Head of Human Resources

As part of the expert team of empioyees responsible for work safety, biological safety and fire
prevention, there is one designated employee dedicated to work safety alone. This person is
responsible for providing employees with regular training and updates te inform them of the
latest guidelines. MorphoSys employees are familiar with all requirements relating to job
safety, handling of hazardous materials as well as accident and fire prevention. During 2006,
there were no industrial accidents reported.

Due to regular maintenance by internal employees, all laboratory equipment adheres to the
highest possihle standard of safety.

REMUNERATION REPORT

REMUNERATION OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

The annual remuneration of the members of the Management Board consists of a fixed compo-
nent, a performance-related honus, a medium- and long-term performance-related compenent
in the form of convertible bonds and stock options as well as of other fringe benefits. Each year,
the appropriateness of the total compensation packages is subject to a review of the Remuneration
& Nomination Committee. The complete compensation packages are compared to the outcome
of the Annual German Biotechnology Industry Remuneraticn Study {GRS Study), and to other
international benchmark sources. The adjustments to the compensation packages are adopted
by the plenum of the Supervisory Board. The last date on which salaries were adjusted was in
July 2006.
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The total annual salary of the members of the Management Board comprises the fixed compo-
nents plus additional other compensatory benefits, which encompass primarily the use of com-
pany cars, the reimbursement of travel and telephone costs, allowances for health, social care
and invalidity insurances as well as special allowances and benefits received when working
outside of the home country. Furthermore, all members of the Management Board participate in
private pension funds. MorphoSys pays the monthly centribution o these funds. These payments
are included here as other compensatory benefits and amount to 10% of the annual fixed salary
of each Management Board member plus tax contribution.

Additionally, each member receives a performance-related cash honus payment. Such payments
are dependent on individual goals and company-related goals, which are determined by the
Supervisory Board at the beginning of each fiscal year. The corporate perfermance 1argets
reflect operating performance as measured by revenues and net income and other Company
goals such as share performance or the successful integration of business units. At the end of
the year, the Supervisory Board evaluates the level of attainment of these goals. The bonus is
determined by the Supervisery Board on the basis of the Company’s business development
after due assessment of the circumstances. Approximately one-third of the bonus payment is
dependent on personal goals, the other two-thirds depend on the extent to which the Company
goals have been reached.

In the fiscal year 2006, the total cash remuneration paid to the members of the Management
Board amounted to € 1,156,415 (previous year: € 887,964). The table below shows the detailed
and individualized compensation for the Management Board in 2006;

PERFORARMANCE- QTHER TOTAL

FIXED RELATED COMPENSATORY COMPENSATION

in € COMPENSATION COMPENSATION BENEFITS 2006
" Dr. Simon E. Moroney 290,000 139,024 773130 506,337
Mr. Dave Lemus 204,750 104,973 99,456° 409,179
Dr. Marlies Sproll 181,500 13,052 46,347 240,899

' Performance-related compensation for November and December 2005 {Dr. Sprolt was appointed as member of the Management
Board as of November 3, 2005)

? Includes € 68,913 annual contribution Lo private pension fund and allowances to insurances

* Includes € 48,283 annual contribution to private pension fund and allowances te insurancas

* Includes € 40,088 annual contribution to private pension fund and allowances to insurances

The long-term performance-telated remuneration consists of convertible bonds and stock options
under the plans as resolved by the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. These are outlined in the
“LEquity-based Compensation* for the Management Board” sectioh below.
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In 2006, 25,000 stock options were granted to Dr. Marlies Sproll in connection with her appoint-
ment as Chief Scientific Officer. Additionally, 14,248 convertible bonds were granted to mem-
bers of the Management Board in 2006. The value of the stock options and convertible bonds
granted to members of the Management Board under the 2002 option and convertible bond
plan attributable to fiscal year 2006 totaled € 676,399 {2005: € 697,410).

During 2006, members of the Management Board exercised convertible bonds and subsequently
sold the new shares. Further details are given in the schedule provided under “Directors’ Dealings”
in MorphoSys’s Corporate Goevernance Report.

No credit or similar benefits were granted to members of the Management Board. In the year
under review, the Management Board members received no benefits from third parties that
were either promised or granted in view of their position as a member of the Management Board.

The service contracts for the Chief Executive Officer Dr. Simon E. Moroney and the Chief Finan-
cial Officer Mr. Dave Lemus have a term of three years each. Dr. Marlies Sproll was appointed
as Chief Scientific Officer for the first time in November 2005; her respective service agreement
has a term of two years. In the event of a non-reappointment and non-prolongation of the service
agreement, each member of the Management Board is entitled to receive a severance payment
in the amount of one annual fixed salary. If the service contract of a member of the Management
Board is terminated by death, his/her spouse or partner for life is entitled to the menthly fixed
salary for the month of death and the following twelve months. After a change of control trans-
action, each member of the Management Board is allowed to extraordinarily terminate his/her
service contract and may demand the outstanding fixed salary for the remaining contractually
provided term of contract, or two years, whichever is greater, Furthermore, in such a case, all
granted stock options and convertible bonds shail be treated as immediately vested.

REMUNERATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
The compensation of the members of the Supervisory Board is specified by resclution of the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. In accordance with the German Corporate Governance Code,
members of the Supervisory Board receive fixed as well as performance-related compensation.
It takes into account the responsibilities and scope of tasks of the members of the Supervisory
Board as well as the economic situation and performance of the Company.

In the 2006 fiscal year, the members of the Supervisory Board received a total of € 259,000
(2005: € 190,500), excluding reimbursement of travel expenses, which was in accordance with
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting resolution of May 17, 2006, This amount consists of fixed
remuneratien and attendance fees.
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The table below shows the detailed compensation for the Supervisory Board in 2006:

FIXED VARIABLE TOTAL
in€ . COMPENSATION COMPENSATION " COMPENSATION
Dr. Gerald Maller, Chairman 40,000 24500 64,500
Pref. Dr. JﬁrgenAIVDreAv;"s‘, Deputy Chalrman 30,000 ) 11.000 41000
Or. Dariel Camus 25,000 o000 " 45,000
B o G e RN SR

Prof. Or. Andreas Plickthun 23500 7,500 31,000

DCr. Ge.offrey N Vernon 26500 18,500 15..000 -

The German Corporate Governance Code proposes that retnuneration of the Supervisory Board
should also include components hased on the long-term success of the Company. The Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting of MorphoSys AG decided on May 17, 2006, in favar of a revenues-related
compensation program in the form of phantom stocks. in addition to the cash compensation,
the Supervisory Board members will receive these phantom stocks, subject to a performance
hurdle. A phantom stock is a claim on the Company to a cash payment of the difference between
the stock exchange price at the end of the holding period and the exercise price. The holding
period for phantom stocks is three years, beginning with the issue date on January 1, 2007, and
ending on December 31, 2009. An amount will only be paid if the Company’s consolidated rev-
enues for the year show an average annual growth rate of at least 20%. In total, payments by
the Company under this plan to the Supervisory Board as a whole must not exceed the amount
of € 80,000 {“cap”).

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board has received 2,500 phantom stocks, the Deputy Chair-
man 2,000 phantom stocks, and the members of the Supervisory Board 1,500 phantom stocks
each.

In 2006, MorphoSys entered into consulting agreements with the member of the Supervisory
Board Prof. Dr. Andreas Pliickthun and another scientist of Prof. Dr. Pliickithun's research team
at the University of Zurich, Switzerland, ending December 2008. According to the agreements,
the consultants shall provide consulting services in the antibody and scaffold fields. Under
this agreement, Prof. Dr. Andreas Plickthun may receive payments of up to € 14,000 per year,
depending on the extent to which the Company draws on his consultancy. Additionalty, MerphoSys
pays a yearly fee of SFr. 135,000 for its sponsored research agreement to the University of Zurich,
represented by Prof, Dr. Andreas Plickthun. Both agreements were approved by the Supervisory
Board plenum. No ether consultancy agreements with members of the Supervisory Board are
currentty in place.

No members of the Management Board or the Supervisory Board were granted Company loans.
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EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION FOR THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
STOCK OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Supervisory Board also decides each vear on the number of stock options or convertible
honds to be allocated to the Management Board members. Stock options are only granted in
the event of a new appointment of a member of the Management Board or in the case of a
renewal of a service agreement. Every year, all employees, including the Management Board,
are offered convertible bonds as a mid-term performance-related compensation component.

Since the implementation of equity-hased compensation programs at MorphaSys AG, stock
options or convertible bonds are only issued twice a yvear on the same predefined dates.
The following overview shows the number of stock options and convertible bonds issued in
2006 to members of the Management Board (please see also 2002 Employee Stock Option
Program and 2002 Employee Convertible Bond Program, see sections 15 and 16 of the Nates
to the Consolidated Financial Statements) and their potential current value:

FAIR VALUE OF

ONE STOCK FAIR VALUE AT
NUMBER OF OPTION /CON- THE TIME OF
MEMBER OF CONVERTIBLE STRIKE PRICE VERTIBLE BOND THE GRANT
MANAGEMENT BOARD BONDS n € GRANT DATE EXPIRY DATE in € in €
L] [ ] * & LN ] -+ &
Dr. Simon E. Morcney 5,699 4412 lan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 2008 14,03 79,57
Mr, Dave Lemus 4,749 4412 Jan. 15, 2004 Dec. 31, 2008 14.03 66,628
Dr. Marlies Sproll 3,800 44.12 Jan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 2008 14.03 53.314
NUMBER OF
STOCK OPTIONS
Dr. Marlies Sprol 25,000 4412 Jan. 15, 2006 Dec. 31, 201 18.66 466,500

STOCK OPTION PROGRAMS
The current stock option plan of 2002 provides for the issuance of nontransferable option rights
to employees and to the Management Board. The option rights have a maximum life of five years.

Additionally, a twe-year holding period is required after the date of grant, after which the holder

of the option rights can exercise up to the number of vested option rights, on the condition that
the value of the underlying stock has exceeded the stock price at the time of the grant by at least
20% on one trading day before the exercise.




MANAGEMENT BOARD THE COMPANY ® GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @ O ; 3 L]

CONVERTIBLE BOND PROGRAMS

The current convertible bond program of 2003 provides the issuance of non-interest-bearing
convertible bonds with a par/nominal value of € 1.00 each to employees and to the Manage-
ment Board. The beneficiaries may only exercise the conversion rights after the expiration of
a waiting period of one year after the grant date. Each convertible bond with a nominal value
of € 1.00 can be exchanged for one share of ordinary no-par value common stock of the Com-
pany against payment of the exchange price. Furthermore, the exercise of the convertiible
bonds is subject to the performance target that the value of the underlying stock has exceeded
the stock price at the time of the grant by at least 10% on one trading day before the exercise.

For a more detailed description of the various stock option and convertible bond programs cur-
rently in operation, see sections 15 and 16 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is active in the healthcare sector, and has developed new technologies for the
generation of fully human antibodies for therapeutic applications, but also for research and
diagnostics purposes. MorphoSys’s technologies can help improve treatment options for
life-threatening diseases within an aging population. The demand for innovative therapeutics,
helping to ameliorate the quality of life of patients, is constantly increasing and allows the
Company to grow its business globally.

MorphoSys is dedicated to sustainability and corporate sccial responsibility, as is clearly de-
scribed in MorphoSys’s credo, The manragement of the Company is convinced that responsible
and effective environmental protection and good corporate citizenship are essential to entre-
preneurial success. In 2003, MorphoSys introduced a code of ethics directed at the members
of the Management Board and those persons of the Company responsible for finance, control-
ling and accounting at the Company. Senjor Management and the Company’s financial staff play
an important and distinctive role within the Company’s corpoerate governance in that these
persennel are authorized and entrusied to ensure that accurate financial information is pro-
vided to investors quickly. The code of ethics — together with the related internal standards and
policies, €. g. for safety, health and environmental protection — regulate corporate procedures
and responsibilities,

MorphaoSys is increasingly active in fulfilling its role as a socially responsible company. One of
MorphoSys’s main goals in regard to corporate culture and human resources is to secure a healthy
work-life balance for its employees and their families. As a part of this effort, MorphoSys —
togeiher with other Munich-based biotechnology companies — founded a local kindergarten called
“BioKids” in 2002 and has supported this both financially and in terms of active participation
since that time. A member of MorphoSys has been consistently on the advisory board of the
holding company Kita BioRegio eV, which represents “BioKids.”
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Due to a change in the German education system, schools will be seeking closer collaborations
with industry partners from 2007 onwards in order to prepare students for an earlier entry into
working life. MorphoSys supports this program. As a part of its epen-door poticy, MorphoeSys
already presents itselfl on a regular basis to visitors at an annual open house and throughout
the year.

MorphoSys offers wide-ranging employment opportunities, offering employment for school-
leavers looking for vocational training, graduate students’ diploma thesis as well as internships
for students and technical assistants.

At the end of each year, the employees of MorphoSys AG support a local charitable non-profit
organization with private donations. [n 2006, MorphoSys’s staff donated approximately € 1,000
to Lebenshilfe e.V. Schmalkalden, an organization supporting handicapped people.

INFORMATION TECHNGOLOGY

MorphoSys continued its growth of head count and operations in 2006. For that reason, an IT
infrastructure was introduced, in particular for server consolidation. All affiliates are members
of the MorphoSys worldwide 1T network, to improve business performance and ensure business
continuity.

During 2006, all newly acquired affiliates were integrated into the corporate network to ensure
the secure and reliable exchange of data and information. Administration of all affiliates is
performed at the Company’s headquarters in Munich. A global IT policy was implemented to
introduce Group-wide security standards and worldwide use of data and applications.

All products from the former Biogenesis and Serotec units were merged into a new database.
The launch of a new Web shop, which will be based on the new product database, is scheduled
for the first half of 2007.

MorphoSys completed a relaunch of the corporate portal in June 2006. The relaunch was necessary
to fulfill the increasing requirements of the two business segments of MorphoSys. It provides a
comprehensive information platform of all business aspects for MorphoSys’s customers, pariners
and shareholders.
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The IT department of MorphoSys has developed a new business offer, supplying MorphoSys’s
partners with new bioinformatics software for sequence analysis of identified HuCAL antibodies.
This system, named SAS, has already been installed at Merck & Co., and the installation for
Novartis is scheduled for early 2007.

MorphoSys currently plans to implement a new ERP (enterprise resource planning) software
for its S, G&A functions. Once established, it is anticipated that the new software system will
be implemented across the MorphoSys Group (including its subsidiaries in the United States
and the United Kingdomy} after 2007.

In December 2006, MorphoSys received Microsoft’s annual EMEA Customer Award at the
Microsoft Convergence 2006 EMEA conference in Munich, Germany, for its innovative IT.

PROCUREMENT AND PRODUCTION

MorphoSys purchases raw materials and supplies from numerous suppliers. The Company pro-
cures all needed material from international suppliers, and tends to place its purchase orders
with the most favorahly priced suppliers, taking into consideration all relevant quality aspects.
MorphoSys aims to secure strategic materials through medium- and long-term contracts, and
has not experienced difficulties in obtaining sufficient amounts of raw materials and supplies
in recent years. The price of raw materials and supplies may vary substantially.

MorphoSys produces human antibodies for research applications in the milligram to gram or
more scale. For production purposes, MorphoeSys has access to different expression systems,
such as cel) lines and expression vectors, For the expression of antibody fragments, MorphoSys
uses bacterial expression systems, and has access to Wacker’s secretion system for antibody
fragment production. For the production of full [gGs, for example, MorphoSys uses the HKB.11
cell line in-licensed from Bayer and the PER.C6® cell line from Crucell.

For the production of ciinical-grade material of MOR103, MorphoSys has signed a license agree-
ment with Dutch biotechnology company Crucell N.V. and a hiopharmaceutical manufacturing
agreement with its technology partner DSM Biologics.

During 2006, MorphoSys achieved substantial discounts through global sourcing, As an example,
all computer hardware is purchased from a global vendor, and the Company has established a
global software license management system through its headquarters in Munich.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Since high standards for quality, environmental protecticn and safety are crirical success fac-
tors for MorphoSys, all relevant environmental issues are regularly monitored and assessed.
The Company’s entire waste disposal system is continually reviewed and evaluated with respect
to the potential for improvement.

MorphoSys is not subject te direct regulation other than regulation generally applicable to busi-
nesses like itself. This includes various laws and regulations in effect in the different jurisdic-
tions in which the Company operates, including laws and regulations applicable to environmen-
tal matters, such as the handling and disposal of hazardous wastes. In total, the Company’s
research and development activities invelve only small amounts of hazardous materials and
chemicals.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Within the framework of our qualily management system, all business processes are continu-
ously scrutinized and enhanced. Continuous impraovement processes are an element of all of
the Company’s processes.

One of the areas of focus for the Therapeutic Antibedies segment was the establishment of new
and innovative analytical methods and biological assays for in-depth characterization of the
Company’s antibodies. The innovaticn process was triggered to further improve the therapeutic
antibady development process by applying efficient selection and quality filters in the antibody
generation process early on. Quality management does not only mean ease of application, con-
venience and high product performance, but also comprehensive product safety and testing,
which are mandatory parameters for entering clinical trials.

Within the AbD segment, quality is the key to delivering a market-leading solution, and 1S09001:2000
accreditation, the European quality standard, has been in place at Serotec Ltd. since December
1994, and at Serotec, Inc. as well as Serotec France since May 2003, This quality system provides
a sound framework from which to operate.

ADbD sells a group of “CE™ marked products that conform to the directives of the in vitro Medical
Device Regulations and can be sold and used by customers as in vitro Medical Diagnostic Devices.
Serotec Ltd. is planning to implement 1S013485:2006, the European standard for businesses
involved in medical devices and in vitro diagnostic medical devices in 2007, and is currently
working towards the implementation of good manufacturing practice (GMP). AbD is dedicated
to delivering customers a solution and not just a product, no matter what they order or where

they work. This commitment to customer satisfaction is demonstrated by means of a global
quality guarantee and a free antibody location service.
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DECLARATIONS PURSUANT TO § 315 PARA. 4 OF THE GERMAN COMMERCIAL CODE

As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s share capital amounted to € 20,145,966 and is divided
into 6,715,322 no-par vaiue bearer shares. With the exception of 29,162 own shares, all issued
shares are exclusively common shares with voting rights. The Management Board is not aware
of any restrictions of the voting rights or the right to transfer, This also applies to restrictions
which may result from shareholders’ agreements. The Company has net been notified of direct
or indirect shareholdings in its share capital exceeding 10% of the voting rights pursuant to

§ 21 German Securities Trading Act (*WpHG”). There are no owners of shares with privileged
rights or other rights giving a right to control votes.

Pursuant to § 6 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the Management Board shall consist of
at least two members, with the Supervisory Board defining the concrete number of the members
of the Management Board. The Supervisory Board may appoint a Chief Executive Officer and
one or several representatives of the CEO.

The shareholders have provided the Management Board with the following authorizations to
issue new shares or conversion rights or to purchase own shares:

3.1 Pursuantio § 5 para. 5 of the Articles of Association and with the approval of the Super-
visory Board, the Management Board is authorized to increase the Company’s share capi-
tal during the time period until April 30, 2011, in the amount of up to € 7,481,307 and
by issuing 2,493,769 young bearer shares with no-par value for contribution in cash and/
or in kind on one or several occasions (Authorized Capital I). The Management Board may,
with the approval of the Supervisory Board, exclude the preemptive rights of the share-
holders under the following conditions:

3.1.1 inthe case of a capital increase in cash, to the extent that such exclusion is
necessary to avoid fractional shares; or

3.1.2 in the case of a capital increase in kind, to the extent that the young shares are
used for the acquisition of companies, shareholdings in companies, patents, licenses or
other industrial property rights, or of assets which constitute a business in their
entirety; or

3.1.3 inthe case of a capital increase in cash, to the extent that young shares shall be
placed at a stock exchange in context with a listing,

3.2 Pursuant to § 5 para. 6 of the Articles of Association and with the approval of the Super-
visory Board, the Management Board is authorized to increase the Company’s share capital
in cash during the time period until April 30, 2011, by up to € 1,956,564 by issuing up to
652,188 young bearer shares with no-par value (Authorized Capital [1). The preemptive
rights of the shareholders may be excluded if (i} fractional shares are avoided and/er (ii)
the issuance price of the young shares is not substantially below the stock exchange price
of the listed shares of the same kind at the time of the final fixing of the issuance price.



3.3 Pursuant to § 5 para. 6 b of the Articles of Association, the Company's share capital shall
be conditionally increased by an amount of up to € 5,488,686, divided into up to 1,829,562
bearer shares with no-par value (Conditional Capital ITI). The conditional capital increase
shall only be accomplished (i) to the extent that owners of cptions and/or convertible
bonds make use of their option and/or conversion rights issued by the Company until
April 30, 2011, in accordance with the resolution of the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting or
(i1} to the extent that owners fulfill their duties to convert. The same shall apply to own-
ers of options and/or convertible bonds issued by domestic or foreign affiliates, which are
totally owned by the Company.

3.4 Furthermore, there exists a Conditional Capital I in the amount of up to € 46,785(§ 5
para. 4 of the Articles of Association), a Conditional Capital [1 in the amount of up to
€ 644,325 (§ 5 para. 6 a of the Articles of Association), a Conditional Capital IV in the
amount of up to € 1,393,761 (§ 5 para. 6 ¢ of the Articles of Association) and a Conditional
Capital V in the amount up of € 1,031,961 (§ 5 para. 6 d of the Articles of Association).
These conditional share capitals may be used for the issuance of option and cenversion
rights to members of the Management Board and to employees of the Company or of its
affiliates.

3.5 According to the reselution of the ordinary Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 2006, the Com-
pany may purchase own shares in the amount of up to 10% of the share capital existing
at the time of the said resolution. This authorization is valid until Gctober 31, 2007, The
Management Board may decide whether the shares shall be acquired as purchase order
in the stock market or by virtue of a public offer. The acquired own shares may be used
for the following purposes:

3.5.1 with the approval of the Supervisory Beard, the shares may be redeemed; or

3.5.2 the shares may be used in order to fulfill conversion rights or option rights which
have been granted by the Company or an affiliate; or

3.56.3 the own shares may be used as acquisition ¢currency in context with the purchase
of companies, shareholdings in companies, business assets, intellectual property
rights or licenses.

4. After a change of control transaction, each member of the Management Board is allowed to
extraordinarily terminate his/her service contract and may demand the outstanding fixed salary
for the remaining contractually provided term of contract or for two years, whichever is greater.
Furthermore, in such a case, all granted stock options and cenvertible bonds shall be treated as
immediately vested. The same applies to some of the directors of the Company 1o whom options
or conversion rights have been granted.

Additionally, the Company has commercial contracts with pharmaceutical partners, which may
be affected in the event of 4 change of control and could affect future cash flows significantly.
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RISK REPQRT

MorphoSys AG operates on a global basis. [ts business activities comprise different risks, which
are relevant to many business functions. The business, financial cendition and operating results
of MorphoSys may be materially adversely affected by each of these risks. In line with the German
“Corporate Sector Supervision and Transparency Act” (*Gesetz zur Kantrolle und Transparenz
im Unternehmensbereich” — KonTraG), MerphoSys has established a comprehensive and effec-
tive system to identify, assess, communicate and manage risks across its functions and oper-
ations. Risk management has the goal of identifying risks as early as possible, limiting business
losses by means of suitable measures, and aveiding risks that pose a threat to the Company’s
existence. Regular risk analyses at a corporate level are carried out in the areas of Legal, Taxes
and Insurance, Human Resources, Finance, Corporate Communications, Strategic Planning and
Controlling, Business Development, Research and Development as well as Production.

GENERAL BUSINESS-RELATED RISKS
MorphoSys is subject to the typical industry and market risks inherent to the development of
fully human antibodies for use in research, diagnostics and therapy. It is known that the devel-
opment of drugs takes 10 to 15 years, with high attrition rates. MorphoSys is minimizing these
risks by partnering its products with pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, which are
responsible for clinical development and marketing. In general, there is a risk that none of the
antibody products in MorphoSys’s current antibody pipeline will be successfully developed.
Within its secend operating segment, the MorphoSys Group generates antibodies for research
applications and diagnostics applications. There is a risk that those products will not fulfill the
requirements of the customers, or that other products will be more favorably priced.

ACQUISITION RISKS
During 2006, MorphoSys acquired the Serotec Group, through which the Company has gained
access to new distribution and sales channels. In the future, MorphoSys may acquire additional
companies or technologies to increase market share and to comptement existing business.
Acquisition can expose the Company to risks associated with the assimilation of new technolo-
gies, operations, sites and personnel, the inability to generate revenues to offset acquisition
costs, the issuance of dilutive equity securities, the inability to maintain relationships with
employees and customers, and the incurring of additional expenses associated with future
amortization or impairment of acquired intangible assets or potential business, The failure to
address the aforementioned risks may prevent the Company from achieving the anticipated
benefits from the acquisition within a reasonable time frame.
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PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT RISKS
MorphoSys is committed to generating therapeutic antibodies for its commercial partners and,
more recently, on its own accouni. Thus, the Company’s product pipeline comprises both part-
nered and proprietary therapeutic antibody development programs. These programs are subject
to a number of risks of failure inherent in the development of medical therapies. Product candi-
dates require preclinical studies and ciinical trials in humans as well as regulatory approval
prior to commercialization. To date, none of the Company’s licensees or partners has commer-
cialized a product based on MorphoSys’s HuCAL technology, and HuCA L-derived therapeutics
are not expected o be commercially available for a number of years. In addition, none of the
HuCAL-derived produci candidates has successfully completed all stages of clinical testing and
regulatory approval procedures. Preclinical and ongoing phase 1 studies may not predict and
do not ensure satety or efficacy in humans, and are nol necessarily indicative of the results that
may be achieved in pivotal clinical trials with humans.

COMPETITION AND TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE
MorphoSys's business environment is characterized by rapid change and intense competition.
[ts competitors include major pharmaceutical, chemical and biotechnology companies possess-
ing greater financial, technical and marketing resources than those available to MorphoSys.

[n additien, certain biotechnology companies have formed collaborations with large established
pharmaceutical companies to support the research, development and commercialization of prod-
ucts that may be competitive with those of MorphoSys. Moreover, certain research and aca-
demic institutions are also active in areas similar to those of MorphoSys. Some of MorphoSys’s
competitors are currently focusing their business efforts on gaining a share of the market and
offer their technology at little or no cost to collaboration partners. The first pharmaceutical prod-
uct to reach the market is often at a significant advantage to later entrants, particularly since
subsequent potential entrants must prove an advantage of their product over products already
on the market. There is a risk that MorphoSys’s competitors could succeed in developing tech-
nelogies and producis that are safer, less costly and more effective than its technologies or prod-
ucts. [n addition, there is a risk that these technologies could produce products that reach the
market earlier and could be more successful than those developed by MorphoSys.
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PRODUCT RISKS

The marketing and sale of antibody products and services for certain applications entails a po-
tential risk of product liability, and there can be no assurance that product liability claims will
not be brought against the Company. MorphoSys currently carries product liability insurance
coverage. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be able to maintain such
insurance at a reasonable cost and on reasonable terms or that such insurance will b¢ adequate
to protect MorphoSys against any or all potential claims or losses.

DEPENDENCE ON HEALTHCARE AND PHARMACEUTICAL SPENDING

MorphoSys is dependent on various sources of income, including, in particular, fees, milestone
payments and royalties from licensees and partners, the financial condition of public treasuries
and the financial markets, the government and governmental health authorities, research insti-
tutions, private health insurers and other organizations. Part of MorphoSys's revenues is derived
from entering into collaborations with partners, including pharmaceutical companies. Many
collaborative and/or out-licensing agreements provide for milestone payments and fees to be
paid subject to the satisfaction of specific criteria. MorphoSys has no control over whether its
partners or licensees will he able to meet such milestones, nor will MorphoSys be able to con-
trot whether products derived from its technelogy are being developed at all by its pariners.
Moreover, certain pharmaceutical companies may be mare likely to seek to in-license products
which have already reached a relatively advanced stage of development, such as phase 2 com-
pounds, as opposed to less advanced product candidates still in preclinical stages. Consequently,
the products in MerphoSys’s pipeline may not reach a sufficiently advanced stage of develop-
ment to be of interest to these pharmaceutical companies for some time. Therefore, the Company
can offer no assurance that there will be a guaranteed revenues stream from current or future
collaborations.

IP RISKS

MorphoSys has been invelved in legal proceedings in Germany and certain foreign jurisdictions,
including the United States. These involve claims brought by and against it for license or patent
infringement, which arose in the ordinary course of business. After the settlernent of the litigation
with Applied Molecular Evolution/Eli Lilly in September 2005, no significant patent litigation is
pending. However, the field of recombinant antiboedy libraries and phage display, in which the
Company is active, is relatively new, and the intellectuat property position of the various parties
involved is complex and litigious. Therefore, MorphoSys can offer no assurance that further
patent suits will not be brought by companies possessing existing patents or patents which have
not yet been granted or which the Company is currently not aware of. Any such proceedings,
if brought and subsequently decided against MorphoSys, could have an adverse material effect
on the business, financtal condition and aperating results of MorphoSys.
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ADDITIONAL FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

MorphoSys's future capital requirements will continue to be substantial and will be dependent
on many factors, including its ability to find licensees and to enter into satisfactory collaboration
agreements, as wetl as the success of such collaborations in generating revenues (e. g. licensing
fees, milestone payments and royalties). The costs of the preclinical testing of MorphoSys’s
products and technologies and the costs associated with filing, defending and enforcing patent
rights may exceed the returns from these products. MorphoSys may also need to raise additional
funds in future years. The Company can offer no assurance that adequate funds will be available
to MorphoSys when needed on satisfactory terms or at all. If adequate funds are not available
or are not available on acceptable terms, MorphoSys may have to reduce its expenditures for
research and development, production or marketing. Any such development could have an
adverse material effect on MoerphoSys's business, financial condition and results of operations.
If additional funds are raised by issuing shares, stockholders are likely to experience a dilution
of their interests.

CURRENCY RISKS
The Group accounts are administered in euros. A significant portion of revenues and expenses
are earned anrd incurred in currencies other than the euro. Although the euro is the most pre-
dominant currency, others, especially the US dollar, and the British pound, and to lesser degrees
the Swiss franc and the Japanese yen may experience fluctuations in the exchange rate to the
reporting currency of euro, thus impacting financial results. The Company examines the neces-
sity of hedging foreign exchange transactions to minimize the currency risk during the year
and attempts to address these risks by regularly employing derivative financial instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

Interest income earned on our available-for-sale financial assets is affected by changes in the rela-
tive level of market interest rates. The Company follows an investment policy which dictates that
all investments must have at least an investment grade (BBB+) rating to qualify as an investment.

DEPENDENCE ON KEY PERSONNEL

MorphoSys has not experienced any difficulties in attracting or retaining key management or
scientific staff, but the continued ability to recruit and retain qualified skilled personnel is criti-
cal to the Company’s success. Due to the intense competition for experienced scientists from

numerous pharmaceuticat and biotechnology companies and academic and other research insti-
tutions, there can he no assurance that MorphoSys will be able to attract and retain such per-
sonnel on acceptable terms. Planned activities will also require additional personnel, including
management, with expertise in different areas. The inability to recruit such personnel or
develop such expertise could have an adverse material impact on the Company’s operations.
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OTHER RISKS
Further, MerphoSys continuously monitors applicable environmental, health and safety, oper-
ational as well as other applicable statutory or industrial guidelines, and has implemented func-
tions to comply with all of these effectively at each of our business locations. To minimize the
manifold tax, corporate, employ ment, competition, 1P and other legal framewarks, the Company’s
management bases decision making and design of policies and processes on the advice of ex-
ternal as well as internal experts. There could be other risks beyond risks described here that
MorphoSys currently either deems as insignificant or is not aware of at the time of this report.

OPPORTUNITIES

The growing demand for healthcare will be met not only by using existing therapies, but also
by new ones originating from advances in the understanding of the biology of disease and the
application of new technologies. Innovative new products have been launched in recent years,
which are changing therapeutic approaches and are improving the quality of life for patients.
In addition, due to fast-developing economies such as India and China, the number of patients
who can henefit from medicines is expanding. Taken together, these factors represent a significant
opportunity for the healthcare industry.

MorphoSys is providing a cutting-edge technology for the development of fully human antibodies.
Human antibodies have proven to be an extremely successful class of drugs, with tremendous
growth potential. The demand for antibodies and the interest of the industry in this class of
drugs has sharply increased over the last 12 to 18 months, clearly underpinned by several
acquisitions and large licensing agreements in this field. But not only the use of antibodies as
therapeutics, but also for research purposes and diagnostics applications, represents future
growth opportunities for MorphoSys.

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES

MerphoSys has established itself as one of the leading providers of fully human therapeutic anti-
bodies. During 2005 and 2006, the scope of competition substantially decreased through the
acquisitions of two major competitors. Only a few companies offer technologies to develop fully
human antibodies, During the last years, MorphoSys has built up a strong internaticnal patent
portfelio, and has secured its freedom to operate und to commercialize its technologies world-
wide. Today, MorphoSys owns several issued and pending patents on its core antibody technolo-
gies, which provide the Company with protection from competition. Due to high market entry
barrciers for new companies, an increasing demand for antibody therapeutics as well as a de-
crease in competition, MorphoSys expects an increasing number of antibody programs and part-
nerships over the coming years.




— 084

By participating in drug development with multiple partners, MorphoSys has effectively low-
ered its risk profile. With currently more than 40 active therapeutic antibody development pro-
grams ongoing with its partners, the chance that MorphoSys will participate financially in one
or more marketed drugs is much higher than if fewer partnerships and fewer programs were
ongoing. As time goes on and devetopment projects advance, it is expected that both the number
and the magnitude of success-based payments will increase.

MorphoSys is also developing therapeutic antibodies for its own account. Currently, two com-
pounds, MOR103 and MOR202, are in preclinical development. The Company plans to increase
its investments in its own development programs and intends to develop the antibody MOR103
for the treatment of rheumatoid arthritis at least as far as proof of concept in man {phase 2a).
By taking its internal programs forward without a partner, the Company stands to benefit from
more lucrative financial terms at such time when an alliance for further development is signed.

RESEARCH ANTIBODIES

Through the acquisitions of Biogenesis and Serote¢, MorphoSys established itself within the
top 20 of the worldwide leading providers of antibodies and antibody technologies for research
and diagnostic applications. AbD is a full-service antibody company offering a unique custom
monoclonal antibody technology, a huge selection of ready-made antibodies, large-scale antibody
production from hybridemas, and a variety of other antibody services. The Company has estab-
lished a strong base from which to commercialize HuCA L-derived antibodies in the research
and diagnostics markets, These markets have traditionally been totally dominated by antibodies
derived from animals, MorphoSys intends to lead the transition to new in vitro technologies
for antibody generation. In contrast to animal-based methods, in vitre technologies, such as the
HuCAL library, offer greater speed, throughput and flexihility in antibody generation.

The Company has demonstrated its ability to complete acquisitions in this segment of the indus-
try and to use these transactions to accelerate its growth. MorphoSys intends to continue using
a merger and acquisition strategy to augment strong organic growth as a means of increasing
its market share and achieving its growth objectives. From its current position as a leader in
the European market, the Company expects to hecome one of the leading global players in this
field.
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PERFORMANCE-BASED MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

The Group is managed and controlted within the framework of a performance-based manage-
ment system. Our objective is to systematically and continucusly increase the value of the enter-
prise — through profitable growth and a focus on businesses which coffer the best development
opportunities in terms of competitiveness and performance. An integrated control concept,
value-based performance indicators together with measures to enhance efficiency and growth
as well as optimize capital empleyed are key elements of our management system.

Operational business performance is measured on the basis of revenues and profit from opera-
tions. On a quarterly basis, budget planning for the current fiscal year is reviewed and updated.
Furthermore, a mid-term planning scenario covering the upcoming years is updated on an an-
nual basis.

Key performance indicators for the two operating segments include:

12/31/2007

in € 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 [FORECAST)
- LR ] L]

MORPHOSYS GROUP
Group revenues 33.5 million 53.0 million 60-65 million
Group profit from operations 6.2 million 6.2 million 7-10 million
THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES SEGMENT

2/3 of total
Revenues 29.1 million 34.7 million Group revenues
Number of partnered therapeutic
antibody projects 29 43 50
Number of proprietary therapeutic
antibody projects _ 4 2 2
ABD SEGMENT (INCLUDING SEROTEC
FROM JANUARY 12, 2006, ONWARDS)

1/3 of total
Revenues 4.3 millicn 18.3 millicn Group revenues

The Company is presently reviewing additional key performance indicators beyond those listed
ahove.
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OUTLOOK AND FORECAST

Despite the slight weakening of the global economy, the market environment is anticipated to
remain generally favorable. For 2007, MorphoSys anticipates that it will further increase its market
share for the application of human antibodies in therapeutics, research and diagnostics. A growth-
oriented strategy provides the road map for MorphoSys's future development.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE HEALTHCARE SECTOR
According to [MS Health, the healthcare sector is expected to grow with only 5% to 6% — the
lowest growth rate in years. Reasons for the lower growth rates are patent expiries and the
reform of the healthcare systems within the industrialized countries. During 2007, therapeutic
products with an annual sales value of US$ 16 billion are expected to lose patent protection. This
will impact revenues and profits of pharmaceutical companies. For 2007, the approval of 25 to
35 new drugs is anticipated, e.g. GlaxoSmithKline’s breast cancer drug Tykerb® or Novartis's
Tasigna® a new treatment for chronic myeloid leukemia. However, many of those new products
target smaller niche indications, and will not contribute to stronger sales growth,

The trend towards consolidation through M & A activities will to continue with even more deals
than in 2006, especially between pharmaceutical companies and bictechnology companies with
innovative drugs or technologies.

STRATEGY
Looking forward, MorphoSys will continue to conduct its business in two operating segments.
Both segments are forecast to further grow and to increase market share within the antibodies
industry. The Company aims to sign additional partnerships with leading international research
institutions and to establish the proprietary HuCAL technology as an industry standard for anti-
body generation.

Additicnally, the Company will continue to invest in proprietary drug development, as well as
in technology development, to ensure its technological leadership. For i1s lead program MOR103,
MorphoSys has planned to file all necessary applications to commence a phase 1 clinical trial
in the second half of 2007. For MOR202, a preclinical candidate had been selected by the end of
2006. The Company intends to continue preclinical development of its second ¢compound.
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The Research Antibodies segment {AbD) is expected to keep expanding its market share. AbD
will focus on Web-based commercialization of its products, with sophisticated technical ser-
vices and customer support. One goal is to introduce novel research antibodies of high interest
rapidly, and to increase the number of HuC A L-based products in the catalog. Additicnally, the
unit will seek to sign further strategic distribution agreements with large research antibody
suppliers.

REVENUES

Tn line with growth expectations for a life sciences "growth” company, MorphoSys sees its long-
term organic revenues growth averaging at at least (5% per annum. For 2007, MorphoSys antici-
pates total revenues of € 60 mitlion to € 65 million and organic growth of 15% to 25% in com-
parison to 2006.

In 2007, the Therapeutic Antibodies segment will provide approximately two-thirds of total rev-
enues. MorphaSys receives periodic license payments, funded research payments, perfermance-
based success payments, and clinical milestones. [n 2007, it is anticipated that milestones and
success-based payments will contribute an increasing percentage of total revenues as compared
to previous years. Such performance-based payments lend themselves to potentially higher
upside, but also more volatility and unpredictability throughout the year.

Revenues from the Research Antibodies segment (AbD) are expected to further increase and
account for approximately one-third of total 2007 revenues. Revenues from the AbD segment
comprise revenues for ready-made antibodies from the antibody catalogs, revenues for custom
monoclonal antibody services, and revenues for contract manufacturing services.

EXPENSES

In 2007, expenses are expected to continuously increase due to a higher full-year total average
head count of the MorphoSys Group as compared to the previous year. Further increases in
costs are likely to arise from new investment into proprietary product development and tech-
nology development.

PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
The MorphoSys Group is committed to future growth on a profitable basis. On the Group level,
MorphoSys intends te achieve a profit from operations of € 7 million to € 10 million.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
As in the past, research and development is to remain the key focus in coming years. MorphoSys
intends to continue its investments in technological improvement in the area of human anti-
bodies. Additionally, the Company is developing proprietary therapeutic antibody candidates in
the area of inflammation (MOR103) and oncelogy (MOR202). Expenses for product development
will increase with the advancement of those programs.

HEAD COUNT
Buring 2007, increase in head count is mainly contingent upon new partnerships or expansions
of existing husiness activities ta support this.

FINANCING

MaorphoSys has been cash flow positive since 2003, and the current business model is predi-
cated on running operations independent of the capital markets. Free cash flow and profits from
operations are intended to be reinvested into research and wdevelopment as well as in future
growth opportunities in order to secure the long-term growth of the Company. On this basis,
additional financing required for the continuation of normal operations is currently not fore-
seen in 2007. However, financing of future acquisitions cannot be excluded per se on this basis.

FUTURE CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND ORGANIZATION
A streamlining of the Group’s corporate structure is planned for 2007, in order to increase ad-
ministrative efficiency and streamline reporting processes. In that vein, the two US companies
were merged under the name MorphoSys US, Inc, in January 2007,

DIVIDENDS
Dividends may only be declared and paid from the accumulated retained earnings (after deduc-
tion of certain reserves) shown in the Company’s annual German statutory accounts, Such
amounts differ from the total of additional paid-in capital and accumulated deficit as shown in
the accompanying consolidated financiat statements as a result of the adjustments made to
present the consclidated financial statements in accordance with [FRS. The Company’s German
statutery accounts showed taxable income in 2006; however, as of December 31, 2006, and
2005, they reflected no accumulated earnings available for distribution, and the Company’s
ability to pay dividends will therefore depend upaon its future earnings.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations (IFRS)

A

in € NOTE | 2006 -
—— e --— —a e A - Y §
Revenues L 1q 53,031,172
Operating Expenses o e !
Cost of Goods Sold ) 2 i 7,§7B,641 :
Research and Development ' 17,458,347
Sales, General andr Administrative 21,418,416
Total Operating Expenses 46,85:5_)&
Profit from Operations o _ _6_,125,768_
interest Income oz
. Imterest Eoense ot
. OtherExoenses. Net o B0sIn |
Profit before Taxes . ! 5.28?&@ |
_ Income Tax Benefit /(Income Tax Expense) 18 742,046 -
NET PROFIT . 6,027934
_ Basic Net Profit per Share 9 0.94
Diluted Net Profit per Share ig 0.93
Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit
_ perShare . 9 6.379.046
Shares Used in Computing Diluted Net Profit :
~ pe_a.[.S % 6,469,839 |
/

See accompanying notes

2005
2l

33,486,843
2,543,465
14,029,312
10,753,725

27,326,502

6,160,341
08,101
27728
879_,259
__5i11,955
(¢35,586)
4,676,369
0.84
0.83

5,578,865

_5,65Q.378_
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Consolidated Balance Sheets (IFRS)

See accompanying notes

,n€ . NOTE 12/31/2006 12/31/2005
ASBETS )
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3. 3765320 | 4.017.029
Available-for-sale Financial Assets 4. ] 62260552 49542541
 Accounts Receivable . S 3,699,380 | 3340812
Otﬁer Reéeivabé; e e e e e 5 ! ]_]0'73.:4 25,13;
tventories, Net 7 | 351,405 485,713
7 Prelpaid Ex;‘)eAn;ersr and (:)th;r Current Assets 7“- 2,096,961 1,055,4@}
‘‘‘‘‘ AS?EFS,P‘,"’S?ifi?_d as Heid for Sale o 8 664,108 -
Total Current Assets 76,108,496 58,474,689
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 8 5,894,112 4,696,863
Paents, Net . o | ..193008¢ | 2361005
Licénses, Net 9 7 7,776,374 8,457,091
Soware.net o amen | s
7 Knowihnw and Customér Lisfs, Netﬂ 7 1A1_7 4834289 1485567
Goodwill - H 27,002,591 4,137,349
Deferred Tax Asset '8 1455723 | -
OtherAssels 10| . 1577570 7257
* Total Non-current Assets 51,734,626 21,641,955
TOTAL ASSETS 127,843,122 80,116,644
oo/
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Consolidatea Stitemen
of Qpera’ ons

@ Consolidated Balance Sheets

in € ) . NOTE l 12/31/2% | 12/31/2005

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY .

Current Liabilities ‘T T
Accouris Payable 2| 104ss70 4021891
Current Port_ilgn_p__f_ Licenses Payable 12 ! 126,382 ‘1,012_._,233__
Prowsmns E;Ijld Tax Liabilities _ 13 1,082,042 978,719

Current .P.o_rti:qn:;).f l:)efe_rred Revenues S 1q 6.648,107 4,735,205
Total Current Liabilities 1 Tie,312,330 11,047,751

Nen-current Liabilities o —_: :—
Provisions, Net of Current Porticn 13 62,763 62,763

bt R, et ot Corentpoion. o | emsoor | aswes
Conys_e_rtible Bonds Due 1o Related Parties o . 15 50,214
Péfﬁ_n}_@dlTé;tﬂLiarll)riliéy ST 1, 18 1,260.0;’;'6
Total Non-current Liabilities " 0,479,473 5,061,122

Stockholders' Equity 14, 15, 16 T
Common Stock, € 3.00 Par Value; S
Ordinary Shares Authorized (12,729,785 and 11,416,850}

Ordinary Shares Issued (6,715,322 and 6,025,863}
Ordinary Shares Cutslanding (6,686,160 and 5,996,701)
for 2006 and 2005, respectively
Treasury Stock (29,162 and 29,162 shares ;
o f_c_;r 2006 and 20057 respf;g:tively), at post R 2[}‘135263 18,066,886
‘ Additional Paid-in Qapi;al 123,878,001 . 96.412‘.849‘
VAccur_nulated__O_t_h:er Comprléﬁer;s.ive i-ricofn-{a AAAAAAA 1.7359,';’478 \ 877.,86'3"
Accumulated Deficit ' (45321803} ¢ (51,349,827}
Total Stockhaiders Equity | 100,051,319 | 64,007,771
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY i 127,843,122 : o 80,116,644
w !

See accompanying notes
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Consolidated Statements of Changes
in Stockholders’ Equity (IFRS)

COMMON STOCK

o o
o SHARES €
BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 1, 2005 5,438,852 16,316,556
Compensation Related to the Grant of Stock Options and Convertible Bonds
Exercise of Options and Convertible Bonds |ssued to Related Parties ... .g9e878 290634

Other Comprehensive Income:

Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-sale Securities,

Comprehensive Income

BALANCE AS OF DEGEMBER 31, 2005 6,025,863 18,077,589

Exercise Q_T._Options and Convertible Bonds I_ssue to t o 6,561 289.683“

Capital Increase against Contribution in Kind,
~ Net of Issuance Cost of € 32,660 ] 208,560 625,680

Capital Increase, Net of Issuance Cost of € 472,885 384,338 1,153,014

Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-sale Securities,
_ Net of Deferred Tax

_ Elteats from Equity-related Recognition of Deferred Taxes .

Comprehensive Income

BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 6,715,322 20,145,966

See accompanying notes
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[T 1

Censoldoted Statemerts
of Operat ong
Censotdated Balanze $neets

® Consolidated Statemants of
Changes in Stockhelders’ Equity
TOTAL
" TREASURY STOGK . ADDITIONAL REVALUATION TRANSLATION ACCUMULATED STC?CKHOL-
PAID-IN CAPITAL RESERVE RESERVE DEFICIT DERS ECQUITY
e SHARES € o C e €.- € -— . £ oo &
30,062 (11,033) 78,646,377__ _ 403,& __49,23_ _(56_,9_2_9_,196) 39,378,486
]._132.]04 1,132,104
. o wesee 1,476,563
,,,,,, (900) 30 23m 2700
_______ 115,446,069 16916488
______ wase 181,450
| 243,631 a3
................ 4676369 4,676,369
L - 5,101,450
29,162 (10,703} 96,412,_8_4? ) B 5_8_4_,632 ) 293,184 (5191?7,827] 64,007,771
,,,,,,,,,, 1250891 1,250,891
. 2,1739’,618 1
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 7997500 8,623,180
___________________________________________ 15477143 16,630,157
| 623420
1141.309) o
(26) o
_______________________________ 6,027,934
- o 6,510,019
29,162 (10,703) 123,878,001 1,066,790 293,158 _(4&21_,39&_ M

|

i\



— 096

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (IFRS)

2006 |

in € NOTE 2005
OPERATING ACTIVITIES )
Net Profit 6,027,934 4,676,369
Adjustments to Reconcile Met Profit
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation T R 1915975 1 928,002
A i nrofr in;ar;gibie VAstrsgtrsr T 3435279 2,696,560
I;lgo;ne Tax é_éﬁ:éfit . N (524,615) (344,817]
 Net Gain on Sales of Financial Assels (667,534 (611,187)
Unrealized Net Loss/(Gain) on Derivative
. Financial INSTUMents o | (18,372) 336,004
Loss/{Gain) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/
mtangible ASSets | (8929) | 30188
7 ”Recroglji;iron_.of_:p_g_ferr_red Revenue (15,981,_(_:_?__2__} (11,669,191}
Stock-based Compensation _1.242.671 1,132,104
Changesm Operating Assets and Liabiliies: |
__Accounts R‘?C?i"?bl? o 1,140,530 (624,172)
Prepald :Iﬁxpi)ié.n§es. 'and'Olher Asgets (2,954,579 (909,014]____
“__Accounts Payable and Pr_gyf_gi_c_ms 77777777777777 2,060,891 869,890
- Licenses Payable {885,851) (1,006,679}
Other Liabilities 1,542,839 (1,520,771}
......... I.Z.)le}lerred Revenue 20423400 10,233,703

Cash Generated from Qperations

16,328,247

4,216,989

Interest Paid

20,480

228,654

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

16,348,727

4,445,643

See accompanying notes

N
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Conzg’ talcd 8t dements
ol Oper neny,

B k Conze g trd 8u ance et
b= Cenrg .74 5 emerte cf
Chang. mSrazkrzge TEruT,
—s Consclidated Statements of
Cash Flows
in € NOTE 2006 ] 2005
L ° °
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: ,
Purchases of Ftnanmal Assets | 33 848 867} (43,317,784)
Proceeds from Sales of Ftnanclal Assets I 22 778 680 | 19, 611 985
Purchases uf Property, Plant and Equment ' (3 548 865) i (625 553)
. - -
Proceeds from Disposals of Property, .
Plant and Eqmpment 38, 850 75 914
Addltlons to Intanglbles ' (425, 931) (73 499)
Acqunsmons. Net of Cash Acqwred (21,172,502) (7,069,417}
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 20 ' (36,178,635) (31,398,354}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES: i
Proceeds from the Issuance of Equny , 17,103,041 17,399,722
Proceeds from the Exercise of Optrons and ,
Convertlble Bonds : 3,029,301 1,479,263
Net of Proceeds and Payments from the Issuance . !
Granted to Related Partxes ‘ (11,843) 59,478)
i anCIaI Instruments 6 ! (93,650) | (75 OOO)
Proceeds from the |sposatof Denvatlves 6 31 006 i 136 529
Net Cost of Share Issuance (504 945] | [483 253)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 20 19,552,9]0 . 13,397,733
. LAl
Effect of Exchange Rate Differences on Cash 25,289 ' 40,759
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (251,709) | (8,514,169)
CASH AND CASMH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 4,017,029 12,531,198
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE .
END OF THE PERIOD 3,765,320 4,017,029

See accompanying notes

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 1‘ ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
! ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION
MorphoSys AG (the "Company” or "MorphoSys”) is a bio-
technology company using combinatorial biology for drug
discovery with the principai objective of developing and
commercially exploiting new enabling technologies across
a broad scientific spectrum. The Company was founded

in July 1992 as a German limited liability company. In
June 1998, MorphoSys hecame a German stock corporation,
In March 1999, the Company went public on Germany’s
Neuer Markt, the stock exchange designated for high-
growth enterprises. On January 15, 2003, MorphoSys AG
was admitted to the Prime Standard segment of the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange.

CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
The Company has five wholly owned subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “MorphoSys Group”):

MorphoSys USA, Inc., was incorporated in the United
States on February 16, 2000. The subsidiary’s purpose
was to assist the Company in the sale and licensing of
MorphoSys AG products. MorphoSys USA, Inc., substan-
tially ceased its operations in November 2002,

MorphoSys 1P GmbH was incorporated in Munich, Germany,
on November 6, 2002. The subsidiary’s purpose is to pur-
chase, maintain and administer certain intangible assets
of the MorphoSys Group. The Company’s operations are
physically located on the premises of MorphoSys AG, and
operations commenced on December 31, 2002.

Serotec Ltd. with its subsidiaries Serotec, Inc., Serotec
GmbH and Oxford Bintechnology Ltd. {together referred
te as the “Serotec Group”) was acquired by MorphoSys in
January 2006 and became a wholly owned subsidiary of
MorphoSys AG. The Serotec Group has been integrated
within MorphoSys’s existing AbD segment. The purchase
price of approximately £ 20 million (apprex. € 29.3 mil-
lion) was paid in cash {£ 14 million or € 20.5 millicn) and
the remainder in 208,560 new MorphoSys shares from a
capital increase against contribution in kind.

Serotec Ltd. and Serotec, Inc., were renamed MorphoSys
UK Ltd. and MorphoSys US, Inc., as of January 2007.

In January 2005, MorphaSys acquired Biogenesis Ltd.,
Poole, UK, and Biogenesis, Inc., New Hampshire, USA,
for total consideration of £ 5.25 million less net debt of
approximately £ 0.7 millicn. Biogenesis UK was {irst re-
named MorphoSys UK Ltd, and in 2007 again renamed
Poole Real Estate Ltd. Biogenesis, Inc., was renamed
MorphoSys US, merged into Serotec, Inc. The merged
entity resumed the name MorphoSys US Inc.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006, were authorized for issuance in accord-
ance with a resolution of the Management Board on Feb-
ruary 6, 2007, The Management Board is represented by
Dr. Simon E. Moroney (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Dave
Lemus {(Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer) and Dr. Marlies Sproll (Chief Scientific Officer).
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The Supervisory Board is represented by Dr. Gerald Moller
(Chairman, Chairman of the Remuneration & Nomination
Committee), Prof. Dr. Jirgen Drews {Deputy Chairman,
Remuneration & Nominaticn Committee, Science & Tech-
nology Committee), Dr. Daniel Camus {Audit Committee),
Dr. Metin Colpan (Remuneration & Nomination Committee,
Science & Technology Committee), Prof. Dr. Andreas
Plickthun (Chairman of the Science & Technology Com-
mittee) and Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon (Chairman of the
Audit Committee). The Supervisory Board is empowered
to amend the financial statements after the resolution

of the Management Board.

The registered offices of MerphoSys AG are located at
Lena-Christ-Str. 48 in 82152 Martinsried/Planegg,
Germany.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) BASIS OF ADOPTION

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with the International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) requires management to make certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

The accounting policies set out helow have been applied
consistently to all perieds presented in these consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 2 “SHARE-BASED PAYMENT"

IFRS 2 “Share-hased Payment” requires an expense (o
be recognized where the Group buys goods or services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-seitled
transactions”), or in exchange for other assets equivalent
in value to a given number of shares or rights over shares
(“cash-settled transactions™). The main impact of IFRS 2

on the Group refers to the expense associated with emplov-

ees’ and directors’ share options and other share-hased

incentives by using an option pricing model.

—a Notes to the Consolidzted
Financial Statements

In accordance with [FRS 2.54, the Group has applied IFRS 2
to equity-settled awards granted on or after Januvary 1,
1999, In accordance with 1FRS 2.56, options granted prior
to lanuary 1, 1999, are therefore not expensed. All infor-
mation is nenetheless disclosed in line with [FRS 2.44 and
2.45. Further detatls are given in the Notes to the Censoli-
dated Financial Statements — sections 15 and 16.

IFRS 3 “BUSINESS COMBINATIONS,” IAS 34 *IMPAIRMENT OF
ASSETS” AND 1AS 38 "INTANGIBLE ASSETS™

IFRS 3 applies to accounting for business combinations
for which the agreement date is on or after March 31,
2004, IFRS 3 requires that all business combinations are
accounted for using the purchase method, whereby iden-
tifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are meas-
ured initially at their fair value. Any excess of the pur-
chase price over the amounts allocated is recognized as
goodwill. The goodwill is subject to a regular review for
possible impairment.

The Company determined the accounting for business
combinations in 2006 only provisionally. It is currently
performing a purchase price allocation. The outcome may
result in an adjustment of the goodwill following 1FRS
3.62; any adjustments to the provisional values will be
recognized within twelve months of the acquisition date
(IFRS 3.69).

The useful economic life of intangible assets is generally
assessed at the level of individual assets as having either

a finite or an indefinite life. The Company has not identified
any assets with an indefinite life. Intangible assets with a
finite life have been amortized over their useful life. Amor-
tization periods and methods for intangible assets with
finite useful economic lives are reviewed annually or earlier
where an indicator of impairment exists.
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Receivables, liabilities, provisions, income and expenses,
and profits between consolidated companies are eliminated
on consolidation.

EARLY ADOPTION OF OTHER INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Company has not yet applied IFRS 7, which will be effec-
tive for annual periods on or after January 1, 2007, The
application will not have significant effects on the entity’'s
financial statements.

B) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANGE

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the [nternational Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Internaticn-
al Accounting Standards Board {TASB), London, in con-
sideration of interpretations of the Standing Interpretations
Commirttee (SIC), the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) and the IFRS adopted
by the European Commission.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2006, comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “MorphoSys
Group”}.

C) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements are presented in euros unless
otherwise stated. They are prepared on the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities are
stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments,
available-for-sale financial assets and certain licenses
(Cambridge Antibody Technology Ltd. [CAT] and XOMA
Ireland Ltd.). All figures in this report are rounded either
to the nearest euro or thousands of euros.

[AS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2005. The Company decided to adopt TAS 27 for
all financial statements beginning January 1, 2003. The
accounting policies have been applied consistently by Group
entities in accordance with TAS 27.28.

D) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
Intercompany balances and transactions and any unreal-
ized gains arising from intercompany transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consclidated financial state-
ments in accordance with TAS 27.24. Unrealized losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains. Please
see the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
section 1A, [FRS 3 “Business Combinations,” [AS 36
“Impairment of Assets” and [AS 38 “Intangible Assets”
for further details.

E) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’
defines the accounting for transactions and balances in
foreign currencies. Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rate as of the date of
the transaction. Foreign exchange differences arising on
these translations are recegnized in the statement of oper-
ations. On the balance sheet date, assets and liabilities are
translated at the closing rate, and income and expenses

2

are translated at the average exchange rate for the period.
Any foreign exchange differences deriving from these
translations are recorded in the statement of operations.
Any further foreign exchange differences on a Group level
are recognized in other comprehensive inceme {equity).

F) INTEREST

MorphoSys uses interest rates to calculate fair values and
discount certain liability. For steck-hased compensation
calculation, MorphoSys uses the interest rate of a German
government bond with a duration of two years at grant
date.

To discount certain obligations in cennection with the settle-
ment agreement with CAT, the Company used a 13% inter-
est rate to discount its liability.
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G} DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses derivative financial instruments te hedge
its exposure to foreign exchange rate risks. In accordance
with IAS 39.9, all derivative financial instruments are held
for trading and recognized initially at cost. Subsequent 1o
initial recognition, derivative financial instruments are
stated at fair value, which is their quoted market price as
of the balance sheet date. Since the derivatives were not
tested for hedge accounting, any resulting gain or loss is
recognized in the statement of operations. According to
the Group’s foreign currency hedging policy, receivahles
which are definite and collectable within a twelve-month
period wilt he hedged.

H) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all cash at bank, in hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash or cash equivalents. The Com-
pany invests its cash in deposits with two major German
financial institutions, namely HypoVerginshank and
Deutsche Bank.

1) FINANCIAL ASSETS

All financial assets are initially recognized at cost, being
the fair value of the consideration given and including
acquisition charges associated with the investment.

The Company accounts for its investments in debt and
equity securities in accordance with [AS 39, The manage-
ment determines the proper classifications of financial
assets at the time of purchase and re-evaluates such des-
ignations as of each balance sheet date. As of December
31, 2006, and as of December 31, 2005, the financial as-
sets held by the Group have been classified as available for
sale. These financial assets are recognized or derecognized
by the Group on the date it commits to purchase or sell the
financial assets. After initial recognition, available-for-sale

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT @ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
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financial assets are measured at fair value, with any result-
ing gain or loss reported directly in other comprehensive
income within equity until the financial assets are sold,
collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the financial
assets are determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative loss is reported in the statement of operations.

The Company considers a decline in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets which is longer than six
months in duraticn to be deemed other than temporary
unless specific facts and circumstances indicate otherwise.
If, in a subsequent periad, the fair value increases, the im-
pairment loss is reversed with the amount of reversal
included in other comprehensive income for equity securi-
ties and in the statement of operations for debt securities.

J) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivahle are stated at their cost less any allow-
ance for doubtful accounts {see belew) and impairment
losses (see accounting policy NJ.

The allowance for douhtful accounts is based on the man-
agement’s assessment of the collectibility of specific cus-
tomer accounts and the aging of the accounts receivable.
[f there is deterioration in a major customer’s creditworthi-
ness or if actual defaults are higher than the historical ex-
perience, the management’s estimates of the recoverability
of amounts due to the Company could be adversely affected.
Based on the management’s assessment, allowances in the
amount of € 189,103 as of December 31, 2006, and € 41,461
as of December 31, 2005, were recognized. The Company
does require collateral from customers for accounts receiv-
able in the AbD segment. The amount of collaterals held

as of December 31, 20006, was not material.
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K} INVENTORY
Inventories are stated on a FIFO basis at the lower of manu-
facturing /acquisition costs and net realizable value. Manufac-
turing costs of self-produced inventories comprise all costs
which are directly attributable and an appropriate poriion
of overheads. Inventories can be subclassified into consum-
ables, work in progress and finished goods., Work in prog-
ress and consumables account for 2% and t % of total values
respectively.

L} PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accu-
mulated depreciation (see also the Notes to the Consolidat-
ed Financial Statements - section 8) and impairment losses
(see accounting policy N). Replacements and improvements
are capitalized while general repairs and maintenance are
charged to expenses as incurred. Assets are depreciated
over their expected useful lives using the straight-line
method (three to five years). Leasehold improvements are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets
{ten to fifty years).

M) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

MA) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Rescarch costs are expensed as incurred. Development
costs are expensed as incurred ([AS 38.5 and 1AS 38.11—
38.23).

MB) PATENT COSTS
Patents ohtained by the Group are stated at cost less accu-
mutated amortization (see helow) and impairment losses
(see accounting policy N). Capitalized costs principally
relate to the costs of legal counsel. Patent costs are amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over the lower of their esti-
mated useful life (ten years) and the remaining patent
term. Amortization commences when the patent is issued.
The Company’s patents covering its proprietary HuCAL
technology were granted in Australia in October 2000, in
the United States of America in October 2001 and in Europe
in June 2002. Further patent applications are pending in
Canada and Japan.

MC) LICENSE RIGHTS
The Cormpany acquired license rights by making up-front
license payments, annual maintenance fees and sublicense
pavments Lo third parties. The Company amortizes up-front
license payments on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the acquired license (ten years). The amorti-
zation period and the amortization method are reviewed at
each balance sheet date {IAS 38.104). Annual maintenance
fees are amortized over the term of each annual agreement.
Sublicense payments are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the life of the contract or the estimated useful life of
the collaboration for those contracts without a stipulated
term.

MD) SOFTWARE

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization
{see below) and impairment losses (see accounting policy N}.
Amaortization is charged to the statement of operations on

a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of three
yvears. Software is amortized from the date it is available
for use.
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ME} KNOW-HOW AND CUSTOMER LISTS
MorphoSys established a purchase price allocation {PPA)
required by IFRS 3 “Business Combinations.” Intangible
assets identified consist of customer lists, know-how as
well as customer relationships and distributors,

ME) GOODWILL
The goodwill recognized is partly attributable to expected
synergies to be achieved as well as to the skills of the
acquired workforce.

MG) SUBSEQUENT EXPENDITURE

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets
is only capitalized when it increases the future economic
henefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.
All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

NJ IMPAIRMENT
The management evaluates the carrying amount of the
Group’s assets for potential impairment at each balance
sheet date or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not
be recoverable. If any indication of impairment exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever the recoverable amount is
less than the carrying amount of an asset. Impairment
losses are recognized in the statement of operations.

The recoverable amount of an asset is defined as the high-
er of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that does not generate independent cash in-
flows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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An impairment loss in respect of a receivable is reversed
if the subsequent increase in the recoverable amount
can be refated objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized. With respect to other
assets, an impairment loss (s reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recover-
able amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amaortization, il no impairment loss
had been recognized.

0) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and orther payables are stated at their repayment
amounts. Payables with repayment dates exceeding one
year are discounted to their net present values.

Payables of uncertain timing or amount are shown as
provisions.

P) CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Company issued convertible honds to the Supervisory
Board, Management Board and employees of the Group
under application of 1AS 32 and [AS 39. In accordance with
1AS 32.28, the equity portion of the bond has to be sepa-
rated and presented as additional paid-in capital. The equi-
ty component is deducted from the fair value of the bond.
The remaining value is recognized as stock-hased compen-
sation. The Company applies the provisions of IFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” for all convertible bonds granted
to the Supervisory Board, Management Board and employ-
ees of the Group.
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Q) REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Company’s revenues include technology access fees
and fees derived from research and development collabora-
tion agreements predominately with companies hased in
the United States.

Revenues related to nonrefundable technology access fees,
subscription fees and license fees are deferred and recog-
nized on a straight-line basis over the relevant periods of
the agreement, generally the research term or the estimat-
ed useful life of the collaboration for those contracts with-
out a stipulated term unless a more accurate means of rec-
oghizing revenue is available. Research and development
collabaration service fees are recognized in the period
when the services are provided. Milestane revenues are
recognized upon achievement of certain criteria.

Investment grants from governmental agencies for the sup-
port of specific research and development projects for which
cash has been received are recorded as revenues to the
extent the refated expenses have been incurred. Under the
terms of the investment grants, the governmental agencies
generally have the right to audit the use of the payments
received by the Company,

[ accordance with 1AS 18.21, 18.25 and [AS 20.18, the
total consideration in revenue arrangements with multiple
deliverables will be allocated among the separately identi-
fiable componenis based on their respective fair values
under application of IAS 18.20, and the applicable revenue
recoghition criteria will be considered separately for each
of the separate components.

Deferred revenue represents revenues received but not vet
earned as per the terms of the contracts. Grant revenues
in 2006 amounted te € 0.2 million {2005: € 0.4 million).

R} EXPENSES

RA) COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goeds sold comprises the cost of manufactured
products and the acquisition cost of purchased goods which
have been sold.

RB) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company applies the provisions of IFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” which obligates the Company to record
the estimated fair value for stock options and other awards
at the measurement date as a compensation expense over
the period in which the employees render the services
associated with the award. Stock-based compensaticn ex-
penses for the full year 2006 amounted to € 1,242,971 and
were shown in COGS, S, G&A and R&D expenses for the
period. Stock-based compensation expense of € 1,132,104
for the full year 2005 was reclassified to cost of goods soid
(€ 29,293), sales, general and administrative expenses

(€ 681,142) as well as research and development expenses
(€ 421,669).

RC) OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in
the statement of operations on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

8) INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognized in the statement of opera-
tions as it occurs, taking into account the effective yield
on the asset.

T) INTEREST EXPENSE
Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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U} {NCOME TAXES
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises cur-
rent and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the state-
ment of operations except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is rec-
ognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable in-
come for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the batance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable with respect to previous years.

Deferred tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial re-
porting purposes and the amounts used for taxation pur-
poses. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realization or settlement of the carry-
ing amount of assets and liabilities, using lax rates enact-
ed or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax as-
sets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

2 ’ SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged in providing products or services and that
is subject to risks and returns that are different frem those
of other segments.

GROUP MANKAGEMENT REPCORT @ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

F—  Croasgi2ilia
Fnangia Stater oot

—o Notes to the Conselidated
Financial Statements

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. The primary format,
business segments, is based on the Group’s management
and internal reporting structure. Segment results and as-
sets include items directly attributable 1o a segmenti as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis,

General and administrative expenses are allocated te the
respective business segments by applying an allocation
along the head count. Intangibles attributable to both seg-
ments are allocated along revenues.

The Group consists of the following main business
SegMENLS:

THERAPEUTIC ANTIBODIES
MorphoSys possesses one of the leading technologies in
the generation of human antibody therapeutics and be-
spoke antibody research projects. The Company makes
use of its technology in collaborations with international
pharmaceutical and biotechnelogy companies, as well
as on its own account.

ANTIBODIES DIRECT — ABD

The AbD segment leverages MorphoSys’s core technolo-
gical capabilities in the design and manufacture of anti-
bodies for research purposes. It commercializes the
HuCAL technology, focusing on the custom generation of
research antibodies for partners cn an individual basis.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

In presenting information on the basis of geographical seg-
ments, segment revenues are based on the geographical
location of the customers. Segmenti assets are based on the
geographical location of the assets.
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THERAPEUTIC

ANTIBODIES

ABD

UNALLOCATED

CONSOLIDATED

in 000's € 2006 | 2005 | 2006 | 2005 | 2006 | 2005 . 2006 | 2005
REVENUES 34,713 29,139 18,318 4,348 53,031 33,487
Costof Goads Sold V| 7975 2,943 | ! Ak 2,543
SEGMENT RESULT 16,589 14,778 (3,428) (2,911) (6,985) | (5,707 6,176 6,160
Interest Income. ~~f o i 50 108
Interest Expense | M3y 77
Other Expenses, Net | 1 e | | e | e 807 9.
TOTAL PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 5,286 5,112
Income Tax/

Aincome Tax Expense) 1 | | o | e | i | Az (436}
NET PROFIT 6,028 4,676
Current Assets 1895 274z | 8,649\ 1,360 1 65564 1 54373 | 76,108 58,475
Non-current Assets 2,064 A 36,967 8,957 12.704 11,564 51,735 21,642
TOTAL SEGMENT ASSETS 3,959 3,863 45,616 10,317 78,268 65,937 127,843 80,117
Current Liabilities 1 6,476 4704 4,426 363 Ll 5,981 18,312 11,048
Nronr—pg[rgmﬂLirabi\itiegm 6,216 3,687 2,483 940 781 434 9,480 5,0(;1
TOTAL SEGMENT
LIABILITIES 12,692 8,391 4,909 1,303 8,191 6,415 27,792 16,109
Capital Expenditure 2,128 L334 18 128 3 20 | L4005 899
Depreciation 8 Amortzation | 1735 | igses | 1ses | 1223 | ;| ase | azsa | nens

~ A L (N

A segmenl result is defined as segment revenues less op-

erating segment expenses.

The following table shows the split of the Company’s assets
by geographical segments:

2006

The following table shows the split of the Company’s con- in 000's & | 2005
sulidated revenues by geographical markets: _Germany . | nz3ss | 77,579
' 1,957
8
in 000's € TOTAL ASSETS 80,117
Europe and

Restoft_h_e World o
USAand Canada
TOTAL
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The following table shows the split of the Company’s capital
expenditure by geographical segments:

in 000's € _ 2006 ~ 2005 N
Germany 2,154 | 630
UK 1,808 53
USA 43 7777777777777777 ]6
TOTAL 4,005 699
. v
3 ‘ CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
in 000’s € 2006 7005
Bank Balances and
Gashin Hand e 3977 3,590
Term Deposits 877
Restricted
Cash | (2500 L4250)
CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,765 4,017

4 ' FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets consist of the following as of December 31,

2006 and 2005:

L.

Consoidated

Financia Statererts
Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements
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GROSS
UNREALIZED HOLDING
REALIZED
HOLDING MARKET
in 000's € MATURITY COST GAINS LOSSES GAINS VALUE
° . - - - oo T es N
DECEMBER 31, 2006 _ .
DB Money Market Funds _ daily 61,598 1888 - - 63486
_RestrictedCash _(1,225)
B 62,261
DECEMBER 31, 2005 B
DB Money Market Funds (daily 48637 905 - A L2

Restricted Cash

49,542
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The gross unrealized holding gains of € 1,887,656 for the
vear ended December 31, 2006, and € 905,364 for the year
ended December 31, 2005, were recorded as a separate commn-
ponent of stockhelders’ equity (revaluation reserve). In 2006,
the Group recorded gains of € 667,533 in the statement
of operations on the sale of financial assets, which had
previously been recognized in equity (2005: € 611,187).

For further details on accounting for financial assets, see
also the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements —
section 11.

5 ‘ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

All accounts receivable are non-interesi-bearing and are
generally due on a 30- to 45-day term. On December 31,
2006 and 2005, accounts receivable included unbilled
amounts of € 133,333 and € 145,648 respectively.

6

According to the Company’s hedging policy, definite
faoreign currency receivables which are ccllectable within
a twelve-month period are reviewed for hedging and
shown as other receivables with their fair values. Starting
2003, MorphoSys entered into foreign currency options
and forward contracts t¢ hedge foreign exchange exposure
related to US dollar accounts receivable.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

As of December 31, 2006, two option contracts were
outstanding in the notional amount of € 1,562,500 or
US$ 1,921,875 (2005 €0 or US$ 0) with a maturity
between January and February 2007. Therefore, the fair
market value as of December 31, 2006, was € 106,334
(2005: € 0). This was recorded in other receivables on
the balance sheet. Changes in fair value were recognized
as other income and included in foreign exchange losses
of € 1.2 million for the fiscal year 2006. As of December 31,
2006, unsettled contract premium for derivatives entered
into in January 2006 amounted to € 75,700 {2005: € 138,000).

7 ’ PREPAID EXPENSES, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
AND INVENTORIES

Prepaid expenses mainly include prepaid sublicense fees
of € 0.1 million as of December 31, 2006 (2005: € 0.1 mil-
lien), and other prepayments in the amount of € 1.Z million
as of December 31, 2006 (2005: € 0.9 million}.

Other current assets amount to € 0.8 million, mainly in-
cluding receivables in connection with sales tax (2005:
€ 0.6 million).

Inventories of € 3.5 million are mainly located in Oxford,
UK (2005: € 0.5 million).
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OFFICE AND FURNITURE
LAND AND LABORATORY AND
N in000's € BUILDUNGS " EQUIPMENT -_F'.XT_UE.ES_, o B _YOTAL
JANUARY 1, 2006 2,247 5,334 1,881 9,462
Additions 1,487 2322 Ces s
" Disposals® _ (€97) (257) (265) (1.219)
Foreign Exchange Variance ' (14] - (10) e
DECEMBER 31,2006 o 3,023 7,399 2219 12681
Accumulated Depreciation . R i
JANUARY 1, 2006 ' o ' 16'7 h 3783 972 _ 4,765
Deprecia_tion Charge for thg Yearr o 66 999 ) 229 ) 1,204
_Write-Offs for the Year N 57 80 204 321
_Disposals L o33 (a7 (265) 1545)
Foreign Exchange Variance ] ) ] ) - . I . l ) 2 ]
DECEMBER 31, 2006 100 4,506 _ _1,!41_ L 5,747
Car’ying Amount PP . R PR, .
| JANUARY 1,2006 2,237 1,551 909 4,697
DECEMBER 31, 2006 2,923 2893 1078 6894
JANUARY 1, 2005 - - 4,986 1,345 6,331
_Additions ] - 2,247 429 538 3412
Disposals e 281 - 281
DECEMBER 31,2005 2,247 5,334 e 9,462
.Accumulated Depreciation ; N
JANUARY 1, 2005 o - V o . — 3,274 - o 7_2_6_ ) 4,000 .....
Deprecriartipn Charge for the Year o _ 10 _ 63_’2 244 ) 928
Disposais B 163 - 163
DECEMBER 31,2005 ' S 10 3,783 2 4,765
_Carrying Amognt .~~~ e s e )
" JANUARY 1, 2005 ' - 712 619 2,331
DECEMBER 31, 2005 2,237 1,551 909 4697

* Including reclassifications to current assets held for sale of € 0.7 million
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Property, plant and equipment of the Serotec subsidiaries
are included in additions and disposals, as these items
were added to the MorphoSys Group on January 11, 2006,
Currency translation effects for property, plant and equip-
ment held in foreign currency were minor as of December
31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, tand and building, located in
Oxford, UK, as well as Brentwood, New Hampshire, USA,
in the total amount of € 664,108 were reclassified as held
for sale and included in the current assets section of the
ADD segment.

The depreciation charge is included in the following line
items of the statement of operations;

in 000's € 2006 2005

Research
and Development 625 D68

Sales, General
and Administrative
{Depreciation) 528 o3

Sales, General
and Administrative

_[Write-off) 7 o
Cost of Goods Sold 484 39
TOTAL: 1,518 928

S

As of December 31, 2006, minor foreign exchange effects
were recognized for the assets acquired and accounted for
as other comprehensive income.

For more detailed information, see Appendix 1.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

KNOW-
HOW AND
SOFT- GCUSTOMER
in 000's €  PATENTS  LICENSES WARE LISTS -GDODWILL . TOTAL R

Cost
.JANU;RY 1, 2006 ' 3,755 -'1”2,140 ‘i','ééz" ' 2,313 4,137 23,777
Additions . , 50 .“",‘9; 278 22909
- - (4)
(29) 83 54
6,:178 ) 27,003 51,}36 -

) DrlrspasaAls ] - N o -
B fgreign‘ Exphgnge Varian;g 7777777777
DECEMBER 31, 2006

Accumulated Amortization

JANUARY 1, 2006 1,434 3,683 1,260 827 - 7,204
Amortization for the Year 461 1,286 132 816 - 2,695

Write-offs for the Year - - ) 33 _ - - 33

Disposals - ) R

DECEMBER 21, 2006 1,895 4,965 1,425 1,643 - 9,928

Carrying Amount
JANUARY 1, 2006 2,361 8,457 132 1,486 4,137 16,5673
DECEMBER 31, 2006 1,950 7776 244 4,835 27,003 41,808

JANUARY 1, 2005 3,766 12,140 1,366 . - 17,272
Additions 29 - 45 2,313 4137 6,524

Disposals - - 19 - - Y
DECEMBER 31, 2005 3,795 12,140 1,392 2,313 4,137 23,777

Ac__cumulated Amoriization ] B ]
JANUARY 1, 2005 976 2,469 1,078 - - 4,523
AmortrizAation for the Year ] ) 458 1,214 198 827 - 2,697

"Dirsposals - - 16 - - 16

DECEMBER 31, 2005 1,434 3,683 1,260 827 - 7,204

_Carrying Amount .

JANUARY 1, 2005 2,79b ” 9,671 : 288 . —‘ o - 12,749
DECEMBER 31, 2005 2,361 8,457 132 1,486 4137 16,573
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Intangibles of the Serotec Group are included in additions
and disposals of the current year, since these items were
acquired by MorphoSys on January 11, 2006. Currency
translation effects for intangibles held in foreign currency
amounted to € 0.1 million as of December 31, 2006.

The amortization charge is included in the following line
items of the statement of aperations:

in 000's € 2006 2005
- L »

Research and

Developmgnt 2,13 o 2,190

Sales, General

and Administrative

{Amortization) 505 507

Sales, General

and Administrative

{Write-off) .. 3B e

Costof Gocds Sold _ 67 -
2,736 2,697

N

As of December 31, 2006, minor foreign exchange effects
were recognized for Lthe assets acquired and accounted for
as other comprehensive income.

The Company has entered inte the following license agree-
ments covering certain patented technologies which are
capitalized (noncapitalized license agreements have not
heen disclosed in detail):

SCA VENTURES, INC., USA

In December 1999, the Company concluded a nonexclusive
product-derived license agreement with SCA Ventures,
Inc., USA, in which the Company obtained a nonexclusive
license from SCA Ventures in order to design, discover,
develop, make, use, sell, offer for sale and import HuCAL-
derived products under SCA Ventures’ patent rights to single-
chain antibodies. The Company may use SCA Ventures'
licensed technologies for the research and discovery of novel
therapeutic agents and targets and may sublicense the

technologies to its commercial partners. The Company may
terminate this agreement for any reason upon six months’
prior written notice to SCA Ventures. The Company pays an
up-front license fee in addition to annual maintenance and
transfer fees.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining amor-
tization period of three years.

BIOSITE DIAGNOSTICS, INC., USA

In January 2000, the Company signed a collaboration
agreement with Biosite Diagnostics, Inc., under which the
Company received a royalty-bearing, nonexclusive, world-
wide license to patents owned by Biosite and the XOMA
Corporation covering certain technologies relating 1o the
display and screening of multi-chain antibodies. The Com-
pany may use the licensed technelogies for research and
discovery of novel therapeutic agents and targets, and may
sublicense the technologies to its commercial partners.
Unless terminated earlier, the term of this agreement shall
he the later of the expiration of the parties’ respective
obligations to pay royalties and the expiration of the tast
patent right licensed by ane party to the other. The Com-
panypays an up-front technology access fee in addition to
annual maintenance and transfer fees.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining amor-
tization period of three years.

GENENTECH, INC., USA

in May 2000, the Company concluded a license agreement
with Genentech, [nc,, granting the Company rights under
Genentech’s patents relating to the monovalent phage
display screening technology. The Company may use the
licensed technologies for research and discovery of novel
therapeutic agents and targets, and may sublicense the
technology to its commercial partners. The Company pays
an up-front technology access fee in addition to annual
maintenance and transfer fees.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining amor-
tization period of four years.
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XOMA IRELAND LTD., IRELAND
In February 2002, the Company concluded a cross-license
agreement for antibody-related technologies with XOMA
Ireland Ltd. Pursuant to the agreement, MorphoSys paid
€ 1.1 million to XOMA with a second payment of € 4.6
million due September 2002, At the Company’s option,
the second installment could be paid in cash er with new
shares of the Company’s common siock equivalent to € 5.5
million. The Company recorded € 2.5 million as a charge
to research and development expenses in the year 2002.
The remaining € 3.2 million represents the value of the
license received. [t has been capitalized as an intangihle
assef and will be amortized over its expected useful life
of ten years,

In October 2002, the Company exercised the option to pay
the second installment with 363,466 new shares of its
common stock, which was determined with reference to
the market price of the Company’s common stock at the
time of the notice. The Company recorded a charge to in-
terest expense of € 0.7 million at the time the shares were
issued in May 2003 as a consequence of exercising this
option.

As of December 31, 2006, the license had a remaining
amortization period of six years.

CAMBRIDGE ANTIBODY TECHNOLOGY LTD. (CAT), CAMBRIDGE, UK
In December 2002 and effective July 2003, the Company
entered into a license and settlement agreement with CAT.
The settlement agreement covers MorphoSys’s past, pre-
sent and future use as well as the commercialization of all
versions of its HuCAL libraries, and all patents in the on-
going disputes hetween the two companies. This includes
the litigation in the United States regarding CAT's Griffiths,
McCafferty, Winter 1l and Winter/ Lerner/ Huse patents, as
well as oppositions launched by MorphoSys at the European
Patent Qffice against CAT's Winter Il and McCafferty patents.

As of December 31, 20006, the license had a remaining
amaortization period of seven years.
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CRUCELL N.V., THE NETHERLANDS
tn August 2006, MorphoSys AG signed a second PER.C6®
license agreement with Dutch biotechnology company
Crucetl N.V. and a biopharmaceutical manufacturing agree-
ment with its technology partner DSM Biologics. The license
agreements allow MorphoSys to use the PER.C4% cell line

in the preduction of clinical-grade material for the devel-
opment of its proprietary therapeutic antibody program
MOR103. Production of clinical-grade material is a relevant
step to keep to the timeline for this project.

As of December 31, 2004, the license had a remaining
amortization period of ten years.

For further infarmation, see Appendix 1,

I
].O OTHER ASSETS

The Company has classified certain items in ather assets
that are not availahle for use in its operations as restricted
cash. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company
had commitments of € 1,475,182 and € 250,060 for guar-
antees issued as well as € 38,371 and € 50,214 respectively
for convertible bonds issued te employees.

1 1 " PRELIMINARY PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

MorphoSys established a purchase price allocation (PPA)
required by IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” under 1FRS
accounting. The Company assigned PricewaterhouseCoopers
for identification and valuation of assets acquired. IFRS
permits the adjustment of fair value amounts identified
within twelve months post-acquisition without effecting
the Group’s profits.
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Additional tangible assets in land and building as well
as in inventories were identified and valued accordingly.

[ntangible assets identified consisted of customer lists,
know-how as well as customer relationships and dis-
tributors.

The PPA had the following effect on Group accounts:

SEROTEC GROUP — NET ASSETS

SEROTES GROUP RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE
Net Assets as of January 11, 2006 - in 00Q's € VALUE ADJUSTMENT FAIR VALUE

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade and Other Receivables

Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Land and Buildings, Net @ e e e

Licenses, Net

Software, Net

Customer Lists

Know-how and Unpatented Technelogy
COther Assets
Trade and Other Payables

Déférred Taxes

NET IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Goodwill on Acquisition
CONSIDERATION PAID"

Thereof Satisfied in Equity
Cash (Acquired}
NET CASH OUTFLOW

* Advisers’ fees amounting to € 1.1 million included
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As of December 31, 2006, goodwill was tested as required
by 1AS 36.134. On the hasis of the cash generating unit,
the AbD segment, the value in use was determined ta be
reasonably higher than the carrying amount. Therefore,
no detailed sensitivity analysis was deemed necessary.
Based on the updated outlook to cash flows for the up-
coming years, the value in use was calculated as follows:
beta factor of 1.3, income tax rate of 36 %, WACC of 9.9%
and a conservative growth rate of perpetual annuity.
The values assigned to the assumptions represent Man-
agement’s estimates of future trends and are based on in-
ternal planning scenarios as well as external sources.

In the year 2006, the subsidiaries acquired contributed
revenues of € 13.7 million as well as a net loss of € 0.5
million to the consolidated net profit.

]. 2 ‘ ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normal-
ly settled within 30 days. License payables are partly set-
tled within 30 days. License payables which were expected
to be settled after more than twelve months were discounted
to their net present value applying an interest rate of 13%.
The residual maturity of liabilities is listed in the table
below:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

GROUP MAMAGEMENT REPORT ® FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

in 000's € 12/31/2006 12/31/2005
Accounts Payable ) 3,326 344 )
 Accrued Expenses 6,376 | 3617
Other Liabilities 754
of which"%xes 670 143
of which Related
to Social Security - 154
CtotaL - 10,456 4322

Consor Jated
Financia: Staterents

—o HNotes ta the Gonsolidzted
Firanciat Siatements

Accounts payable include accruals, which mainly contain
accrued expenses for persennel payments of € 1.8 million
{2005: € 0.6 million). Expenses for gutstanding invoices
include € 1.5 million mainly for license compensation
{2005: € 1.3 million), € 0.2 million for Supervisory Board
members’ compensatien (2005: € 0.2 million), € 0.2 mil-
lion for audit fees and costs related thereto (2005: € 0.1
mitlion} and € 0.2 million for legal services (2005: €0.5
million).

At the Company’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in May
2006, the Supervisory Board was authorized to appeint
KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengeasellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft as its auditor. In 2006
and 7005, the auditing company and its pariner companies
within the international KPMG network were remunerated
by MorphoSys in the amount of € 303,353 and € 280,173
{thereof € 172,824 and € 213,519 to KPMG Deutsche Treu-
hand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftspriifungs-
geselischaft), including audit fees of € 185,915 (2005:

€ 121,3463) and fees for other services of € 117,438 (2005:
€ 158,810). Accrued expenses for audit fees in the amount
of € 159,419 {2005: € 79,000) are included in these figures.

1 3 w PROVISIONS AND TAX LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company recorded
provisions of € 1,144,805 and € 1,041,482 respectively.

Provisions for taxes mainly comprise expenses for income
tax, whereas other obligations mainly include provisions
for legal disputes. Both items remain uncertain with re-
spect to their amounts as of December 31, 20006, and are
expected to be settled in 2007,
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Provisions changed during the fiscal year 2006 as follows:

in000's € 01/01/2006 ADDITIONS UTILIZED RELEASED 12/31/2006
L ] o » — &
789 1,134
252 84
1,041 1,218

Provisions of the Serotec Group are included in additions
and disposals of the reporting year. The Serotec Group had
no provisions at the acquisition date of January 11, 2006,

!
].4 ’ STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

COMMON STOCK

On December 31, 2006, the common stock of the Company
excluding treasury shares was € 20,145,966. This repre-
sented an increase of € 2,068,377 compared to December
31, 2005, when the balance was € 18,077,589. Each share
of commaon stock is entitled to one vote. An increase of

€ 625,680, or 208,560 shares, arose as a result of a capital
increase against contribution in kKind in connection with
the Serotec acquisition executed on January 11, 2006,

A capital increase executed on March 29, 2006, increased
common stock by € 1,153,014, or 384,338 shares. Through
the conversion and exercise of 96,561 convertible bonds
and options issued to employees, common stock increased
by an additional € 289,683 in 2006.

On December 31, 2005, the common stock of the Company
was € 18,077,589, An increase in the number of shares of

€ 1,470,399, or 490,133 shares, was the result of a capital
increase executed on March 15, 2005. Through the conver-
sion and exercise of 96,878 convertible bonds and options
issued to employees, common stock increased by an addi-
tional € 290,634 in 2005.

On December 31, 2006, treasury shares totaling € 10,703
{29,162 shares) remained unchanged compared to Decem-
ber 31, 2005.

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

On lanuary 11, 2006, 208,560 shares of Authorized Capi-
tal [ were issued for a capital increase against contribu-
tien in Kind in connection with the Serotec acquisition.

On March 29, 2006, 384,338 shares of Authorized Capital
[l were issued for a capital increase against contribution
in kind.

On May 17, 2006, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
authorized the Company to increase Authorized Capital [
by 526,788 shares to create a maximum of 2,493,769
new shares of Authorized Capital 1 (December 31, 2005:
2,175,541 shares).

Also approved was an increase to Authorized Capital I
of 443,628 shares to create a maximum of 652,188 new
shares of Authorized Capital Il {December 31, 2005:
502,898 shares).

CONDITIONAL CAPITAL

In 20006, 2,445 shares were raised from Cenditional Capi-
tal I through the exercise of the same number of options
by employees, increasing the subscribed capital by

€ 7,335. Furthermore, 31,265 shares were raised from
Conditional Capital Il through the exercise of the same
number of options by employees, increasing the sub-
scribed capital by € 93,795, and 49,351 shares were
raised from Conditional Capital IV through the exercise
of the same number of convertible bonds by employees,
increasing the subscribed capital by € 148,053. Finally,
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13,500 shares were raised from Conditional Capital V
through the exercise of the same number of options by
employvees, increasing the subscribed capital by € 40,500.

In 2005, 1,400, 34,125, 59,478 and 1,875 shares were raised
from Conditional Capital I, I1, IV and V respectively. Sub-
scribed capital increased by € 4,200, € 102,375, € 178,434
and € 5,625 from respective Conditional Capitals.

On May 17, 2006, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting author-
ized the Company to create additional shares for Condi-
tional Capital [1l and V up to a maximum of 1,829,562 and
343,987 shares respectively.

On May 11, 2005, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
authorized the Company to ¢reate additienal shares for
Conditional Capital [[1, 1V and V up to a maximum of
1,602,125, 513,938 and 242,405 shares respectively.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends may only be declared and paid from the accu-
mulated retained earnings {after deduction of certain re-
serves) shown in the Company’s annual German statutory
accounts. Such amounts differ from the total of additional
paid-in capital and accumulated deficit as shown in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements as a re-
sult of the adjustments made to present the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with 1FRS. The Compa-
ny's German statutory accounts showed taxable income

in 2006; however, as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, they
reflected no accumulated earnings available for distribution
and the Company’s ability to pay dividends will therefore
depend upoen its future earnings.

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
On December 31, 2006, additional paid-in capital amount-
ed to € 123,878,001 (December 31, 2005; € 96,412,849).
The total increase of roughly € 27.5 million is due to
stock-based compensation provisions in the amount of
€ 1,250,892, including the intrinsic value of convertible
bonds granted as well as € 7,997,500 {including € 32,060
issuance costs) from a capital increase against contribu-
tion in kind stemming from the Serotec acquisition and
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€ 15,477,143 (including costs in connection with the trans-
action of € 756,916) stemming from a capital increase on
March 29, 2006, netted by a deferred tax asset of € 284,032,
An increase of € 2,739,618 arose from the exercise and
conversion of options and convertible bonds in the year
2006.

In 2005, the additional paid-in capital increased by € 17.7
million resulting from stock-hased compensation provi-
sions of € 1,132,104 as welt as € 15,446,069 {including
costs in connection with the transaction of € 767,068) as
a result of the capital ingrease on March 15, 2005, netted
by a deferred tax asset of € 283,815. A further increase
of € 1,184,299 came from the exercise and conversion of
options and convertible bonds in the year 2005.

]. 5 | CONVERTIBLE BONDS

At the Company’s Annual Shareholders’ Meeting in Tuly
2002, the Company was authorized to issue up to 300,000
nen-intersst-bearing convertible bonds with a par/ nominal
value of € 1.00 each to employees and members of the
Management Board of the Company and its affiliates until
June 30, 2006. The preemptive rights of the stockholders
were excluded. On May 16, 2003, and May 11, 2005, the
Annual Shareholders’ Meeting authorized the Company

to grant an additional 150,269 shares until April 30, 2010,
each. On December 9, 2004, 49,914 convertible bonds were
granted to board members and emplovees of MorphoSys
AG. The exercise price for the convertible bonds was € 38.40.

The convertible bonds cannot be transferred or encum-
bered, other than through inheritance/death. In the event
of inability 1o work, the Management Board can allow the
transfer with good cause,
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The conversion rights may only be exercised if the termi-
nation of the employment agreement with the owner of the
convertible bonds has not been declared at the time of
exercise and a mutual termination agreement has not been
entered into. In the event of nonexercise of the conversion
rights, beneficiaries are refunded the amount paid to ac-
quire the convertible bonds (i.e., € 1.00 per bond /share).

The beneficiaries may only exercise the conversion rights
after the expiration of a waiting period of one year after
the grant date. Each convertible bond with a nominal value
of € 1.00 can be exchanged for one share of ordinary no-
par value common stock of the Company against payment
of the exchange price. The convertible bonds could not be
exercised bevond December 31, 2006.

The exchange price for the convertible bonds issued in the
vear 2004 was € 38.40, representing the average closing
price of a share in the Company in the final XETRA auc-
tion at the Frankfurt Stock Exchange during the last five
trading days preceding the resolution of the Management
Board to issue the convertible bonds.

The conversion rights can only be exercised if the stock
exchange price on at least one day during the lifetime of
the convertible bonds has amounted to 110% of the aver-
age stock exchange price in the final XETRA auction in
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange during the five trading days
prior to the resolution of the Management Board to issue
the convertible honds.

shares which are issued by virtue of the conversion rights
may prarticipate in the profits of the Company for the first

time in the business vear for which no stockholders’ reso-
lution on the disiribution of profits has heen passed at the
time of the issuance.

In the year 2006, 49,351 bonds of the 2004 grant were con-
verted into shares of ordinary no-par value common stock
with the same amount by employees of the Company.

Ol these, 16,193 bonds were exercised by members of the
Management Board. Further details are given in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements — section 23,

As of December 31, 2006, all convertible bonds granted in
2004 expired. The nominal value of € 1.00 each was paid
back to all those concerned.

In the year 2006, an additional grant to board members
and employees was made under the 2002 Plan, with terms
identical to the 2002 stock convertible bonds grants. On
January 15, 2004, 38,418 convertible bonds were granted
to board members and employees of MorphoSys AG. The
exercise price for the convertibie bonds is € 44.12, repre-
senting the market price in the final XETRA auction at the
Frankfurt Stack Exchange on the {rading day preceding
the issuance of the convertibte bonds.

A summary of the activity under the Company’s employee
incentive convertible bonds plan for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, is represented as follows:

 —
WEIGHTED-
CONVERTIBLE AVERAGE
BONDS PRICE (€)
OUTSTANDING
ON JANUARY 1, 2005 99,692 24 83
Refunded 11.69
Exercised 11.30
Forfeited 38.40
ired 11.69
OUTSTANDING ON
DECEMBER 31, 2005 49,541 38.40
OQUTSTANDING ON
JANUARY 1, 2006 49,541 38.40
Granted 38,418 4412
Exercised (49,351) 38.40
Forfeited (237) 4412
Expired (190} 38.40
OUTSTANDING ON
DECEMBER 31, 2006 38,181 4412
—
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Convertible bonds exercisable on December 31, 2006 and
2005, amounted to 38,181 and 49,541 shares respectively.
The weighted-average exercise prices of exercisable con-
vertible bonds were € 44,12 and € 38.40 on December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. In the year 2005, no convert-
ible bonds had been granted.

As a result of a court decision, 10,000 forfeited convertible
bonds in 2004 were refunded to all those concerned in
2005.

The following tahte presents the weighted-average price
and information about the contractual life for significant
convertible bond groups outstanding on December 31,
2006:
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REMAINING WEIGHTED-
CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE
NUMBER LIFE EXERCISE NUMBER OF EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICE QUTSTANDING (IN YEARS) PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE
- . .. -a o —_— - .
€442 KERE 2.00 €44.12 ] €0.00
38,181 0

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in
accordance with the provisions of IFRS 2 and [AS 32.28.
The equity portion of the bonds has to be separated and
presented as additional paid-in capital. The equity compo-
nent is deducted from the fair value of the bonds. The re-
maining value is recognized as stock-based compensation.
The compensation expense recorded in 2006 and 2005

in connection with convertible bonds was € 535,635 and
€ 757,965 respectively. The fair value of the convertible
honds issued in 2006 was calculated using the Black-Scholes
pricing model based on the following assumptions: risk-free

interest rate of 2.84 %; dividend yield of 0%; 54 % expected
volatility based on historic data; and ar expected life of 2.0
years. The weighted-average fair value of bonds granted
during 2006 is estimated to be € 13.95 accordingly.

Valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions. Because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the management does not censider that the existing mod-
els necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of its employee convertible bonds.
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1 é | STOCK QPTIQONS

1998 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PROGRAM
Effective June 15, 1998, the Company introduced an in-
centive stock option plan (1998 Plan”} which provides for
the grani of options to purchase shares of the Company’s
common stock to key employees and members of the
Company's Management Board. The 1998 Plan authorized
the grant of options to personnel for 96,075 shares of the
Company’s commeon siock in the form of 45,450 registered
warrants, each equal to one share of common stock, and
50,625 shares deliverable upon exercise of non-warrant
option rights. The Company reserved 55,350 common
shares plus 68,650 shares of treasury stock for stock op-
tions. All option rights granted under this 1998 Plan have
a len-year ierm.

Each warrant entitles the holder to receive one share.
Upen exercise of a warrani, the exercise price, which equals
the fair value of the shares on the date of grant, is due and
payable. Warrant holders can exercise up to the full amount
of warrants six months after the date of grant. Warrant
holders also have the right to sell them. The warrants or
shares obtained upon exercise vest annually on a graded
basis over three years.

The non-warrant option rights are granted by the Company
to the employee by way of an option agreement. For all
grants commencing after lune 1998, a twoe-year holding
period is required after the date of grant, after which the
holder of non-warrant option rights can exercise up to the
amount of vested option rights.

For the years 2006 and 2005, 2,445 and 2,300 options
from the 1998 Plan were exercised respectively,

1999 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PROGRAM

Effective July 21, 1999, the Company amended the incen-
tive stock option plan (“1999 Plan”) authorizing the addi-
tional grant of options to employees for up to 300,250
shares, arising from conditional capital, and deliverable
upon exercise of non-warrant option rights. On Ociober 31,
1999, a grant of 98,100 shares was made to Company em-
ployees, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board.
The option rights are nontransferable and have a maxi-
mum life of five years. Additionally, a two-year holding
period is required after the date of grant, after which the
holder of the option rights can exercise up to the amount
of vested aption rights, on condition that the value of the
underlying stock has appreciated 10% per annum, cumu-
latively, in the year of exercise, On October 14, 2004, the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board decided

to extend the exercise period of 54,900 options granted to
employees and the Management Board until Octoher 31,
2009.

In July 2001, additional grants to employees were made
under the 1999 Plan with terms identical to the 1999 stock
option grants. 15,250 options were granted on July 1, 2001,
to employees of MorphoSys AG. As of July i, 2004, the
unexercised options expired.

On September 1, 2001, the Company re-issued 94,100 op-
tions to employees under the 1999 Plan, which had been
canceled on July 5, 2001, The re-issued opticns have simi-
lar characteristics and vesting provisions te the original
options granted and are identical to 1999 stock option grants.
As of September 1, 2006, the unexercised options expired.

In the year 2002, additional grants to empleyees were
made under the 1999 Plan with terms identical to the 1999
stock option grants. 5,500 options were granted on January
15, 2002, to employees of MorphoSys AG.

In the year 2003, additional grants to Management Board
members were made under the 1999 Plan, with terms
identical to the 1999 stock option grants. 36,000 options
were granted on July 1, 2003, to Management Board mem-
bers of MorphoSys AG.
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For the years 2006 and 2003, 31,265 and 34,125 options
from the 1999 Plan were exercised respectively.

2002 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PROGRAM
Effective June 6, 2002, the Company amended the incen-
tive stock option plan (“2002 Plan”) authorizing the ad-
ditional grant of options to employees for up to 74,556
shares, arising from conditional capital, and deliverable
upon exercise of non-warrant option rights. On July 9, 2002,
a grant of 7,500 shares was made to Company emplovees.
The terms are very similar 1o those of the 1999 Employee
Stock Option Program.” On May 16, 2003, May 11, 2004,
and May 11, 2005, the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting
authorized the Company to grant additional 36,891, 58,816
and 74,017 shares respectively under the “2002 Employee
Stock Option Program” with identical terms.

In the year 2003, grants to employecs were made under
the 2002 Plan, with terms identical to the 1999 and 2002
stock option grants. 2,500 options and 15,000 options
were granted to employees of MorphoSys AG on January
15, 2003, and July 1, 2003, respectively.

On January 15, 2004, 35,000 optiens were granted to em-
ployees with terms identical to the 1999, 2002 and 2003
stock option grants.

In the year 2005, additional grants to Management Board
members were made under the 2002 Plan, with terms
identical to the 2002 stock option grants. 97,358 options
were granted on July 1, 2005, to Management Board mem-
bers and employees of MorphoSys.

In the year 2006, grants to employees and a member of the
Management Board were made under the 2002 Plan, with
terms identical to the 1999 and 2002 stock option grants.
40,000 optiens and 7,500 options were granted to employ-
ees and Management Board of MorphoSys AG on January
15, 2006, and July 1, 2006, respectively.

Far the years 2006 and 2005, 13,500 and 1,875 options
from the 2002 Plan were exercised.
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A summary of the activity under the Company’s employee
incentive stock option plans for the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, is represented as follows:

[ WEIGHTED-
| AVERAGE
SHARES | PRICE (€)
[ ¢ - - =98 - -
OUTSTANDING ON
JANUARY 1, 2005 193,930 26.70
Refunded 23,000 20.80
Granted f 97.358 31.35
Exercised | {38.300) 21.41
P
Forfeited i ) (15,529) 29.38
Expired ! (7,000} 21?":60
OUTSTANDING ON
D_E_C_EMBER 31, 2005 251,459 7723 347
i
QUTSTANDING ON
JANUARY 1, 2006 251,459 23.34
Granted 47.500 43.80
Exercised _ [f}?,ZIE_)) 24.03
Forfeitedr i ) (10,604) 31.35
Expired - : ~12,100) 44.27
QUTSTANDING ON |
DECEMBER 31, 2006 239,045 ) 26.73
aludd it bt

~—

Stock options exercisable on December 31, 2006 and 2005,
amounted to 88,670 and 112,855 shares respectively. The
weighted-average exercise prices of exercisahle stock op-
tions were € 17.83 and € 22.25 on December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

As a result of a court decision, 21,000 forfeited stock op-
tions in 2004 were refunded to all those concerned in 2005,
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The following table presents the weighted-average price
and information about the contractual life for significant
option groups outstanding on December 31, 2006:

REMAINING WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-

CONTRACTUAL AVERAGE AVERAGE

NUMBER LIFE EXERCISE NUMBER EXERGCISE

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRIGES OUTSTANDING (IN YEARS) PRIGE EXERCISABLE PRICE

o8 * e * 0 L

€1088-€5437 .. S 23808 .. B €259 . Be70 EV36

€5437-€595 ... .. oo L €59.51 !
L 239,045

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in
accordance with the provisions of 1IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment.” Compensation expense recorded in 2006 and
2005 in connection with stock options was € 707,336 and
€ 374,138 respectively. In the compensation amount rec-
ognized in 2005, approximately € 247,900 was included
for re-issued options. On September 1, 2001, the Company
re-issued 94,100 options to employees. In accordance with
[FRS 2 “Share-based Payment,” the re-issued options were
revalued at the date of re-issuance using the Black-Scholes
aption pricing model.

The fair value of the optiens issued in 2006 was calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the
following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 2.89%;
dividend yield of 0%; 55% to 60% expected volatility based
on historic data; and an expected option life of 3.0 years.
For option grants in 2005, the following assumptions were
made: risk-free interest rate of 2.16 %; dividend yield of 0%;
50% expected volatility; and the same option life as in 2005,
The weighted-average fair value of options granted during
2006 and 2005 is estimated to be € 18.33 and € 11.23
respectively.

Option valuation models require the input of highly subjec-
tive assumptions. Because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
the management does not consider that the existing mod-
els necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of its emplovee stock options.

]. 7r PERSONNEL EXPENSES

o in 000's € 2006 2005
Wages and Salaries 17251, 9.596
Social Security
Cont_ribt_lti_gng_ 1,612 1,383
Stock-based
Compensation Expense L243 s

__T_emporary Staff (External) - 22 777777777777777777 2

Other. B/ IR A 1)

TOTAL 19,368 11,952
e

The average number of employees during the year ended
December 31, 2006, was 265 (2005; 170).
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The Company and its German subsidiaries MorphoSys [P
GmhbH and Serotec GmbH are subject to corporate tax,
solidarity surcharge and trade tax. Since 2001, a corporate
tax rate of 25% plus 5.5 % solidarity surcharge applies.
Considering the multiplier rate (“Hebesatz™) of 300 % for
municipal trade tax, the trade 1ax rate amounts to approxi-
mately 13.04% of the taxable income and is deductible in
the calcutation of the corporate 1ax. With regard to affili-
ated companies in foreign countries, income tax rates of
30% and 39% apply to the UK and the USA respectively.

INCOME TAXES

The income tax for the current fiscal year comprises as
follows:
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T T
in 000's € 12/31/2006 12/31/2005
L ’e N
Current Tax Expense (Thereof Income Tax Expense Accounted Cirectly in Equity According ' i
1o IAS 32.35: [in 000_’_5 €]‘?84; 2005 2._8{] . (1,201) i (816)
Current Tax Expense for Previous Years N N j (24) ! -
Deferred Tax Expense/Benefit Resulting from the {
Existence or the Reversal of Temporary Differences == = . 1,008 (537
Deferred Tax Benefit with Regard to the Recegnition of DTA on Previously
Unrecognized DTA with Regard to Future Reversal of Diiferences Between IFRS and Tax Balance Sheet o 919
Total Income Tax o 742
TOTAL AMQUNT OF DEFERRED TAXES RESULTING
FROM ENTRIES DIRECTLY RECOGNIZED IN EQUITY (821) (321)
e/

Deferred taxes are recognized only to the extent that it is
more likely than not that the related tax benefits will be re-
alized. As of December 31, 2006, the Company recoghized
deferred tax assets in the amount of € 1.2 million due to
business expectations in 2007,

The recognition of deferred tax assets on previously unrec-
ognized deferred tax assets amounted to € 0.9 million
{2005: € 0.9 million). The current assessment with regard
to the usability of deferred tax assets can change dependent
on the income situation of future years and may result in
higher or lower valuation allowances.
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The following table reconciles the statutory ingome tax ex-
pense 1o the actual income tax expense presented in the
financial statements. To calculate the statutory income tax
expense in fiscal year 2006, the combined income tax rate
of 36% (2005: 36%) was applied to income before taxes. The
tax rate applied in the reconciliation statement includes
corporate tax and solidarity surcharge, and amounts to
26.38% plus the effective trade tax rate based on the multi-
plier rate (“Hebesatz”) of 300% for municipal trade tax,
which amounts to 9.60% taking into account that the trade
tax is deductible in the calculation of the corporate tax.

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

in 000's C 2006 2005
i PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAXES 5,286 5,112

Expected Tax Rate e 36% 3%
EXPECTED INCOME TAX {1,903} (1,73740,{”
_'I'_A_)(_E_F_FEETiRESULTlNG FROM:

Deferred Income Tax Arising from the Recognition of DTA™ on Previously

Unrecognized DTA with Regard to Future Reversal of Differences Between

IFRS and Tax Balance Sheet o ) 919 917

Non-recognition of BTA on Current Year Tax Losses h I o
Firsttime Recognilon of DTA on Tax Loss Carryforwards Y2 B -

Deferred Income Tax Arising from the Recognition of DTA on Previgusly

Unrecognized DTA on Tax__Lossvparlrngo(wgrds I R 1309 1041

Stock-based Compensation (448} (408)

Non-tax-deductitle ftems (235} ' (9'5)

Other Effects . e (86} {5)

ACTUAL I;\ICOME TAX o 742 (436)

e

* Deferred Tax Asset

No deferred tax assets were reported for corporate tax loss
carry-forwards in the amount of € 14.5 million and German
trade tax loss carry-forwards in the amount of € 13.8 mil-
lion. The loss carry-forwards may be carried forward in-

definitely and in unlimited amounts. From 2004 onwards,

German tax law restricts the offset of taxable income against
existing tax loss carry-forwards to an amount of € 1.0 mil-
lion plus 60% of taxable income above € 1.0 million. The
henefit from a previously unrecognized tax loss reduced
the current tax expense by € 1.3 million in 2006. Deferred
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tax assets on assets and liabilities of the German entities
were only reported to the extent of existing deferred tax
liabilities on assets and liabilities of the German entities.
No deferred tax asset with regard (o future reversal of
differences between IFRS and tax balance sheet in the
amount of € 2.7 million (2005; € 3.6 million) exists.

Significant components of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

T Ty
in 000's &€ DTA 2006 oTA 2005 DTL 2006 oTL 2005
. s fm

a
Intangible Assets 3.858 | 4,821 3,020 1,750

Non-recognition of DTA

B3:592) e

- . S - 80 -
and P R, L7 267 i
Buildings - T _ 132 71 @

Inventory 219 49 184 62

Advanced Payments . S A ST AN R g
Receivables and Ot_h_erA_s_sets - ) ; - ) - 56 36

Short-term Securities Investments V V - T - " . 679 - . 325
Other Accruals/Provisions | 3 I N R
_Trade Accounts Payable :_ t.. ) f I | 15 . 47
Bo“nds. tl%ereovf éc‘bﬁ\;‘érf‘ible . ) R - - ' 14 7 “1 8‘ 7‘

i
|
|

tax Losses 1,261 -

4,458 2,576

As of December 31, 2006, the Company accounted for tax-
related contingent liabilities in the amount of € 0.1 million.
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]. 9 ’ EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic profit per share is based on the net
profit for the year of € 6,027,934 (2005: € 4,676,369) and
the weighted-average number of shares of common stock
outstanding for the respective years (2006: 6,379,046; 2005:
5,578,865).

The weighted-average number of shares of commen stock
was calculated as follows:

2006 2005
.

SHARES 1SSUED ON JANUARY 1 T 6025863 5,438,852
Effectof Treasury Shares Held (29162) 129.162)
Effect of Shares Issued in larvary - 2,260
Effect of Shares Issued in February B8
Hfect of Shares 'S.é.:':'_‘?d_ '” Ma“’“ e e 143.043
:,Em’“‘ of Sha’el;"‘-‘"’sue‘.’ L N nz .
Effect of Shares issued in May B B
Fffectof Shares issued inJune o o o - 2
Effect of Shares lssued in July T 1342 | 897
‘Effect of Shares lssued in August T 1,223 1sez
Effect of Shares Issued in s?‘i{émber e L ! 9:.:‘.‘..‘.? ......

) Eff-éct of Shares lssﬁed |n dctobréﬂr ------------------------------------- 2626 | 758
Effect of Shares Issved in Novemoer T w 174 1858
Effect of Shares Issued in December | N ) S
 WEIGHTED-AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OF COMMON STOCK I 6,379,046 5,578,865

)

The diluted profit per share is calculated taking into ac-
count the Company’s potential common shares from out-
standing stock eptions and convertible bonds.
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The table below illustrates the recongiliation from basic to
diluted earnings per share (in thousands of euros, except
per share data):
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P L e o _
Numerator:
Net Profitfor theYegr 6,02_8 ‘ o _-__ZR
.“lj.eﬁ.(;ﬁ-;i.nato.r.; e O P PP I } 1‘
_________ Weighicd average Shares Used for Basic €PS . as7BBeS
.. Dilative Shares Arsing from Siock Optiors BT
_ Dilutive S!]‘a‘{es ;l:f\‘rising _fror‘rj_HC_or]vérti'l'le; Bonds ] i o
TOTAL DENOMVINATOR; - 39 I‘ L 5,65(1&7_5_;
Earnings per Share (in €): . i o
Basic I Y
~_ Diluted S 0._9?; ‘ 0.83

2 O ‘ FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

In additicn to the risks highlighted in the Management
Report, the Company has identified the following risks:

CURRENCY RISK

The Group accounts are administered in euros. While the
expenses of MorphoSys are predominantly paid in euros,
a significant part of the revenues depends on the current
exchange rate of the US dollar and the euro. The Company
examines the necessity of hedging foreign exchange trans-
actions to minimize currency risk during the year and
addresses this risk by employing derivative financial
instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISK
The exposure of the Group to changes in interest rates

relates mainly to investments in availahle-for-sale debt se-
curities. Changes in the general level of interest rates may

lead to an increase or decrease in the fair value of these
investments. With regard to the liabilities shown in the
balance sheet, the Group is currently not subject to signifi-
cant interest rate risks.

CREDIT AND LIQUIDITY RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company
to concentrations of credit and liquidity risk consist prima-
rily of cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and
accounts receivable. The Company’s cash and cush equiva-
lents are principally denominated in euros and US dollars.
Marketable securities are placed in high-quality securities.
Cash, cash equivalents and markelable securities are
maintained principally with two high-quality financial in-
stitutions in Germany. The Company continually monitors
its positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial
institutions, which are counterparties to its financial
instruments, and does not anticipate non-performance.
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[t is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification pro-
cedures. MHowever, the Company’s revenues and accounts
receivable are subject to credit risk as a result of customer
concentration. One customer individually accounted for
approximately 20% of the Company’s 2006 accounts re-
ceivable balance. In addition, three customers individually
accounted for 25%, 12 % and 5% of the Company’s total
revenues in the year 2006. On December 31, 2005, cne
customer accounted for 44 % of the prior vear’'s accounts
receivable balance and three customers individually
accounted for 31%, 19% and 14% of the Company's reve-
nues in 2005, Based on the management’s assessment,
allowances of € 189,103 and € 41,461 in refation to the
reagent business unit were necessary as of December 31,
2006 and 2005,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying value of financial instruments such as cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts
payable approximates their fair value due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair value of market-
able securities is based upon quoted market prices (ses
note 4). The fair value of license payables is determined
by the effective interest method. Convertible bonds are
recorded at their accreted values, which approximate the
cash outlay that is due upon the note settlements.

2 ]. ‘ OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases facilities and equipment on long-term
operating leases. Total rent expense amounted to € 1,672,888
and € 880,173 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. In January 2004, MorphoSys amended

the existing lease agreement for its facilities. The new lease

agreement will expire in September 2009. Future minimum
payments under nencancelable operating leases, insurances
and other services are as follows:

in000's € 2006 2005

Up to One Year 29 _..heeo

Between One and

Five Years 5,263 28

More Than

Five Years 7229\ N

TOTAL 15,413 4,834
- J

The Company’s total expenses due to operating leases, in-
surances and other services in the years ended December
31, 2006 and 2005, totaled approximately € 2,896,961 and
€ 1,185,515 respectively.

22 ‘ CONTINGENCIES

The management is not aware of any matters that could
give rise to any material liability to the Company that would
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

23 i RELATED PARTIES

The Group has related party transactions with its manage-
ment and with members of the Supervisory Board. In addi-
tion to the cash remuneration, the Company has issued
stock options and convertible bonds to the Management
Board and to members of the Supervisory Board.
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The table below shows the shares, stock options and con-
vertible bonds, as well as the changes of ownership of the
same, which were held by members of the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board during the year 2006:

SHARES

T

01/01/04 ADDITIONS FORFEITURES SALES | 12/31/06
—an— —_———— s ?_——.

-—

MANAGEMENT BOARD |

Dr. Simon E. Moroney 113,461 - - - 113,463
) Dave Lemus V - ) ) - ) - 7 - - | 7- o *
L DrMatiessprot 8- - o
TOTAL 113,496 - - -
SUPERVISORY BOARD
Dr. Gerald Méller

N
o
=
=]

Or. Daniel Camus - e e e e . p -

Dr. Metin Colpan - - T - | -

Prof, Or Ancreas Plicktun - 59.300 O U

Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernan y I O o -

_TOTAL 61,800 - - - 61,800

STOCK OPTIONS

01/01/06 ADDITIONS FORFEITURES SALES 12/31/06
] oo ——e 0

MANAGEMENT BOARD l
!
|
1
1

Dr. Simon E. Moraney 83,000 - - -

Dave Lemus 48,000 - - _
Dr. Marlies Sproll 2,500 25,000 - 1,250

TOTAL
SUPERVISORY BCARD
Dr. Gerald Méller - - - -

Dr. Daniet Camus - - - - | _

Dr, Metin Colpan 7 7 - - - - ! -

_ DrGeoffreyN.Vernon - o . - -
TOTAL 2,430 - - - 2,430

* Bought by Dr. Sproll prior to election to the Management Board
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

0170172006 _ ADDITIONS FORFEITURES SALES 12/31/2006
MANAGEMENT BOARD '
Dr. Sim_on E. Moroney ) 7.474 5,699 - 7.474 5,699
“tlJ;véALle.r.ﬁu's it .. ............ e e : o s
 Dr. Marlies Sﬁrﬁ]l ' 2490 © 3,800 - 2491 | 3,800
oAl 16,193 14,248 - 693 | 14,248
SUPERVISORY BOARD
Dr. Gerald Mofler - - - - -
oot D Ju;éen SRR : - e P
- Dr Daniel CamUS o - - - - —
- Ip-é“n R S = - - -
e e . S e e e
o e o'ffré'y N e Tl
owaL e s i e s e - :
.~ v
Compensation for hoth the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board consisted of fixed and variable compo-
nents. Tetal compensation for the Supervisory Board ex-
cluding reimbursements of travel expenses amounted to
€ 259,000 in 2006 (2005: € 190,500} The tables below
show the detailed compensation for the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board:
MANAGEMENT BOARD
OTHER
FIXED VARIABLE COMPENSATORY TOTAL
. COMPENSATION i COMPENSATION . BENEFITS .o COMPENSATION
S e e R
. i 2006 | 2005 2006 2005 2006 | 2005 | 2006 | 2005
Dr. Simon E. Moroney 290,000 1 257,453 139,024 136,231 77313 66,789 506,337 460,473
Develemus | 204750 | 184174 | 104973 | 102495 | 99.456 | 106779 | 409179 | 393.448
CDrMarliesSprollr | 181500 | 27500 | 13082 | - | 46347 6563 | 240,899 | 34,043
ToTAL | 676,250 | 469,127 | 257,049 | 238726 | 223016 | 180,111 | 1156415 | 887,964
—

* Joined Management Board on November 1, 2005
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

FIXED VARIABLE TOTAL
COMPENSATION COMPENSATICN COMPENRSATION

T T

m 2005 rm 2005 290?7 - 20057
Dr. Gerald Maller 40,000 | 25,000 | 24,500 26000 64,500+ 51,000
Prof. Dr. Jirgen Drews 30,000 l 18500 | 1,000 | 14000 41,000 32,500
ot O B S e ‘ ______ o e I oo o
Dr. Metin Colpan I ' | 25000 ¢ 13.500 7500 | 12,500 32,500 26,000
Prof. Dr. Andreas Plackthun 23500 12,000 7,500 | 7,500 31,000 19,500
Dr.GeoffreyN.Yemon | 26500, 15000 | 18500 | 17000 45000 32,000
Tt e e e | R wosa | ssemn | 2sv0a0 ivogho

At the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on May 17, 2006,
phantom stocks were granted to all members of the Super-
visory Board. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board
has received 2,500 stock appreciation rights, the Deputy
Chairman 2,000 stock appreciation rights and the mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board 1,500 stock appreciation
rights each.

In 2006, MorphoSys entered into consulting agreements
with the member of the Supervisory Board Prof. Dr. Andreas
Pliickthun and another scientist of Prof. Dr. Plickthun’s
research team at the University of Zurich, Switzerland,
ending December 2008. According to the agreements, the
consultants shall provide consulting services in the anti-
hody and scaffold fields. Under this agreement, Dr. Andreas
Pliickthun may receive payments of up to € 14,000 per
year, depending on the extent to which the Company
draws on his consultancy. Additionally, MorphoSys pays

a yearly fee of SFr. 135,000 for its sponsored research agree-
ment to the University of Zurich, represented by Prof. Dr.
Andreas Pliickthun. Both agreemenis were approved by
the Supervisory Board plenum. No other consultancy
agreements with members of the Supervisory Board are
currently in place,

. J

1
24 I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company issued its statement according to section 161
of the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz). This de-
claration was published and made accessible to stockhold-

—_—

ers accordingly on December 12, 2006.

25 ' RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENTS

The Company has a significant number of research and de-
velopment agreements relating to its discovery and devel-
opment strategy. The following is a brief description of these
agreements, which have had, or may have, a significant
financial impact (in alphabetical order).

BAYER CORPORATION, USA
In December 1999, the Company announced a collaboration
with Bayer AG ("Bayer”} encompassing a research cotlaho-
ration and license agreement for the application of the Com-
pany's proprietary technologies in a number of Bayer’s re-
search and development programs. The collaboration was
extended by another four vears in July 2001. The agreement
specified four areas in which the twe companies applied




— 132

the Company’s technologies. The Company's HuCAL
(Human Combinatorial Antihody Library) technology was
used to generate fully human therapeutic antibodies against
up to ten targets provided by Bayer. In addition, Bayer had
an option to develop antibodies generated using the HuCAL
technology as in vitre diagnostics. Furthermore, HuCAL
was used to identify antibodies for use in monitoring the
progress of clinical trials with selected drugs. The fourth
and last area of application was the use of MorphoSys tech-
nologies to tdentify and validate new targets emerging from
Bayer’s genomics program, which will be used by Bayer in
screenings for new drug candidates.

Under the terms of the agreement, Bayer made an up-front
payment to the Company upon signing the agreement, and
paid additional annual license fees and support for research
and development funding at the Company. Furthermore,
Bayer paid exclusivity fees for using the HuCAL technology
on up to ten potential targets as well as milestone fees on
antibodies delivered by the Company that met pre-agreed
success criteria. Any antibody-based products developed in
the cotlaboration triggered development-related milestone
and royalty payments by Bayer to the Company. Over the
course of the agreement, Bayer has thus far taken two ex-
clusive licenses on antibodies from MorphoSys and cross-
licensed its HKB-11 cell line as a countermove to the instal-
lation of HUCAL GOLD at selected Bayer sites.

In December 2005, the collaboration was extended by an-
other five years, with a termination option after the first
cotlaboration year. Under the terms of the extended agree-
ment, MorphoSys granted Bayer access to its proprietary
HuCAL GOLD antibody library for use in Bayer's drug dis-
covery programs at its research site in West Haven, Con-
necticut, USA. Additionally, the two parties undertook to
commence up to 25 new therapeutic antibody programs
should the collaboration run its full course.

After Bayer AG’s acquisition of Schering AG, the collabo-
rations with the two companies will be consolidated un-
der the existing contract with Schering AG. The contract
with Baver AG was terminated as of December 7, 2006,
accordingly.

BOEHRINGER INGELHEIM GMBH, GERMANY
In February 2003, MorphoSys and Boehringer Ingelheim
GmbH (“Boehringer Ingelheim”) entered into a therapeutic
antibody collaboration and cross-license agreements.
Under the terms of the agreements, MorphoSys received
an exclusive, worldwide license to patents owned or con-
trolled by Boehringer Ingelheim to develop, make and sell
therapeutic and diagnostic antibodies targeting the ICAM-1
molecule. Boehringer Ingelheim has received exclusive
commercial licenses to therapeutic antibodies against two
undisclosed targets, which MorphoSys generated utilizing
its HUCAL GOLD antibody technology.

In November 2003, Boehringer Ingelheim exercised its
first option for the development of a therapeutic antibody.
As a result, MorphoSys developed a therapeutic antibody
for Boehringer ingelheim against an undisclosed target
molecule for the treatment of inflammatory diseases such
as asthma and rheumatoid arthritis.

In August 2004, Boehringer Ingelheim exercised its sec-
ond option for the development of a therapeutic antibody.
Both parties initiated a new program for the development
of a therapeutic antibody against an undisclosed target
molecule involved in cardiovascular diseases. Boehringer
Ingelheim will be responsible for the preclinical and clini-
cal development and subsequent marketing of any result-
ant products, on which MorphoSys could earn milestones
and royalties.
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In March 2005, Boehringer [ngelheim and MorphoSys
sighed an expansion of their existing cooperation involv-
ing both research and therapeutic applications. Boehringer
Ingelheim has acquired an option to receive several ex-
clusive licenses on new therapeutic antibody programs.
Additionaily, Boehringer Ingelheim will obtain access to
MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD library for research purposes
at a number of the firm's research facilities. The HuCAL
GOLD library was installed at Boehringer Ingelheim's re-
search site in Vienna, Austria. MorphoSys received a tech-
nology access fee, and will receive annual license fees
and optional R&D funding over the five-year collaboration
term. For therapeutic antibodies emerging from the collab-
oration, Boehringer Ingelheim will pay milestone fees

and royalties to MorphoSys.

[n November 2006, Boehringer [ngeiheim exercised an ap-
tion for optimizing a therapeutic HuCAL antibody and ac-
quired an exclusive license for this project. The antibody
identified by Boehringer Ingelheim at its research site in
Vienna is directed against a cancer disease-related target
malecule.

BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB, USA

In August 1998, the Company and the Bristol-Myers Squibb
Company (“Bristol-Myers Squibb,” formerly the “DuPont
Pharmaceuticals Company”) entered into a cocoperation
agreement under which Bristol-Myers Squibb acquired

a non exclusive license to MorphoSys’s HuCAL antibody
library technology. Under the agreement, Bristol-Myers
Squibb applied the HuCAL technology in its pharmaceu-
tical discovery programs for target characterization and
validation. In July 2000, the parties extended this research
license and agreed to collaborate in developing a system
for fully automated high-throughput antibody generation,
called AutoCAL. The amended agreement provided for
Bristol-Mvers Squibb’s continued use of the HuCAL libraries
and for the installation of AuteCAL at Bristol-Myers
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Squibb’s facitities in Wilmington, Delaware, USA. Mile-
stones were achieved in 2000 and 2001 with the success-
ful generation of research antibodies against target mole-
cules provided by Bristol-Myers Squibb using AutoCAL.

In January 2005, MorphoSys announced a further expan-
sion of the existing license agreement to grant Bristol-Myers
Squibb access to the HuCAL GOLD library.

CENTOCOR, INC., USA

In December 2000, the Company signed a subscription
and license agreement with Centocor, Inc. (“Centocor”).
The intention of the collaboration is to facilitate the re-
search, discovery and development of novel antibody ther-
apeutics. Centocor has access to the HuCAL technology at
various sites; in addition, the Company generates antibod-
ies against Centocor targets. Under the agreement, the
Company will receive committed technology license fees,
exclusivity fees, research and development funding, and
milestone payments. Centocor will be responsible for the
development and marketing of any potential drugs. Should
Centocor market any drugs as a result of the collaboration,
the Company will receive royalty payments. The original
contract had a duration of five years and was to end in
December 2005. [n December 2004, both parties extended
their agreement until the end of 2007. The extension agree-
ment provides for increased levels of research and devel-
opment funding and an up-front payment by Centocor to
MeorphoSys.




ELI LILLY & COMPANY, USA

In September 2003, MorphoSys and Eli Lilly & Company
(“Lilly™) signed a cross-license agreement for the use of their
recombinant protein technologies. The agreement was
part of a settlement to resolve the patent litigation with
Applied Molecular Evolution {AME). Under the agreement,
MorphoSys received a license under the Kauffman patent
estate to generate and screen certain recombinant peptide
and protein libraries and to commercialize any resulting
products. The agreement also provided Lilly access to the
MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD technology for Lilly’s internal
research and development programs. For any therapeutic
antibodies Lilly develops under the agreement, it will pay
MorphoSys exclusive license fees, success fees, milestone
payments and royalties on end products. The settlement
agreement covers MorphoSys's and its partners’ past, pres-
ent and tuture use and commercialization of all versions
of its HuCAL libraries as well as its TRIM technology. The
agreement also gives Lilly access under agreed terms to
Antibodies by Design, MorphoSys’s business unit focusing
on the development of custom monoclonal antibodies for
non-therapeutic purposes.

F. HOFFMANN-LA ROCHE, SWITZERLAND

In September 2000, MorphoSys entered Info a collabora-
tion and license agreement with F, Hoffmann-La Roche
{"Roche”) for the development of human therapeutic anti-
hodies against a Roche target. Under the terms of the
agreement, the Company received a license payment, and
will receive development-related milestone payments and
royalties en marketed products. The Company applied its
HuCAL technalogy to the generation and optimization

of antibodies for the Roche target. Roche is responsible for
the clinical development, regulatory approval and world-
wide marketing of any resulting products. In January 2006,

MorphoSys announced that Roche had filed all necessary
applications to commence a Eurcpean phase 1 clinical triat
with the HuCAL antibody to treat Alzheimer’s disease.
The applications filing to commence clinical trials triggered
a clinical milestone payment from Roche to MorphoSys.

Expanding on the relationship in Alzheimer’s disease,
MorphoSys and Roche announced a new collaboration to
develop new therapeutic antibodies in oncology in March
2006. Roche will elect two new target molecules against
which MorphoSys wiil generate antibodies using its HuCAL
GOLD technology.

GPC BIOTECH AG, GERMANY
In April 1999, the Company signed a collaboration and li-
cense agreement with GPC Biotech AG (“GPC™). The objec-
tive of the collaboration was to utilize the Company’s tech-
nologies to generate human antibodies against GPC targets
and to deliver such antibody products to GPC for confirma-
tion of achievement of predefined success criteria. The Com-
pany received up-front research and development funding/
exclusivity payments as well as the potential for milestone
and royalty payments from GPC. In [anuary 2005, GPC
started a phase 1 clinical trial with a fully human cancer
antibody (1D09C3) generated by MorphoSys, evaluating
the antibody in patients with relapsed or refractory B-cell
lymphomas such as Hodgkin's and nen-Hodgkin’s lympho-
mas. The commencement of clinical trials triggered a cli-
nical milestone payment from GPC Biotech to MorphoSys.
The European Commission granted orphan drug des-
ignation for the antibody in the treatment of Hodgkin's
lymphoma in mid-2005 and for the treatment of chronic
lymphacytic leukemia (CLL) and mulitipte myeloma (MM)
in early 2006.
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IMMUNOGEN, USA

In September 2000, the Company signed a collaboraticn and
license agreement with ImmunoGen, USA (“ImmunceGen”).
The parties coltaborate in the discovery and development
of human moncclenal antibodies against certain specified
targets. ImmunoGen will be responsible for developing
one or more antibodies generated by MorphoSys into a
marketable product. Under the agreement, the Company
received a license payment as well as development-related
milestone payments and royalties on marketed products.

The existing agreement between the two companies was
expanded in June 2001. The new agreement provided for
a research license from the Company to ImmunoGen for
MorphoSys’s HuCAL antibody library technology for the
generation of research antibodies for use in ImmunoGen’s
functional genomics programs, in order to help validate
new targets, The expanded agreement had a duration of
four years.

In June 2005, the existing license agreement for Immuno-
Gen's internal target research programs was extended for
another year. The research collaboration was successfully
concluded at the end of May 2006.

MERCK & CO., INC., USA

In December 2005, MorphoSys signed a five-year license
agreement with Merck & Co,, Inc. {*Merck™). Under the terms
of the agreement, MorphoSys granis Merck access to its
proprietary technologies HuCAL GOLD and AutoCAL for
use in Merck’s drug discovery programs. Furthermore, the
agreement enables Merck to develop HuCAL-derived thera-
peutic antibodies in a range of indications. MorphoSys
received an up-front payment and will receive annual
user fees and R&D funding. MorphoSys is also eligible to
receive license and milestone payments on projects in
clinical development as well as royalties on any end prod-
ucts emerging from the cotlaboration.
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NOVARTIS AG, SWITZERLAND

In May 2004, MorphoSys AG and Noevartis AG (“Novartis”)
announced a collaberation to discover and develop anti-
hody-based biopharmaceuticals as therapeutic agents in
order to address unmet medical needs across a variety of
diseases. MorphoSys brings validated and robust human
antibody technelogies {HuCAL GOLD) to Novartis's new
strategic research directions, building a cellaharation that
will identify and develep novel therapeutic agents rapidly
and efficiently. MorphoSys scientists will work directly
with Novartis scientists across the global sites of the
Novartis institutes for BioMedical Research {N[BR), includ-
ing the new world headquarters in Cambridge, Massachu-
setts, USA. The MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD technology has
hecome an integral part of Novartis's drug discovery and
development efforts. During the three-year term of the
initial agreement, Novartis funded internal research at
MorphoSys. The Company generated and optimized HuCAL
GOLD antibodies against targets identified by Novartis.

In addition, Novartis has access to the current MorphoSys
HuCAL GOLD library at two of its sites. Additionaily, under
the terms of this collaboratien, Novartis was MorphoSys’s
first partner to receive a nonexclusive option on internal-
ization of the entire MorphoSys technology platform,
which would trigger an additional payment by Novartis to
MorphoSys. Novartis made an approximately € 9 millicn
investment in MorphoSys by purchasing non-interest-bearing
convertible bonds of MorphoSys. In addition, MorphoSys
was to receive aver US$ 30 millien in committed R&D
funding and technology license fees over the first three
years. MorphoSys also stands to receive technolegy license
payments, research and developmental milestones as well
as royalties on marketed antibody products.

135 ——
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[n June 2006, MorphoSys announced an expansion of its
collaboration with Novartis. The collaboration will now go
through May 2011.

Within the framework of the extended agreement, Novartis
committed to an increase in the number of new therapeu-
tic antibody projects annually - resulting in increased
levels of Novartis’s funding for research and development
at MorphoSys. In addition, Novartis has the opticn to re-
ceive access to the MorphoSys HUCAL GOLD library at an
additional research site and has access to a certain HuCAL
affinity optimization technology at the HuCAL library in-
stallation sites at Novartis for optimization of non-therapeutic
antibedies. Furthermore, the agreement also provides for
increased annua!l license fees, with commercial license
fees, research and developments] milestones, and royalties
on marketed antibody products remaining unchanged.

NOVOPLANT GMBH, GERMANY

in June 2004, MorphoSys AG and Novoplant GmbH (“Novo-
plant”) announced the signing of a collaboration for the
development of therapeutic antibodies in animal health
apptications. Under the three-year agreement, Novoplant
received a license for the development and commerciali-
zation of therapeutic antibodies as feed components for
use in veterinary medicine. Novoplant paid a technology
access fee to MorphoSys in addition to annual license fees.
Additionally, MorphoSys receives milestone fees and royal-
ties for the subsequent development and marketing of any

resulting products. In the context of the cooperation, Novo-
plant uses MorphoSys’s HuCAL GOLD technology to gener-
ate antibodies against viruses, parasites and pathogenic
microorganisms. The addition of such MorphoSys antibodies

to animal feed stock may offer protection against infec-
tious diseases in the respective animal’s gastrointestinal
tract. MorphoSys retains all rights in any human thera-
peutics or diagnostics emerging from the collaboration.

PFIZER, INC., USA
In December 2003, the Company announced a collabora-
tion and license agreement with Pfizer, Inc. (“Pfizer”).
The intention of the collaboration is to facilitate the re-
search, discovery and development of novel antibody thera-
peutics. The Company applies its HUuCAL GOLD technology
to the generation and optimization of antibodies for muiti-
ple Pfizer targets. Under the agreement, the Company re-
ceived a committed up-front fee and research support, and
will, depending on collahoration progress, receive mile-
stone payments and royalties. Pfizer is respensible for the
clinical development, regulatory approval and worldwide
marketing of any resulting products.

In December 2006, MorphoSys announced an early expan-
sion of its cotlaboration with Pfizer until the end of 2011.
Under the extended agreement, Pfizer has the option to
begin new therapeutic antibody projects with MorphoSys
resulting in an increased lavel of programs to be performed
within the collaboration. The extension triggered a one-off
payment from Pfizer to MorphoSys.
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SCHERING AG, GERMANY

In December 2001, the Company and Schering AG (“Schering”)
formed a strategic alliance for the development of antibody
therapeutics and in vivo diagnostics. As part of the agree-
ment, Schering and the Company combined their resources
over the three-year collaboration term to exclusively pursue
a minimum of five therapeutic and several in vive diagnostic
projects. Furthermore, the two partners jointly undertook
research to identify additional potential therapeutic and
diagnostic targets emerging from Schering’s genomics
program.

Additicnally, in February 2002, Schering purchased 357,880
shares at an average price of € §6.79 per share as part of
their strategic commitment to the partnership.

In December 2004, both parties extended the collabora-
tion agreement by at least two more years until the end of
2006, with the eption of a further extension peried of one
year beyond this time frame. The contract with the former
Schering AG was extended for an additional year until
the end of 2007. Over the lifetime of the agreement, the
Company will receive license fees, milestone payments
and royalties on any end products emerging from the
collaboration.
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SHIONOQGI & CO,, LTD,, JAPAN

[n September 2005, MorphoSys signed a threg-vear license
agreement with Shionogi & Co., Ltd., (“Shionogi™} on the use
of MorphoSys’'s HuCAL technology. Under the terms of the
agreement, MorphoSys grants Shionogi access to its HuCAL
GOLD antibody library for use in Shionogi's pharmaceutical
drug discovery programs. In return, MorphoSys has re-
ceived an up-front payment and stands to receive annual
user fees during the life span of the agreement.

XOMA TECHNOLOGY LTD., UK/XOMA IRELAND LTD., IRELAND

In February 2002, MorphoSys and XOMA Technology Ltd./
XOMA Ireland Ltd, ("XOMA”) concluded mutual license
agreements for their antibody technologies. Under the
terms of these agreements, MorphoSys received a license
for its own and its collaboration partners’ past and future
use of XOMA antibody expression technology for the
development of antibody products in connection with the
phage display-based HuCAL antibedy library {the “XOMA
license™). In return, XOMA received a five-year license
from MerphoSys to use the MorphoeSys HuCAL GOLD anti-
body library, which XOMA will use for its own target mol-
ecule identification and research programs. Moreover, an

option is included for the development of therapeutic anti-
bodies. MorphoSys acquired the XOMA license by issuing
363,466 shares arising from a capital increase in 2003.
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ROLL-FORWARD OF FIXED ASSETS {APPENDIX 1)

ACQUISITION AND PRODUCTION COST

.‘m€ oo 01/01/20086 . ADDITIONS DISPOSALS" o VARIAI:i)E( N 12/31/2006
I. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EGQUIPMENT
~ Land and Buildings 2,247,115 1,484,857 696,805 (13,777) 3,023,390
] ,9”‘9‘-‘,,?”?‘ Laboratory Equipment 5,333,716 2,322,048 257,396 127 7,398,495
__________ f_g__r_q_it_p__r_g_@_{_\_q___Fif_t_g_r_gs 1,881,731 613,367 264,784 (11,063) 2219‘251
9,462,562 4,422 272 1,218,985 {24,713) 12,641,136
ILINTANGIBLE ASSETS
Patents 3,794,561 49,994 - - 3,844,655
License Rights oiwoase soesst 4090 D nmoses
__ Software - 1,391,635 276,945 - - 1,668,580
!ﬁqu:t&ew g_r_l_t_j_‘Customer List 2,312,685 4,194,669 - (28,509) 6,478,449
_ Goodwill e 4137349 22782613 - 82,629 27,002,593
23,776,628 .2";;',908,878 4,090 53,724 51,735,140

* including reclasses 1o current assets held for sale of € 0.7 million

CHART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ENTITY AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 (APPENDIX 2)

EXCHANGE RATE
ON DEC. 12/31
ONE UNIT OF EURD

IN FOREIGN
R NAME AND CORPORATE SEAT OF THE COMPANY . CURRENCY . CURRENCY
COMPANY CONSOLIDATED (APART FROM PARENT COMPANY)
MorphoSysUSAIncChar\otte North Carclina, USA uss 1.3134
 MorphoSys [P GmbH, Munich, Germary €
_____ MorphoSys UK Lid., Poole, UK ' £ 0.6709
_ MorphoSys US, Inc., Brentwood, New Hampshire, UsA us$ 1.3134
Serotec Ltd., Oxford, UK (including its affiliates) £ 0.6709

* Before elimination of intercompany fransactions
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_ ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION co_ NET BOCK VALUES .
F/X
01/01/2006 --DEPRECIATIDN - WRITE-OFF*" DISPOSALS VARIANCE 12 /31/2006 _°_12_/31/2006 oo 12/31/2005
10,310 66,433 56600 32607 (A7) 100299 2923091 2236805
3,782,7397 7 908,462 59,622 247,357 813 _4,50?,279_ 2,893,21(5 155097?
o250 228,447 204,203 264,784 930 1141446 1077805 909,081
....................................... 4,765,699 ‘ - 1.,204,342 320,465 544,838 1,356 5,747,024 - £,§?4,112 A774,696,863
1,433,556 460,845 S e e e B04.40T 1,950,154 2,361,005
-------------------------------------- 3 6833(}7 1,285,374 - - 4090 “ - 4%4591 7.?76,3?4 8,{}5?,091 B
------------------------ 1.260.125 131,846 ) ‘32,7?2_“ . - 1’4.24'76? ‘ 243,813 . 1731,596
o szzis gi6577 - - 465 1644160 4,834,289 1,485,567
e e E e Lo 41w
7,204,110 2,694,642 32,792 4,090 465 9,927,919 41,807,221 . 16,572,518
TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL PROFIT/
EQUITY IN ASSETS IN LIABILITIES REVENUE IN [LOSS) IN
SHARE OF FOREIGN FOREIGN IN FOREIGN FOREIGN FOREIGN
caPITAL % CURRENGY CURRENCY" GURRENCY" CURRENCY " CURRENCY'
100 Z,OQQ ) 18,523” o 7732,0768” 777777 - (719@276)
............ 100 5000 - 17028,440 18,566,480 4364080 -
200 200 1,417,648 JAea7es 1595669 73546
. 100 100 538,722 422,367 11,033,957 o (115,225}
e OO 100 67839 4144545 9370845 (279673
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Auditor’s Report

We have issued the following unqualified auditor’s report:
“Auditor’s report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by the MorphoSys AG, Martinsried,
-comprising the balance sheets, the statements of operations, the statements of cash flows,
the statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and the notes to the consolidated financial
statements- together with the group management report for the business year from January 1

to December 31, 2006. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the group
management report in accordance with 1FRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements
of German commercial law pursuant 1o Section 315a Para. 1 HGB are the responsibility of the
parent company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the censaolidated
financial statements and on the group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Section 317
HGB [Handelsgesetzhuch; “German Commercial Code”] and German generally accepted stan-
dards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer
(IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements
materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of opera-
tions in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial report-
ing framework and in the group management report are detected with reasonable assurance.
Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Group and
expectations as to possible misstatements are taken inte account in the determination of audit
procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence
supporting the disclosures in the consclidated financial statements and the group management
report are examined primarily on a test hasis within the framework of the audit. The audit
includes assessing the annual financial statements of those entities included in consolidation,
the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements and group management report. We believe
that our audit provides a reascnable basis for our opinion.
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Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In cur epinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements comply
with [FRSs, as adopted by the EU, the additional requirements of German commercial law pursu-
ant to Section 315a Para. 1 HGB and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position
and results of operations of the Group in accordance with these requirements. The group man-
agement report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and as a whole provides
a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of
future development.”

Munich, February 6, 2007

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft
GESELLSyy

Aktiengesellschaft ‘byx“%?ggpuuss%*}#
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft o %

WIRTSCHAFTS-
PRUFUNGS-

; z GESELLSCHAFT

Maurer Rahn
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprifer
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Supervisory Board Report

In this report the Supervisory Board gives an account of its
activities in the 2006 fiscal year and describes the themes of its
ongoing dialogue with the Management Board of MorphoSys AG.

During 2006 the Supervisory Board performed the functions for which it is responsible accord-
ing to statutory provisions and the Articles of Association. The Supervisory Board monitored
the conduct of the Company’s business and regularly advised the Management Board. We per-
formed these functions on the bhasis of detailed written and oral reports received from the Man-
agement Board, which contained up-to-date and comprehensive information regarding all rel-
evant topics. As Chairman of the Supervisory Board, 1 maintained personally a regular exchange
of information and ideas with the Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Simon E. Moroney. In this way,
the Supervisory Board was kept continuously informed about the Company’s business strategy,
corporate planning {including financial, investment and human resources planning), the earn-
ings performance as well as the state of the business and the situation in the Company and the
Group as a whole.

SUPERVISORY BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES

The Supervisory Board focused chiefly on the Gompany's strategic multi-year business plan,
progress reports for the two operating business units, the annual budget for 2007, corporate
governance topics, and mergers and acquisitions epportunities. To the extent that corporate
law or the existing Management Board Rules of Procedure require approval for certain actions
to be taken by the Management Board, such approvals were given by the Supervisory Board
itself or its sub-committees after detailed examination and discussion.

Eight regular Supervisory Board meetings were held in fiscal year 2006. The development of
revenues, earnings and employment in the Group and both segments, the financial situation
and all major investment projects were the subject of regular deliberations at the meetings.
The Management Board reported regularly on the progress of the proprietary antibody develop-
ment and the ongoing technology development efforts. In several meetings we discussed future
growth strategies as well as merger and acquisition possibilities. On the basis of detailed docu-
ments, provided by external legal and financial consultants and by the internal due diligence
team, the Supervisory Board approved the acquisition of 1the Serotec Group in January 2006.
Thereafter, the Management Board kept us informed on the integration status and the further
development of the Research Antibodies segment. Further key topics of the meetings were the
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Fiscal year 2006 was the most
successtul year in the history of
MOTDNOSYS. bt s s acar smsoss e s

of several multi-year therapeutic antibody partnerships, and the

acquisition of the Serotec Group, which was completed within in the
first weeks of 2006.

Dr. Gerald Méller
Chairman cf tne Supervisary Board

PIPE transaction in March 2006, the approval of the financial statements, the appeintment
of the auditor, the budget for 2007, and the business development issues such as approval for
terms and conditions of new collaborations. All term sheet for transactions that were material
to the Company were reviewed and approved by the Supervisory Board. At its meetings in
October and December 2004, the Supervisory Board considered in detail the operational, finan-
cial and balance sheet planning for the years 2008 through 2011,

For all Supervisery Board meetings, all members of the Supervisory Board received extensive
written reports well in advance of each meeting, which were prepared by the Management
Board with the input of the respective departments. These reports were sufficiently comprehen-
sive 10 analyze the relevant topics of the agenda of the Supervisory Board meetings and to pass
the required resolutions.

Between meetings, the Supervisory Board was informed in detail by means of writlen reports
about all projects and plans of particular importance te the Company. Where necessary, resolu-
tions were passed by written vote.

Presently, three different committees exist: the Audit Committee, the Remuneration & Nomina-

' tion Committee, and the Science & Technology Committee. The composition of these committegs®
can be found in the Corporate Governance chapter of this Annual Report. The Audit Committee
met eight times, dealing mainly with accounting issues, the quarterly financial stutements and
the annual financial statements. The auditor attended three meetings of the Audit Committee
and informed its members of the audit results. The Remuneration & Nomination Committee met
one time and concerned itself with topics relating to the remuneration system and ihe level of
compensatien for the Management Board. The Science & Technology Committee did not meet
during the year, but established itself at the end of 2006. Reports on the meetings of the Gom-
mittees were presented at the plenary sessions of the Supervisory Board.
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With regard to the declarations pursuant to § 315 para. 4 of the German Commercial Code (HGB)
we refer to page 77 seq. of the Group Management Report. No additicnal exptanations by the
Supervisory Board are necessary or required in this context.

REELECTION OF SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS

At the Ordinary Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on May 17, 2000, Prof. Dr. Jargen Drews and
Prof. Dr. Andreas Plickthun were re-elected as members of the Supervisory Board. Both have
many vears of experience in the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industry as well as in the
field of antibody technology. We are very pleased to have the continued support of both mem-
bers and the benefit of their experience.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Supervisory Board dealt with the ongoing development of corporate governance at MorphoSys,
taking into account the amendments made to the German Corporate Governance Code in June
2006, In December 2006, the Management and Supervisery Boards issued a new Declaration
of Conformity*, which is also included in the Corporate Governance chapter of this annual report
and is also permanently available to shareholders on MorphoSys’s website. As stated in the
Declaration of Conformity approved by the Supervisory Board, MorphoSys complies with all but
two of the Code’s recommendations.

For more detailed information regarding corporate governance issues, please refer to the corpo-
rate governance and remuneration report of this annual report.

AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements and the management report of MorphoSys AG in accordance with HGB
{German GAAP) and the consolidated financial statements and the Group manhagement report
of the MorphoSys Group {MorphoSys AG including its affiliates) on the basis of [FRS in accor-
dance with Art. 315a HGB for the period January 1, 2006, to December 31, 2006, prepared by
the Management Board, were audited by KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesell-
schaft Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Munich. The audit contract had been awarded by the
Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board in accordance with the resolution of the Annual Share-
holders' Meeting on May 17, 2006. The auditor issued an unqualified audit opinion,

The auditors have audited the MorphoSys Group’s consolidated financial statements and the
annual financial statements of MorphoSys AG as well as the management reports for the Group
and MorphoSys AG according to HGB. Additionally, the Company's system for internal control/
risk management was also subjected to audit. The consolidated financial statements were audited
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according to German and international standards {iFRS). The auditor confirtned that the consol-
idated annual financial statements are an accurate and fair reflection of the financial situation,
the result of business activity, and the Group’s cash flow, in accordance with the accounting
principles as defined by IFRS.

The focus of this year's audit of the financial statements and the management report of MorpheSys
AG was the structure, implementation and effectiveness of internal controls in the procurement
process as well as the structure, implementation and effectiveness of internal controls relating
to Counsel Licensing & Intellectual Property and the completeness of accounts payable trade
and accruals for cutstanding invoices as well as the accurate recognition of the operating rev-
enues. The focus for the 2006 audit of the consolidated financial statements and the Group man-
agement report of the MorphoSys Group was the process of preparing the consolidated finan-
cial statements, the accuracy of the annual financial statements included in the consolidated
financial statements, the capital consolidation, particularly the purchase price allocation for

the acquired companies and the determination of deferred taxes.

The audit reports and the financial statement documentations were sent te all Supervisory Board
members in good time The audit report and the financial statements of the consolidated financial
statements and the Group management report of the MorphoSys Group were discussed inten-
sively during the Audit Committee Meeting on February 20, 2007, and at the meeting of the
Supervisory Board Mesting on February 22, 2007. The audit report and the financial statements
and the management report of the MorphoSys AG were the subject of intense discussion at the
Audit Committee Meeting on March 9, 2007, and at the meeting of the Supervisory Board Meet-
ing on March 9, 2007. At the respective meetings, the auditor tock part in the discussion of the
financial statements. He reported on the main results of its audits and was available to the
Supervisory Board to answer questions and provide supplementary infermation. After our final
review, the Supervisory Board approved the financial statements without objection or amend-
ment and thus adopted them.

On behalf of my colleagues on the Supervisory Board, | would like to thank the Management
Board and the employees of all Group subsidiaries for their dedication and hard work in 2006.

Martinsried/Flanegg, March 9, 2007

Lwotd Il

Dr. Gerald Mbller
Chairman of the Supervisary Board
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Fund LLC*, USA
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{Chairman)
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EnBW, Germany
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Italy

Valéo, France

Dr. Metin Colpan
Venlo, The Netherlands
Superviscry Director,
Giagen N.V.
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Board of:

GPC Biotech AG, Germany
GenPat 77, Germany

Qiagen NV, The Netherlands
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Zurich, Switzerland
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Dr. Geoffrey N. Vernon
Tavistock, U<

Executive Chairan,
Ziggus Hold ng Ltd.

Member of the Supervisory
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Advanced Medical

Solutions Ltd.*, UK

Apitope Technology Ltd., UK
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Medpharm Ltd., UK

Taha Technology Ltd.*, Israel
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XL TechGroup Inc.*, USA
Ziggus Holdings Lid.*, UK
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Glossary

A

B

E

ADR — American Depository
Receipt; an ADR is issued by a U.§.
depositary bank and represents
one or more shares of a foreign
stock or a fraction of a share

Affinity — Binding strength
between binding partners, e. g.
antibody/antigen

AMD — Age-related eye disease

Amyloid-beta— target molecule in
Alzheimer's disease therapy; main
constituent of amy!loid plaques in
the brains of Alzheimer's disease
patients

Antibody — Proteins of the immune
sysiem that recognize aniigens
thereby triggering an immune
response

Antibody library — A cellection of
genes that encode correspending
human antibodies

Antigen — Fareign substance
stimulating antibedy preduction;
binding partner of antibady

Autcimmune disease — Disease
caused by an immune response
by the body against one of its own
tissues, cells, or motecules

Biogenerics — Follow-on products of
biotechnology drugs

C

Cash flow — Key performance indi-
cator in the cash flow statement
used to assess the financial and
earning capacity

Cell line — Permanent culture of
cells used in modern science

Clini¢ — Clinical stage of drug
development; tests on human
patients

COGS — Cost of goods sold; costs
for antibody material produced by
the AbD segment

Corporate Governance — System
of relations between the sharehold-
ers, Board of Directors and man-
agement of a company

Cytokine — Intercellular mediator

D

Differentiation — Process by which
celis acquire a “type”

Disulfid bond — Molecular connec-
tion via two sulphur atoms - main
feature of MorphoSys CysDisplay
technology

Expression — Conversion of gene-
tic information in a corresponding
protein

E.coli — Certain species of bacteria

Eukaryote — A cell with distinct
nucleus, in comparison to prokaryote

F

FDA — Food and Drug Administra-
tion; U.S. Federal Agency for the
Supervision of Food and Drugs

Freefioat — The proportion of a
cempany’s listed shares that is
freely available for trading

G

Gene ~ Part of DNA encoding a
gefined structure (e.g. a protein)
ot a function

Geneme — Total DNA of an organ-
ism {genes, genetic signalling
structures as well as additional
DNA sections)

Genamics — Analysis of compo-
sition and interaction of genetic
information

Glycosylation — The modification
of a protein by adding sugar mole-
cules to particular amino acids in
the protein

Gold standard — Best anc most
reliable method or technology cur-
rently available; industry standard

Goodwill — An intangible asset that
reflects the value of a company’s
name and reputation, its customer
relations, and other factors influenc-
ing its standing and competitiveness

GRS study — Annual German
Biotechnology Industry Remune-
ration Study

H

HGB — German accounting
standards

HuCAL — Human Combinatorial
Antibody Library. Proprietary
antibody library enabling rapid
generation of specific human
antibodies for all applications

Human — Of human origin
Hybridoma — Fuysed cancer and

immune cell used for antibody
production
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ICAM-1 — Interceliutar adhesion
matecule-1

IFRS — International Financial Re-
porting Standards; Future EU-wide
standards proguced by the IASB

Immunization — Generation
of antibodies by administering
antigen

Impairment — Value test; used to
regularly assess capitalized good-

will anid certain other assets

IND — Investigational New Drug
application to start clinical trials

fn vitro — in a test tube
in viva —in a living organism
IPQ — tnitial Public Offering; first

time a company offers it shares to
the public

L

Library — Here - coilection of a
multitude of cifferent molecules
{gene library, peptide library,
protein, especially antibedy library)
for screening and/or selection

Life sciences — All branches of
science that study all erganisms,
especially living ones

Lymphoma — Certain form of blood
cancer

Market capitalization — Value of a
company's outstanding shares, as
measured by shares times ¢urrent
price

M&A — Mergers & Acquisitions

Milestone — Predefined events
relating to the development of the
substance intc a drug

Monoclanal antibody — Homo-
geneous antibody originating
from a single clone, produced by
hybridoma cell

Multipte myelema ~ Type of cancer
that develops in a subset of white
blood cells called plasma cells
formed in the bene marrow

Multiple sclerosis — Disease of the
central nervous system characterized
by the destruction of nerve fibers

P

Peptide — Short chain of amina
acids

Phage — Abbreviaticn for bacterio-
phage, a virus that infects bacteria

Phage display technology — Screen-
ing technology; presentation of pep-
tides/proteins of surface of phages

Preclinic — Preclinical stage of
drug development; tests in animal
models as well as in taboratory

essays

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT

Protein — Polymer consisting
of amino acids, e.g., antibodies,
enzymes

Proteome — Protein complement
expressed by a gencme

Psoriasis — Chronig, immune
system-related disease, causing
inflammation and damage to in-
valved tissues, primarily the skin

Purchase prize allocation (PPA) —
Identification of assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in connec-
tion with an acquisition

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS »

R

RapMAT — Maturation process;
proprietary technology of MorphoSys

R&D — Research and Development

Reagent — A substance used in re-
search and diagnostic applications

Recombinant — Formed by
{rejcombination of parts of one or
different starting DNA molecules

Rheumatoid arthritis — Inflamma-
tory disease of the joints

Ribosorne — Cell arganelle which
translates genetic information into
preteins

Rayalties — Percentage share of
ownership of the revenue genera-
ted by drug products

149 -

S

§,G&A - sales, general and
administrative

Specificity — Property of e.g.
antibodies to discriminate between
different, but simi'ar, antigens

T

Target — target molecule for thera-
peutic interventiaon, e.g. on surface
of diseased cell

TecDAX — Index of the thirty largest
technelogy companies listed at the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange

Toxin — Ppisonous substance
Transfection — Process of intro-
ducing foreign genes into a host

arganism

Translation — Process of preducing
proteins within cells
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MorphoSys Obtains
Human Cel! Line for
Production cf Anti-
body Materiat in
tMOR103 Program

AbD Serotec Opens
New US Office in
Technology Cluster
Research Triangle
Region

SEPTEMBER

HNOVEMBER

MorphoSys Enlarges
Therapeutic Anti-
body Collaboration
with Pfizer — Expan-
sion Doubles Poten-
tial Deal Volume for
MorphoSys

MorphoSys Presents
New RapMAT Anti-
body Technology

MorphoSys Reports
Six Months 2004
Results and Raises
Financia! Guidance

AUGUST OCTOBER

MorphoSys and US
Army Enter into
Bicdefense Ccopera-
tion as AbD Serotec
is Awarded Sole
Supplier Contract to
USAMRIID

MorphoSys and the
Burnham Institute
Sign Broad Research
Partnership

MorphoSys and
Boehringer Ingelheim
Expand Collaboration
with new Cancer-
Related Antibody
Program

DECEMBER
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MorphoSys worldwide

MORPHOSYS AG
Lena-Christ-Str. 48

82152 Martinsried/Planegg
Germany

Tel: +49(0)89/899 27-0
Fax: +49(0)89/89927-222
info@marphosys.com
sales.muc@ab-direct.com

MORPHOSYS ABD GMBH
Immermannstr, 13

40210 Dusseldorf, Germany
Tel: +49(0)211/93503 10/11
Fax: +49(0)211/93503 12
sales.de@ab-direct.com

MORPHOSYS US INC.

3200 Atlantic Avenue, Suite 125
Raleigh, NC 27604, USA

Toll free: 1-800-265-7376

Fax: 1-919-878-3751
sales.us@ab-direct.com

MORPHOSYS UK LTD.
Endeavour House,
Langford Business Park
Langford Lane, Kidlingten
Oxford, OX5 tGF, UK

Tel: +44({0}1865852700
Fax: +44(0) 1865852739
sales.uk@ab-direct.com

Additional sales offices in
Brentwood (NH, USA),

Cergy Saint-Christophe {France)
and Hamar (Norway).

*® MorphoSys sites
® HuCAL installations

AbD Serotec: Developed markets
9 AbD) Serotec: Core markets
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Dear Shareholders,

After strong performance in the year 2006, MorphoSys was able to continue its successful
operational devetepment in the first guarter of 2007.

Most importantly, MorphoSys has achieved several key strategic milestones in the Asian mar-
ket. In March 2007, MorphoSys signed an agreement with Astellas Pharma Inc., which repre-
sents the third partnership with a major pharmaceutical group in Japan. Astellas is Japan's
second largest ethical pharmaceutical company and also belongs to the top tier of the largest
pharmaceutical companies in the world. By signing this license agreement, MerphoSys has
further increased its market share in Asia and has expanded its roster of partnerships with the
20 largest pharmaceutical companies worldwide.

Additionally, MorphoSys entered into an alliance with a leading Japanese research institute and
its Japanese markeling partner, Gene Frontier, in order to further increase the uptake of HUCAL
antibodies in the research community. Within the scope of this collaboration, Japanese scien-
tists will obtain high-throughput access to HUCAL antibodies for research purposes. In return,
MorphoSys secures rights to develop any antibodies with therapeutic or diagnostic potential,
against targets investigated by these researchers.

In the AbD segment, MorphoSys continued to make progress with the integration of the Serotec
Group. As part of this process MorphoSys opened its new U.K. headquarters for this segment in
Kidlington, North Oxford. The inauguration ceremony of the building in January was presided
aver by the UK Minister of State for Science and Innovation, Mr. Malcolm Wicks.

On behalf of my colleagues from the Management Board, | would like to thank you for your
continued interest and support.

Dave Lemus
Chief Financial Officer
MorphoSys AG
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Industry Overview

Despite turbulence in the financial markets during the first quarter of 2007, the outlook for the
economic trend remained positive, characterized by a favorable economic climate. In addition,
the US economy performed better than expected, bolstered by declining energy prices.

M&A activities continued to play a large role in the biotech industry, and in particular, in the
antibedy space in which MorphoSys operates, In specific, the Japanese pharmaceutical com-
pany Eisai announced the acquisition of Morphotek, a US-based antibody company, and Roche
bought Therapeutic Human Polyclonals (THP), its second antibody-driven acquisition in the
recent past.

Overall biotach stock parformance was positive against the backdrop of general market turmoil
in February 2007 and the subsequent rebound in the German DAX stock index. European
biotech stocks continued their outperformance in comparison to their US counterparts.

The MorphoSys share was up by 1% at the end of the first quarter 2007, underperforming the
TecDAX, which was up by 13%. In the same time period, the Prime Biotechnology Index in-
creased by 8% while the NASDAQ Bictechnology Index remained essentially unchanged.

Financial Analysis

Revenues

Compared to the same pericd in the previous year, revenues slightly decreased by 5% to

€ 14.1 million in the first three months of 2007 (March 31, 2006; € 14.8 million). The decrease is
due to higher levels of milestone/success payments recgived in 2006 in the Therapeutic Anti-
body segment. Revenues arising from the Therapeutic Antibodies segment accounted for 62%
or € 8.8 million of total revenues while the AbD segment generated 38% (€ 5.3 million) of the
total.

Geographically, 42%, or € 5.8 million, of MorphoSys's commercial revenues were generated
with biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies or non-profit organizations located in North
America and 58%, or € 8.2 million, with companies located in Europe and Asia. This compares
to 35% and 65%, respectively, in the same period of the prior year.

Tharapeutic Antibodies Segment

Revenues arising from the Therapeutic Antibodies segment comprised € 7.2 million in funded
research and licensing fees (2006; € 6.0 million) as well as € 1.6 million success-based pay-
menis (2006: € 3.9 million), representing 18% of total therapeutic revenues. Approximately 68%
of therapeutic antibodies revenues and 42% of total revenues arose from the Company’s three
fargest alliances with Novartis, Centocer and Pfizer (March 31, 2006: Novartis, Centocor and
Roche, 72% and 48%, respectively).




Antibodies Direct — AbD Segment

Compared to the same period in the previous year, AbD segment's revenues increased by 8%,
or € 0.4 million, to € 5.3 million in the first quarter 2007. The largest part of revenues (approx.
91%), or € 4.8 million, were generated with catalog and industrial customers, while custom
manufacture antibodies contributed 9% or € 0.5 million.

As of March 31, 2007, orders in the amount of € 0.9 million were classified as backorders in the
segment.

Operating Expenses

For the first three menths of 2007, total operating expenses increased by 25% to € 12.8 million
{March 31, 2006: € 10.2 million). The rise in operating expenses of € 2.6 million was impacted
by R&D expenses increasing by 29% or € 1.1 million, S, G&A expenses increasing by 24% or
€ 1.0 million and cost of goods sold increasing by 29% or € 0.6 million. Total PPA effects on
operating profit amounted to € 0.4 million compared to € 0.1 million in the same period of the
prior year.

Stock-based compensation expenses are embedded in COGS, S, G8A and R&D expense
amounts. Stock-based compensation for the first three months of 2007 amounted to € 0.4 mil-
lion (March 31, 2006: € 0.3 million), and is a non-cash charge.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold (COGS) is composed of the AbD segment’s cost of goods sold during the
first quarter. COGS rose significantly to € 2.7 million in Q1 2007, compared to € 2.1 million in
the same period of the prior year. This rise in COGS mainly resulted from higher sales levels
during the current year, and from increased costs arising from the purchase price allocation in
connection with the acquisition of Serotec, which were not included in Q1 2006. High levels of
sales with industrial or bulk customers in the first quarter of 2007 further adversely influenced
gross margins.

Research and Development Expenses

Costs for research and development increased by € 1.1 million to € 4.9 million (March 31, 2006:
€ 3.8 million) mainly due to expenses for product and technology development. The two proprie-
tary products currently being internally developed by MorphoSys are MOR 103 and MOR 202.

Sales, General and Administrative Expenses

Sales, general and administrative expenses amounted to € 5.2 million compared to € 4.2 million
in the same period of the previous year. This change was mainly impacted by higher personnel
costs due to increased accruals for variable compensation and recruitment expenses as well as
by increased expenses for infrastructure.

Cost by Expenditure Type

For the first three months of 2007, personnel costs amounted to € 4.6 million (March 31, 2008:
€ 3.9 million) or 36% of total cperating expenses, thus representing the largest cost block within
operating expenses in the first three months of 2007,




Material costs, representing the second-largest block by cost type, mainly consisted of consum-
ables, materials and goods employed and accounted for € 2.3 million {March 31, 2006:
€ 1.6 million} or 18% of total expenses.

Expenses for external services mainly included external lab funding, consulting fees and mar-
keting expenses and amounted to € 1.9 million (March 31, 2006: € 1.1 million) or 15% of total
operating expenses.

Non-operating Items

Non-operating income amounted to € 0.2 million (March 31, 2006: income of € 0.2 million) and
remained unchanged. Profit before taxes amounted to € 1.5 million (March 31, 2006: profit
before taxes of € 4.9 million).

Taxes

Expenses for current and deferred taxes in the amount of € 1.0 million {March 31, 2006: zero)
were recognized for the first three months of 2007. The deferred tax asset on tax loss carry-
forwards established in 2006 was partially utilized in the first quarter of 2007, resulting in both
current and deferred tax expenses for the quarter. These tax expenses were partly offset by the
amortization of deferred tax liabilities recognized as a result of previous acquisitions, thus re-
ducing total tax expenses by € 0.1 million for the first three months of 2007.

Cperating Profit / Net Profit

Group operating profit amounted to € 1.3 million in the first three months of 2007 (March 31,
2006; € 4.7 million). Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) amounted to € 1.5 million, com-
pared to an EBIT of € 4.9 million in the same period of the previous year.

A net profit after taxes of € 0.6 million was achieved for the first three months of 2007, com-
pared to a net profit after taxes of € 4.9 miflion in the same period of 2006. The resulting basic
net profit per share for the three months ended March 31, 2007, amounted to € 0.10 {three
months ended March 31, 2006: net profit per share of € 0.79).

Liquidity f Cash Flows

Cash flow from operations amounted to € 5.2 million in the first three months of 2007 (March 31,
2006: € 10.0 million). Investing activities resulted in a cash outflow of € 0.2 million whereas the
cash inflow from financing aclivities amounted to € 0.4 million,

As of March 31, 2007, the Company held € 72.0 million in cash, cash equivalents and available-
for-sale financial assets, compared to a year-end 2006 balance of € 66.0 million.

Assats
Total assets rose by € 6.4 million to € 134.2 million as of March 31, 2007, compared to

€ 127.8 million as of December 31, 2006, mainly as a result of cash generated from operations
and an increase in accounts receivable.

Liabilitles

In the first three months of 2007, current liabilities increased from € 18.3 million as of Decem-
ber 31, 2008, to € 19.4 million. This change primarily arose from an increase in current deferred




revenue which was partly offset by a decrease in accounts payable. Deferred revenues rose
due to payments deriving from contracts signed in the current and previous years.

During the first three months of 2007, an increase of total non-current liabilities by € 3.3 million
to € 12.8 million was mainly impacted by non-current deferred revenues, resulting from con-
tracts signed in current and previous years.

Equity
Total stockholders' equity amounted to € 102.0 million as of March 31, 2007, compared to
€ 100.1 million as of December 31, 2006.

As of March 31, 2007, the total number of shares issued amounted to 6,724,410, of which
6,697,678 were outstanding, compared to 6,715,322 and 6,686,160 as of December 31, 2006,
respectively.

The increase of shares outstanding by 11,518 shares arose from the conversion of bonds is-
sued to employees as well as from exercised options. In Q1 2007, 2,430 of the exercised op-
tions related to shares provided by treasury stock. Treasury shares were reduced, accordingly,
amounting to 26,732 shares as of March 31, 2007.

Capital Expenditure

MorphoSys's investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to € 0.3 millien for the
three-month period ended March 31, 2007, and increased by € 0.1 million compared to the
same period of the prior year. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the first three
manths of 2007 accounted for € 0.4 million, compared 1o € 0.3 million in the first quarter of
2006.

During the first three months of 2007, the Company invested € 0.3 million in intangible assets
(March 31, 2006: € 0.1 million}. Amortization of intangibles amounted to € 0.7 million and in-
creased by € 0.2 million in comparison to the first three months of 2006, mainly due to the amor-
tization of intangible assets acquired in the Serotec deal.

Human Resources

Number and Qualification of Employees

On March 31, 2007 the MorphoSys Group employed 297 people (December 31, 2006: 279). On
average, the MorphoSys Group employed 291 people for the first three months of 2007 (Q1
2006: 251).

Of the 297 employees, 109 people were employed by the Serotec Group on March 31, 2007,
and on average, 109 were employed.

Of the 297 employees, 169 worked in research and development and 128 in sales, general and
administration. On March 31, 2007, 64 of MorphoSys’s employees had a Ph.D. degree {De-
cember 31, 2006: 59).




Of the 297 employees, 169 worked for the Therapeutic Antibodies segment and 128 for the AbD
segment.

On March 31, 2007, MorphoSys had one apprenticeship position (December 31, 2006: 1).

Changes in Supervisory Board

On March 26, 2007, MorphoSys announced that its current board member Prof. Dr. Andreas
Pliickthun intends to resign from the Supervisory Board with effect of May 16, 2007. Prof. Plick-
thun is leaving the board at his own request, in order to devote additional time to his increasing
number of academic research programs at the University of Zurich, as well as to be able to
pursue other entrepreneurial opportunities.

Legal Structure / Organization

As previously communicated, MorphoSys has streamlined its corporate structure in order to
increase administrative efficiency.

To this end, in January 2007 Serotec Ltd. {Oxford, UK) and Serotec, Inc. {Raleigh, NC, USA},
were renamed MorphoSys UK Ltd. and MoarphoSys US, Inc., respectively, and Serotec GmbH
{Dusseldorf, Germany) was renamed MorphoSys AbD GmbH. Furthermore, MorphoSys UK
ttd. (former Biogenesis Ltd.) was renamed Poole Real Estate Ltd.

The former Biogenesis Inc. was merged into the former Serotec Inc., and subsequently re-
named MorphoSys US Inc. (as per above).

Quality Management

At the new premises of MorphoSys UK Ltd. at Endeavour House in Kidlington, North Oxford, an
external audit of the 1509001/2000 quality system has been completed and continued certifica-
tion has been recommended. Subsequently, a new 15039001/2000 certificate for MorphoSys UK
Ltd. with the Endeavour House address was issued.

Business Development

The following new partnerships were established in the first quarter of 2007:

Therapeutic Antibodies Segment

MorphoSys Signed Third Japanese Pharmaceutical Alliance with Astellas

In March 2007, MorphoSys and Astellas Pharma Inc. {Tokyo, Japan) have entered into a li-
cense agreement for the use of MorphoSys's HUCAL techniology. Under the terms of the
agreement, MorphoSys grants Astellas access to the HUCAL GOLD antibody library for use in




its internal pharmaceutical drug discovery programs. In return, MorphoSys stands to receive an
up-front payment and annual user fees. The agreement has a potential duration of up to five
years,

AbD Sagment

Technology Agreement with Thermo Fisher Scientific

AbD Serotec and Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc., signed an agreement in February 2007 covering
the use of Thermo Scientific’s DyLight Dyes in combination with AbD Serolec's research anti-
bodies in order to prepare a series of fluorescent reagents. The resulting products will be avail-
able through the AbD Serotec sales catalog.

Antibody License Agraement with Medical Research Councit

In March 2007, AbD Serotec has significantly expanded its license agreement with MRC Tech-
nology (MRCT), the technology transfer arm of Great Britain's Medical Research Council
(MRC). The agreement, which provides AbD Serotec with access to a broad range of hybri-
doma cell lines as a source of research antibedies, is extended for a further five years, and
includes additional products which will be impltemented in AbD Serotec's offering.

Research & Development / Alliance Management

The following represents the progress made in existing collaborations throughout the first three
months of 2007:

Expansion of Japanese Alliance with GenaFrontier Corporation

In January 2007, MorphoSys expanded its existing marketing alliance with its Tokyo-based
partner GeneFrontier Corporation, The expanded collaboration now also covers the generation
of HuCAL-derived fully human antibodies for proteome research and target validation together
with a renowned Japanese research organization as well as commercialization of resulting
antibody products. Under the terms of the agreement, GeneFrontier will utilize MorphoSys's
HuCAL GOLD antibedy library to generate novel HuCAL antibodies against targets provided by
its collaboration partner. For this purpose, the HUCAL antibody technology was installed at
Genefrontier's research laboratories within a research facility in Tokyo. GeneFrontier will pro-
vide MorphoSys with financial compensation for access to the HuCAL technolegy. GeneFrontier
and MorphoSys agreed to share commercialization rights for all antibodies discovered in this
project against targets identified and validated by GeneFrantier with its partner,

Risk and Opportunity Report

The risks and opportunities have not changed materially compared to the situation described in
the Annual Report 2006.



Outlook

The Company's most recent guidance was given in February 2007 and no changes have been
announced on the occasion of the Q1 2007 press release.

The Company estimates full-year 2007 Group revenues between € 60 million and € 65 million,
and an operating profit of € 7 million to € 10 million.




Consolidated Statements
of Operations (IFRS) — unaudited

2007 2006
For the Pericd ended March 31, Note € €
Revenues 14,119,759 14,841,856
Operating Expenses
Cost of Goods Sold 2 2,721,020 2,098,924
Research and Development 4,862,543 3,831,392
Sales, General and Administrative 5,188,746 4,236,942
Total Operating Expenses 12,772,309 10,167,258
Profit from Operations 1,347,450 ‘ 4,674,598
Interest Income 18,31 1] 17,102
Interest Expense 2,966 32,726
Other Income, Net 183,465 240,187
Profit before Taxes 1,546,260 4,899,161
Income Tax Expense 906,186 -
Net Profit 640,074 4,899,161
Basic Net Profit per Share 0.10 0.79
Dituted Net Profit per Share 0.09 0.78
Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit per Share 6,694,281 6,202,620
Shares Used in Computing Diluted Net Profit per Share 6,804,872 5,315,988

Sae accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Balance Sheets (IFRS)

December
31, 2006
Note €
ASSETS
Cunent Assels
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,432,158 3,765,320
Available-for-sale Financial Assets 62,535,501 62,260,552
Accounts Receivable 5,092,660 3,699,386
Other Receivables 163,063 110,734
Inventories, Net 3,397,750 3,511,405
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 2,458,806 2,096,991
Assets Classified as Held for Sale 654,940 664,108
Total Current Assets 83,734,878 76,108,496
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 6,738,226 6,894,112
Patents, Net 1,844,509 1,950,154
Licenses, Net 7.491,067 7,776,374
Software, Net 409,389 243,813
Know-how and Customer Lists, Net 4,574,361 4,834,289
Goodwill 26,997,835 27,002,591
Deferred Tax Asset 723,605 1,455,723
Other Assets 1,682,875 1,577,570
Total Non-Current Assets 50,461,867 51,734,626
Total Assets 134,196,745 127,843,122

See accompanying nates to the Consolidated Financial Statemants.,




Decembar

31, 2006
Note €
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 7,565,409 10,455,799
Cument Portion of Licenses Payable 130,735 126,382
Provisions and Tax Liabilities 1,247,962 1,082,042
Current Portion of Deferred Revenue 10,479,021 6,648,107
Total Current Liabilities 19,423,127 18,312,330
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions, Net of Current Portion 62,763 62,763
Deferred Revenue, Net of Current Portion 9,434 567 6,216,007
Convertible Bonds Due to Related Parties 83,780 38,371
Deferred Tax Liability 3,224 611 3,162,332
Total Non-Current Liabilities 12,805,721 9,479,473
Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock, € 3.00 Par Value; 3 20,163.419 20,135,263
Ordinary Shares Authorized (12,729,785
for 2007 and 2006, respectively)
Ordinary Shares issued (6,724,410 and 6,715,322
for 2007 and 2006, respectively)
Ordinary Shares Outstanding (6,697,678 and 6,686,160 for 2007 and
2006, respectively}
Treasury Stock (26,732 and 29,162 shares
for 2007 and 2006, respectively), at Cast
Additional Paid-in Capital 3 124,591,538 123,878,001
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 1,896,148 1,359,948
Accumulated Deficit (44,683,208)  (45,321,893)
Total Stockholders' Equity 101,967,897 100,051,319
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 134,196,745 127,843,122

See accompanying nates to the Consolidated Financial Stataments.




Consolidated Statements of Changes in
Stockholders’ Equity (IFRS) — unaudited

Common Stock
Shares €

Balance as of January 1, 2006 6,025,863 18,077,589 ~

Compensation Related to the Grant of Stock Options and Convertible
Bonds - -

Exercise of Options and Convertible Bonds tssued to Related Parties 33,640 100,920

Capital Increase against Contribution in Kind, Net of Issuance Cost of
€ 20,785 208,560 625,680

Other Comprehensive Income:

Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-sate Securities, Net of .
Deferred Tax - R

Foreign Cumrency Loss from Consolidation - -

Net Profit for the Period - -

Comprehensive Income - -

Balance as of March 31, 2006 6,268,063 18,804,189

Balance as of Januar 1, 2007 6,715,322 20,145,966

Result Incurred Through Restructuring of Affiliates - -

Compensation Related to the Grant of Stock Options and Convertible
Bonds - -

Exercise of Options and Convertible Bonds Issued to Related Parties, Net
of Issuance Cost of € 9,350 9,088 27,264

Exercise of Options fram Treasury Stock Issued to Related Parties - -

Other Comprehansive Income:

Change in Unrealized Gain on Available-for-sale Securities, Net of
Deferred Tax - -

Effects from Equity-related Recognition of Deferred Taxes - -

Foreign Currency (Gain from Consolidation - -

Net Profit for the Period - -

Comprehensive Income - -

Balance as of March 31, 2007 6,724,410 20,173,230




Additional Total Stock-
Paid-in Capi- Revaluation Translation Accumulated holders’
Treasury Stock tal Reserve Reserve Deficit Equity
Shares € € € € € €
29,162 (10,703) 96,412,849 584,679 203,184  (51,349,827) 64,007,771
- - 330,893 - - - 330,893
- - 830,870 - - - 931,790
- - 8,008,775 - - - 8,634,455
- - - {159,970) - - {159,970)
- - - - (213,224) - {213,224)
- - - - - 4,899,161 4,899,161
- - - - - - 4,525,967
29,162 {10,703) 105,583,387 424,709 79,960 (46,450,666) 78,430,876
29,162 (10,703) 123,878,001 1,066,790 293,158 {45,321,893) 100,051,319
_ . - - . (1,389) {(1,389)
- - 373,111 - - - 373,11
- - 340,426 - - - 367,690
(2,430) 892 - - - - 892
- - - 501,616 - - 501,616
- - - {139,808) - - {139,808)
- - - - 174,392 - 174,392
- - - - - 640,074 640,074
- - - - - - 1,176,274
26,732 (9,811) 124,591,538 1,428,598 467,550 (44,683,208) 101,967,897




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(IFRS) — unaudited

2007 2006
For the Period ended March 31, Noto € €

Operating Activities

Net Profit 640,074 4,899,161

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Profit to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Non-cash charges from PPA 138,969 43,530
Depreciation and Amortization of Tangible and Intangible Assets 1,069,651 778,848
Income Tax Benefit (118,987} (36,167)
Net Gain on Sales of Financial Assets {13,570 (477,044}
Unrealized Net {Gain) / Loss on Derivative Financial Instruments (43,231 81,232
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 6,756 5,725
Recognition of Deferred Revenue (4.641,707) (3,614,215)
Stock-Based Compensation 362,221 322972
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (1,414 ,368) (2,662,142}
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 205,041 (546.862)
Accounts Payable and Provisions {1,262,389) 2,576,402
Licenses Payable 4,353 42,828
Other Liabilities (1,417,487 (1.060,659)
Deferred Revenue 11,691,181 9,609,468
Cash Generated from Operations 5,206,507 9,963,077
Interest Paid 1,469 -

Nat Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,207,976 9,963,077

See accompanying notes to the Consclicated Financial Statemeants.




2007 2006

For the Period ended March 31, Note € €
Invasting Activities:

Purchases of Finandal Assets - (9,110,908)

Proceeds from Sales of Financial Assets 301,601 17,996,891

Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment (293,290 (246,350}

Proceeds from Disposals of Property, Plant and Equipment 22 558 -

Additions to Intangibles {264,727 (54,557)

Acquisition of Serotec, Net of Cash Acquired - {20,772,149)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (233,858) (12,187,073)
Financing Activities:

Proceeds from the Issuance of Equity - -

Proceeds from the Exercise of Options and Convertible Bonds

Granted to Related Parties 377.832 931,790

Net of Proceeds and Payments from the Issuance of Convertible

Bonds Granted to Related Parties 45,408 29,070

Purchases of Derivative Finandial Instruments (91,500 {93.650)

Proceeds from the Disposal of Derivatives 83,375 -

Net Cost of Share Issuance {9,350 -
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 405,866 867,210
Effect of Exchange Rate Differences on Cash 286.854 {10,628)
Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,666,838 (1,367.414)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 3,765,220 4,017,029
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 9,432,158 2,649,615

Ses accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Stataments.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements - unaudited

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
adopted by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB), London in consideration of
the interpretations of the Standing Interpretations Committee {SIC), the Interational Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC) and the IFRS adopted by the European Commis-
sion.

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2007, include MorphoSys
AG, MorphoSys IP GmbH, MorphoSys USA, Inc., MorphoSys UK Ltd., (former Serotec Ltd.),
MorphoSys US, Inc., (former Serotec, Inc.), MorphoSys AbD GmbH ({former Serotec GmbH),
Oxford Biotechnology Lid., and Poole Real Estate Ltd. (former Biogenesis UK Lid.}), together
referred to as the “Group”.

1 Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies applied for the financial statements as of December 31, 2006 have
been used throughout the first three months 2007, except for the following changes:

Basis of Consolidation

All business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method according to IFRS 3
“Business Combinaticns”, whereby identifiable assets and liabilities assumed are measured
initially at their fair value. Any excess of the purchase price over the amounts allocated is rec-
ognized as goodwill. The goodwill is subject to a regular review for possible impairment. In
January 2007, the accounting for the purchase price allacatian in connection with the Serolec
acquisition — hitherto only provisional - had been completed according to IFRS 3.62.

2 Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing products or
services and is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments.

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business and geographical seg-
ments. The primary format, business segments, is based on the Group’s management and
internal reporting structure. Segment results and assets include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasanable basis.




The Group consists of the following main business segments:;

Tharapeutic Antibodies

MorphoSys possesses one of the leading technologies in the generation of human antibody
therapeutics and bespoke antibody research projects. The Company makes use of its technol-
ogy in collaborations with internationally renowned pharmaceutical and biotech companies.

AbD - Antibodies Direct

The research antibodies business leverages MorphoSys's core technological capabilities in the
design and manufacture of antibodies for research purposes. It commercializes HuCAL tech-
nology focusing on the custom generation of research antibodies for partners on an individual
basis.

Geographical Segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenues are based
on the geographical location of the customers.

Therapeutic AbD Unallocated Consolidated

For the Period Ended March 31, Antibodies

{in 000's €) 2006 2006 2006 2006

Revenues 8,769 9,961 5,351 4,881 - - 14,120 14,842
Cost of Goods Sold - - 2,721 2,099 - - 2,721 2,099

Segment Result 3,726 5,755 {465) 398 {1,913) (1,478} 1,348 4,675
Interest Income 18 17
Interest Expense 3 33
Other Income, Net 183 240
Profit before Taxes 1,454 4,899
Income Tax Expense 906 0

Net Profit 640 4,899

The following table shows the split of the Company's consclidated sales by geographical mar-
kets:

For the Period ended March 31,
(in 000’s €) 2007 2008

Europe and Asia 7,885 9,683
U.S.A. and Canada 5,884 5,120
Other 351 39
Total 14,120 14,842




3 Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock
On March 31, 2007, the common stock of the Company was € 20,173,230 {December 31, 2006:
€ 20,145,966). Through the conversion and exercise of 9,088 convertible bonds and options

issued to management and employees, common stock increased by € 27.264 in the first three
months of 2007,

Additional Paid-in Capital

On March 31, 2007, Additional Paid-in Capital amounted lo € 124,531 538 (December 31, 2006:
€ 123,878,001). The total increase of € 713,537 is due to slock-based compensation provisions
in the amount of € 373,111 and an increase of € 340,426 arose from exercise and conversion of
convertible bonds and stock options issued to related parties.

4 Changes in Convertible Bonds

In the first quarter of 2007, convertible bonds were granted under the 2002 Plan with terms
identical to the 2002 convertible bonds grants. On January 15, 2007, 13,873 convertible bonds
were granted to Management Board members and 38,945 convertible bonds were granted to
employees of MorphoSys AG.




5 Directors’ Dealings

The table below shows the shares, stock options and convertible bonds as well as the changes
of ownership of the same, which were held by the Management Board and the Supervisory
Board during the first three months of 2007:

Shares
01/01/07 Additions Forfeitures Sales
Management Board
Dr. Simon E. Maroney 113,461 - - - 113,461
Dave Lemus - - - - -
Dr. Marlies Sproil * 35 - - - 35
Total 113,496 - - - 113,496
Supervisory Board
Or. Gerald Mdller 2,500 - - - 2,500
Prof. Qr. Jurgen Drows * - 2,430 - - 2,430
Dr. Daniel Camus - - - - -
Dr. Metin Colpan - - - - -
Prof. Dr. Andreas Pluckthun 59,300 - - 59,300
Dr. Geoffrey N. Vemon - - - - -
Total 61,800 2,430 - - 64,230
Bought by Dr. Sproll pnor o election to the Managemant Board
Prof. Or. Oraws exercised his oplions and held the shares recaived
Stock Options
01/01/07 Additions Forfeitures Exercises
Management Board
Dr. Simon E. Moroney 83,000 - - - 83.000
Dave Lemus 48,000 - - - 48,000
Dr. Marlies Sproll 26,250 - - - 26,250
Total 157,250 - - - 157,250
Supervisory Board
Dr. Gerald Mdller - - - - -
Prof. Dr. Jurgen Drews ™ 2,430 - - 2,430 -
Dr. Daniel Camus - - - - -
Dr. Metin Colpan - - - - -
Prof. Dr. Andreas Pliickthun - - - - -
Dr. Geoffrey N. Vemon - - - - -
Total 2,430 - - 2,430 -

Prof. Dr. Drews exercised his options and held the shares received




Convertible Bonds

01/01/07 Additions Forfeitures Exercises 31/03/07

Management Board
Or. Simon E. Moroney 5,699 5,549 - - 11,248
Dave Lemus 4,749 4,624 - - 9,373
Dr. Marlies Sproll 3,800 3,700 - - 7.500
Total 14,248 13,373 - - 28121
Supervisory Board

Dr. Gerald Mdller - - - . -
Prof. Dr. Jurgen Drews - - - - -
Dr. Danigl Camus - - - - -
Dr. Metin Colpan - - - . -
Prof. Dr. Andreas Plickthun - - - - -
Dr. Geoffrey N. Vermnon - - - - -
Total - - - . -

6 Transactions with Related Parties

In July 2006, the Company entered into consulting agreements with the member of the Supervi-
sory Board Prof, Dr, Andreas Plickthun and a further scientist of the University of Zurich, Swit-
zerand. According lo the agreements, the consultants shall provide consulting services in the
antibady and scaffold field.
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MorphoSYs Reports First Quarter 2007 Resu\ltg/‘og\‘&

MorphoSys AG (Frankfurt: MOR; Prime Standard Segment, TecDAX) today reported financial
results according to IFRS for its first quarter ended March 31, 2007. The MorphoSys Group
achieved revenues of EUR 14.1 million (Q1 2006: EUR 14.8 million), a profit from operations of
EUR 1.3 million (Q1 2006: EUR 4.7 million), and a net profit of EUR 0.6 million (Q1 2006: 4.9
million). MorphoSys's cash position amounted to EUR 72.0 million at the end of the first quarter
of 2007 (December 31, 2006: EUR 66.0 million).

Highlights of the First Quarter 2007:

» Formation of an antibody partnership with Asteflas, MorphoSys's third alliance with a
Japanese pharmaceutical company. Under the terms of the agreement, MorphoSys grants
Astellas access to its HUCAL GOLD antibody library for use in its internal pharmaceutical
drug discovery programs.

» Existing partnered therapeutic antibody pipeline currently comprises 43 programs in total, of
which currently two are in phase 1 clinical development, 16 in pre-clinical development, and
25in research.

» Significant expansion of AbD Serotec's license agreement with the U.K. Medical Research
Council (MRC). The agreement, which provides AbD Serotec with access to a broad range
of hybridoma cell lines as a source of research antibodies, is extended for a further five
years, and includes additional products which will be implemented in AbD Serotec's offering.

» Formation of a research alliance involving MorphoSys's Tokyo-based partner GeneFrontier
Corporation together with a renowned Japanese research organization. The expanded
collaboration now also covers the generation of HuCAL-derived fully human antibodies for
proteome research and target validation as well as commercialization of resulting antibody
products.

“MorphoSys continues to increase its market presence in both operating segments, as
evidenced by the addition of yet another top 20 pharmaceutical company and a leading
research institute in Asia, to our partner roster" commented Dave Lemus, Chief Financial Officer
of MorphoSys AG. “Moreover, we expect to remain on track to hit this year's operational and
financial targets.”

Financial Review of the First Quarter 2007 {IFRS):

Revenues in the first three months of 2007 slightly decreased in comparison to the same period
of the former year by 5% to EUR 14.1 million (Q1 2006: EUR 14.8 million). Reasons for the
decrease were in large part attributable to unusuaily high levels of success-based payments
received in the first quarter of 2006. Revenues arising from the Therapeutic Antibodies



segment amounted to EUR 8.8 million or 62% of total revenues, which included success-based
payments in the amount of EUR 1.6 million. The AbD segment contributed EUR 5.3 million or
38% to total revenues.

Total operating expenses for the first three months of 2007 amounted to EUR 12.8 million,
compared to EUR 10.2 million in the same period of 2006. Cost of goods sold amounted to
EUR 2.7 million (Q1 2006: EUR 2.1 million), representing cost of sales for goods sold by the
AbD segment. Research and development costs increased to EUR 4.9 million from EUR 3.8
million; sales, general & administrative expenses amounted to EUR 5.2 million compared to
EUR 4.2 million in the previous year. Stock-based compensation, reported as components
within COGS, R&D and S,G8A expenses, amounted to EUR 0.4 million (Q1 2006: EUR 0.3
million). Operating profit for the first three months of 2007 reached EUR 1.3 million (Q1 2006:
EUR 4.7 million). Non-operating expenses, including taxes, amounted in the first three months
of 2007 to EUR 0.7 million (Q1 2006: non-operating income of EUR 0.2 million). Earnings
before interest and taxes (EBIT) amounted to EUR 1.5 million, compared to an EBIT of EUR 4.9
million in the same period of the previous year.

In the first quarter of 2007, MorphoSys achieved a net income of EUR 0.6 million, compared to
a net income of EUR 4.9 million in the same period of the previous year. Diluted net income per
share for the first three months of 2007 amounted to EUR 0.09 (Q1 2006: EUR 0.78).

On March 31, 2007, MorphoSys had cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale financial
assets of EUR 72.0 million, compared to EUR 66.0 million at the end of 2006.

The number of shares outstanding at March 31, 2007 was 6,697 678, compared 6,686,160 at
December 31, 2006.

Financial Outlook

MorphoSys left its financial outlook for 2007 unchanged. The Company projects total revenues
of EUR 60 to 65 million, and profit from operations of EUR 7 to 10 million for fiscal year 2007.

MorphoSys will hold a public conference call today at 10:00 am CEST to present the financial
results of the first quarter 2007.

Dial-in number for the Conference Call (listen-only): +49 (0)69 9897 2634 (listen-only)
U.K. residents: +44 (0)20 7138 0820 (listen-only)
Please dial in 10 minutes before the beginning of the conference.

A replay and the manuscript of the conference call will be available on
http://www.morphosys . com/conferencecalls




About MorphoSys:
MorphoSys develops and applies innovative technologies for the production of synthetic antibodies, which accelerate

drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human Combinatorial
Antibody Library (HUCAL) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human antibody generation. The
Company currently has licensing agreements and/or research collaborations with Astellas (Japan), Bayer-Schering
(USA/Germany), Boehringer Ingelheim (Gemmany), Bristol-Myers Squibb (USA), Centocor Inc. (USA), Daiichi Sankyo
& Co., Ltd. (Japan), GPC Biotech AG (Germany), Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Switzerand), ImmunoGen Inc. (USA),
Merck & Co., Inc. (USA), Novartis AG (Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH (Germany}, OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
{USA), Pfizer Inc. (USA), ProChon Biotech Ltd. (Israel), Schering-Plough (USA), Shionogi & Co., Ltd. {Japan), Xoma
Ltd. (USA) and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody research market through its AbD Serotec
business unit. The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpose of exploiting the MorphoSys non-therapeutic
antibody markets. MorphoSys' activities in the research antibody segment were significantly strengthened through the
acquisition of the UK. and U.S.-based Biogenesis Group in January 2005 and Serotec Group in 2006. For further
information please visit the corporate website at: hitp://www.morphosys.com/

HUCAL® and HUCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of MorphoSys AG

Statements included in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, forward-looking statements” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Frivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements may be identified by words including “anticipates”, *befieves”, “intends”, “estimates”, “expects” and similar
expressions. The company cautions readers that forward-looking statements, including without limitation those
relating to the company’s future operations and business prospects, are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-fooking statements. Faclors that may
affect future operations and business prospects include, but are not limited fo, clinical and scientific results and
developments conceming corporate coffaborations and the company’s proprietary rights and other factors described
in the prospectus relating to the company’s recent public offering.

For more information, please contact MorphoSys:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Tel; +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-439
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5439
investors@morphosys.com

Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Léser Mario Brkulj

Head of Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Tel: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-122 Tel: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0} 89 / 899 27-5122 Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5454
gutjahr-loeser@morphosys.com brkulj@morphosys.com




Consolidated Statement of Operations (IFRS} - unaudited

For the Pariod Ended March 21,

in €, except share data 2007 2006
"Revenues 14,119,’!-59 14,841,856
Operating Expenses
Cost of Goods Sold 2,721,020 2,098,924
Research & Development Expenses 4,862,543 3,831,392
General & Administrative Expenses 5,188,746 4,236,942
otal OperatmTExponses 12,772,309 10,1 6?25?
Profit from Operations 1,347,450 4,674,598
Interest Income 18,311 17,102
Interest Expense 2,966 32,726
Other income, Net 183,465 240,187
"Profit before Taxes 1,546,260 4,899,161
Income ?Expense 906,186 -
NET PROFIT 640,074 4,899,161
Basic Net Profit per Share 0.10 0.79
Diluted Net Profit par Share 0.09 0.78
Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit per Share 6,694,281 6,202,620
Shares Used in Computing Basic Net Profit per Share 6,804,872 6,315,988
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet (IFRS)
31.03.2007 31.12.2006
in€ unaudited
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Available-for-Sale Financial Assels 71,867,659 66,025,872
Accounts Receivable 5,092,660 3,659,386
Inventories, Net 3,397,750 3,511,405
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets and Other Receivables 2,621,868 2,207,725
Assets Classified as Held for Sale 654,940 664,108
~ Total Gurrent Assets 83,734,878 76,108,496
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 6,738,226 6,894,112
Patents, Net 1,844,509 1,950,154
License Fees, Net 7,491,067 7,776,374
Software, Net 409,389 243,813
Know How & Customer List, Net 4,574,361 4,834,289
Goodwill 26,997,835 27,002,591
Deferred Tax Asset 723,605 1,455,723
Other Assets 1,682,875 1,577,570
" Total Non-Current Assets 50,461,867 51,734,626
Eal Assets 134,196,745 127,843,122
" Accounts Payable 7,565,400 10,455,799
Current Portion of Licenses Payable 130,736 126,382
Cumrent Portion of Provisions 1,247,962 1,082,042
Current Portion of Deferred Revenue 10,479,021 6.648,107
™ Total Current Liabilities 19,423,127 18,312,330
Provisions, Net of Current Portion 62,763 62,763
Deferred Revenue, Net of Current Portion 9,434 567 6,216,007
Convertible Bonds Due to Related parties 83,780 38,371
Deferred Tax Liability 3,224,611 3,162,332
Total Non-Current Liabilities 12,805,'-(21 9,479,473
"~ Total Stockholders’ Equity 101,967,897 100,051,319
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 134,196,745 127,843,122




Condensed Consoclidated Statement of Cash Flows (IFRS) - unaudited
For the Period Ended March 31,

in€ 2007 2006

Net Profit 640,074 4,899,161

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 5,207,976 9,963,077

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities {233,858) (12,187,073}
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 405,866 867,210

Effect of Exchange Rate Differences in Cash 286,854 {10,628)
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,666,838 {1,367.414)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Bﬂlnning of the Period 3,765,320 4,017,029

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 9,432,158 2,649,615
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MorphoSys and Astellas Enter Antibody Partn:/s%ip

Deal Seals MorphoSys's Third Japanese Pharmaceutical Alliance

MorphoSys AG (Frankfurt: MOR; Prime Standard Segment, TecDAX) today announced that
Astellas Pharma Inc. (“Astellas” Tokyo, Japan), Japan's second largest ethical
pharmaceutical company, and MorphoSys AG have entered into a license agreement for the
use of MorphoSys's HUCAL technology. Under the terms of the agreement, MorphoSys
grants Astellas access to its HUCAL GOLD antibody library for use in its internal
pharmaceutical drug discovery programs. in return, MorphoSys stands to receive an up-front
payment and annual user fees during the life span of the agreement.

During the term of the agreement, Astellas will have access to the MorphoSys HuCAL GOLD
library at its research site in Tsukuba, Japan. Additionally, Astellas has the option to start
antibody projects during the life time of the agreement. Under the optional collaboration
component of the alliance, MorphoSys will utilize its HUCAL GOLD antibody library to
generate novel HUCAL antibodies against targets provided by Astellas. Subsequently,
Astellas will be responsible for preclinical and clinical development of these compounds, as
well as the ensuing marketing of resulting products. For projects initiated under the
collaboration, MorphoSys stands to receive research funding, plus licensing and milestone
payments, as well as royalties on end-product sales. The agreement may have a duration of
up to five years.

“Today's deal adds another representative of Japan's leading pharmaceutical companies to
MorphoSys's roster of partners and increases at the same time our market share among the
20 largest drug makers worldwide,” commented Dr. Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer
of MorphoSys. “This new therapeutic partnership with Astellas once again shows the
potential for innovative technology such as our HUCAL GOLD antibody library in Japan — a
market we set out to explore just some 24 months ago.”

About Astellas:

Astellas Pharma Inc., located in Tokyo, Japan, is a pharmaceutical company dedicated to improving the health of
people around the world through the provision of innovative and reliable pharmaceutical products. The
organization is committed to becoming a global phammaceutical company by combining outstanding R&D and
marketing capabilities and continuing to grow in the world phamaceutical market. For more information on
Astellas Pharma Inc., please visit the company's website at http.//iwww.astellas.com.

About MorphoSys:
MorphoSys develops and applies innovative technologies for the production of synthetic antibedies, which

accelerate drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human
Combinatorial Antibody Library (HuCAL) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human antibody
generation. The Company currently has licensing agreements and/or research collaborations with Bayer-Schering




{USA/Gemany), Boehringer (ngelheim (Germany), Bristol-Myers Squibb {USA), Centocor Inc. (USA), Daiichi
Sankyo & Co., Ltd. {Japan), GPC Bictech AG (Germany), Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Switzerland), ImmunoGen
Inc. (USA), Merck & Co., Inc. (USA), Novartis AG (Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH {Germany), OncoMed
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (USA), Pfizer Inc. (USA), ProChon Biotech Ltd. (Israel), Schering-Plough {USA}, Shionogi &
Co., Ltd. (Japan), Xoma Ltd. (USA) and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody research market
through its AbD Serotec business unit. The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpose of exploiting the
MorphoSys non-therapeutic antibody markets. MorphoSys' activities in the research antibody segment were
significantly strengthened through the acquisition of the U.K. and U.S.-based Biogenesis Group in January 2005
and Serotec Group in 2006, For further information please visit the comorate website at:
http:/fwww.morphosys.comy/.

HuCAL® and HUCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of MorphoSys AG

Staternents included in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, “forward-looking statements” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendead by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-
looking statements may be identified by words including “anticipates”, “believes”, “intends®, “estimates”, “expects”
and similar expressions. The company cautions readers that forward-looking statements, including without
limitation those relating to the company’s future operations and business prospecls, are subjact to certain risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking
statements. Factors that may affect fulure operations and business prospects include, but are not limited to,
clinical and scientific results and developments conceming corporate collaborations and the company's
proprietary rights and other factors described in the prospectus relating to the company’s recent public offering.

For more information, please contact:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Phone: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-439
Fax: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-5439

investors@morphosys.com

Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Lser Mario Brkulj

Head of Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Phone: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-122 Phone : +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 889 27-5122 Fax: +43 (0) 89 / 899 27-5454

gutiahr-loeser@morphosys.com brkuli@meorphosys.com
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Martinsried/Munich, March 26, 2007

Supervisory Board Nominates Walter Blittler as Successor of Andreas Pliickthun

MorphoSys AG {FSE: MOR; Prime Standard Segment) announced today that its current board
member Professor Andreas Plickthun intends to resign from the Supervisory Board with effect
of 16 May, 2007. Professor Plickthun is leaving the board at his own request, in order to
devote additional time to his increasing number of academic research programs at the
University of Zurich, as well as to be able to pursue other entrepreneurial opportunities. The
Supervisory Board accepted Prof. Plickthun’s decision with regret and thanked him for his long-
lasting support and his contribution to the growth and success of the Company. As successor
to Professor Pliickthun, the Supervisory Board will propose the nomination of Dr. Walter Blattler,
formerly Executive Vice President, Science and Technology of ImmunoGen, Inc., at the
Company's next annual shareholder meeting in May. Professor Pliickthun will remain
connected to MorphoSys as an advisor on future technology development.

Dr. Walter A. Blattler studied chemistry at the Swiss Federal Institute of Technology, Zurich
(ETH Zirich), and subsequently held a research position as a post-doctoral fellow at Harvard
University, Cambridge, U.S.A. Prior to joining ImmunoGen at its newly established laboratories,
Dr. Blattler held various positions at the Dana-Farber Cancer Institute, Harvard Medical School,
in Boston. In 1987 he joined ImmunoGen Inc., as Vice President and subsequently Senior Vice
President, R&D. In 1996 he was promoted to Executive Vice President, Science & Technology.
During his time with the company, ImmunoGen introduced several antibody-based drugs into
clinical development and established several successful research andfor development
collaborations with major pharmaceutical companies.

“On behalf of the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys, | would like to thank Professor Pliickthun for
his long-lasting support and his very active contribution to the growth and success of the
Company,” commented Dr. Gerald Mdéller, Chairman of the Supervisory Board of MorphoSys
AG. “At the same time, we are particularly glad to be able to nominate Dr, Walter Biattler,
whose expertise in developing antibody-based drugs will be highly valuable for MorphoSys in its
future development.”

“I would like to add my personal thanks to my co-founder Prof. Pliickthun for his invaluable
support and commitment to MorphoSys during his term on our board. With his broad scientific
expertise in the field of antibody technologies, he has made an enormous contribution to the
successful development of the Company to the state we see today, where the technology is
fully established and successfully commercialized”, commented Dr. Simon Moroney, Chief
Executive Officer of MorphoSys AG.

Professor Pliickthun co-founded the Company in 1992 and served on the Supervisory Board of
MorphoSys since that time. During his term with MorphoSys Professor Plickthun played a
prominent role in establishing and developing the proprietary antibody technologies MorphoSys
possesses today.




About MorphoSys:
MorphoSys develops and applies innovative technolegies for the production of synthetic antibodies, which accelerate

drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human Combinatarial
Antibody Library (HUCAL) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human antibody generation. The
Company currently has licensing agreements and/or research collaborations with Bayer-Schering (USA/Germany),
Boehringer Ingelheim (Germany), Bristol-Myers Squibb (USA), Centocor Ine. {USA), Daiichi Sankyo & Co., Utd.
{Japan), GPC Biotech AG (Germany), Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Switzerland), ImmunoGen Inc. (USA), Merck & Co.,
Inc. (USA), Novartis AG (Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH (Germany), OncoMed Phammaceuticals, Inc. (USA), Pfizer
Inc. (USA), ProChon Biotech Ltd. {Israel}, Schering-Plough (USA), Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (Japan), Xoma Ltd. (USA)
and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody research market through its AbD Serotec business unit.
The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpose of exploiting the MorphoSys non-therapeutic antibody
markets. MorphoSys' activities in the research antibody segment were significantly strengthened through the
acquisition of the U.K. and U.S.-based Biocgenesis Group in January 2005 and Serotec Group in 2006. For further
information please visit the corporate website at: hitp://www. morphosys.com/.

Statements inciuded in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, “forward-fooking statements” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1985. Forward-fooking
statements may be identified by words including “anticipates”, "befieves”, “intends”, “estimates”, “expects” and simifar
expressions. The company cautions readers that forward-looking statements, including without limitation those
relating to the company’s future operations and business prospects, are subject fo certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Factors that
may affect future operations and business prospects incfuds, but are not limited to, clinical and scientific results and
developments conceming corporale collaborations and the company's proprietary rights and other factors described
in the prospectus refating to the company’s recent public offering.

HuCAL® and HuCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of McrphoSys AG

For more information, please contact MorphoSys AG:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Phone: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-438
Fax: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-5439
investors@morphosys.com

Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Léser Mario Brkulj

Head of Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Phone: +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-122 Phone : +48 (0) 89 / 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0) 88 /899 27-5122 Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5454

gutiahr-loeser@morphosys.com brkuli@morphosys.com
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MorphoSys’s AbD Serotec Expands”Antibody License Agreement with
Medical Research Council

MorphoSys AG (Frankfurt Stock Exchange: MOR; Prime Standard Segment, TecDAX) today
announced that its business unit AbD Serotec has significantly expanded its license agreement
with MRC Technology (MRCT), the technology transfer arm of Great Britain’s Medical Research
Council (MRC). The agreement, which provides AbD Serotec with access to a broad range of
hybridoma cell lines as a source of research antibodies, is extended for a further five years, and
includes additional products which will be implemented in AbD Serotec’s offering. Financial
details of the agreement were not disclosed.

The Medical Research Council is a national organization dedicated to improving human health
in the UK and abroad The MRC has 40 Institutes, Units and Centres and supports research
across the entire spectrum of medical sciences, in universities and hospitals through research
grants, funded research training and MRC career awards. Hybridoma cells which have been
engineered by researchers of the MRC network to produce a desired research antibody in large
amounts are out-licensed by MRCT,

AbD Serotec is the research antibody division of MorphoSys, one of the world's leading
antibody technology companies. AbD Serotec offers more than 10,000 antibodies and
immunological reagents, custom monocional antibodies developed from the MorphoSys HuCAL
library, and large and small scale antibody production and conjugation services.

“‘Our long-lasting relationship with the Medical Research Council as a source of research
antibodies has led to a large number of innovative products for our costumers,” commented Dr.
Simon Moroney, Chief Executive Officer of MorphoSys AG. “Sales on all products from this
license agreement are of significant value for AbD Serotec, and to be able to continue this long-
term relationship with one of the most influential research organizations in Great Britain is thus
of significant value for the entire MorphoSys Group.”

About MomphoSys:

MorphoSys develops and applies innovative technologies for the production of synthetic antibodies, which accelerate
drug discovery and target characterization. Founded in 1992, the Company's proprietary Human Combinatorial
Antibody Library (HUCAL) technology is used by researchers worldwide for human antibody generation. The
Company currently has licensing agreements and/or research collaborations with Bayer-Schering (USA/Germany},
Boehringer Ingetheim (Germany), Bristol-Myers Squibb (USA), Centocor Inc. (USA), Daiichi Sankyo & Co., Ltd.
{Japan), GPC Biotech AG (Germany), Hoffmann-La Roche AG (Switzerand), immunoGen tnc. (USA), Merck & Co.,
Inc. (USA), Novartis AG {Switzerland), Novoplant GmbH {Germany), OncoMed Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (USA), Pfizer
Inc. (USA), ProChon Biotech Lid. (Israel), Schering-Plough (USA), Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (Japan), Xoma Lid. (USA)
and others. Additionally, MorphoSys is active in the antibody researchmarket through its AbD Serotec business unit.
The business unit was founded in 2003 for the purpose of exploiting the MorphoSys non-therapeutic antibody
markets. MorphoSys’ activities in the research antibody segment were significantly strengthened through the



acquisition of the U.K, and U.S.-based Biogenesis Group in January 2005 and Serotec Group in 2006. For further
information please visit the corporate website at: hitp://www.morphosys.com/.

bo ical earl uncil Techn T
MRCT is the exclusive commercialisation catalyst for the UK Medical Research Council {MRC), working to translate
cutting edge scientific discoveries into commercial products. MRCT bridges the gap between innovative basic
science and making medicine. By providing both chemical tools and therapeutic antibody candidates, we give
pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies new starting points for drug discovery and development, based on
MRC advances in science.

About MRC:

The Medical Research Council {MRC) is a national organisation funded by the UK tax-payer. lts business is medical
research aimed at improving human health; everyone stands to benefit from the outputs. The research it supports
and the scientists it trains meet the needs of the health services, the pharmaceutical and other health-related
industries and the academic world. MRC has funded work which has led to some of the most significant discoveries
and achievements in medicine in the UK. About half of the MRC's expenditure of £510 million is invested in its 40
Institutes, Units and Centres. The remaining half goes in the form of grant support and training awards to individuals
and teams in universities and medical schools.

Statements included in this press release which are not historical in nature are intended to be, and are hereby
identified as, “forward-ooking statements” for purposes of the safe harbour provided by Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended by the Private Securitios Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking
statements may be identified by words including “anlicipates”, ‘believes’, “intends”, "estimates”, “expec!s™ and similar
expressions. The company cautions readers that forward-looking statements, including without limitation those
relating to the company's future operations and business prospects, are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results lo differ malerially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. Faclors that
may affect future operations and business prospects inciude, but are not limited to, clinical and scientific results and
developments concemning corporate collaborations and the company’s proprietary rights and other factors described
in the prospeclus relating to the company's recent public offaring.

HuCAL® and HuCAL GOLD® are registered trademarks of MorphoSys AG

For more information, please contact MorphoSys AG:

Dave Lemus

Chief Financial Officer

Phone; +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-439
Fax: +49 (0) 89 / B99 27-5439

investors@morphosys.com

Dr. Claudia Gutjahr-Loser Mario Brkulj

Senior Director Corporate Communications Manager Public Relations
Phone: +49 {0) 89 / 899 27-122 Phone : +49 (0) 89 / 899 27-454
Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5122 Fax: +49 (0) 89/ 899 27-5454
gutiahr-loeser@morphosys.com brkuli@morphosys.com
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